
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

SkyRun Franchising Limited
a Colorado limited liability company 
390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350 
Broomfield, Colorado 80021 
970-660-4422 
www.skyrun.com 
info@skyrun.com 

The franchise offered is for the operation of a property management and rental business focused primarily 
on vacation homes, under the “SkyRun®” and “SkyRun® Vacation Rentals” service marks using our 
reservation system, online distribution and listing services, and other proprietary methods of operation, 
which offer and provide online listing and property management services to residential property owners 
who desire to rent their residential properties to transient guests.  

The initial investment necessary to begin operation of a SkyRun franchise ranges from $69,730 to 
$101,180. This includes $50,000 to $70,000 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliates.  

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other 
information in plain English.  Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully.  
You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement 
with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.  
Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this 
document. 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship.  Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document 
alone to understand your contract.  Read all of your contract carefully.  Show your contract and this 
Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment.  The information in this Disclosure Document can help you 
make up your mind.  More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” 
which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the Federal Trade 
Commission.  You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania 
Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580.  You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for 
additional information.  Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on 
franchising.  

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you.  To 
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Lukas Krause at 390 Interlocken 
Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, Colorado 80021 and 970-660-4422.  

There may also be laws on franchising in your state.  Ask your state agencies about them.  

Issuance Date: April 21, 2023 



FDD (04/2023) ii 

How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on 
how to find more information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet 
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try 
to obtain this information from others, like current 
and former franchisees. You can find their names 
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit D. 

How much will I need to 
invest? 

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the 
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 
describes the suppliers you must use. 

Does the franchisor have 
the financial ability to 
provide support to my 
business? 

Item 21 or Exhibit E includes financial 
statements. Review these statements carefully. 

Is the franchise system 
stable, growing, or 
shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the 
number of company-owned and franchised outlets. 

Will my business be the 
only SkyRun business in 
my area? 

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the 
franchisor and other franchisees can compete 
with you. 

Does the franchisor have 
a troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its 
management have been involved in material 
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings. 

What’s it like to be a 
SkyRun franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibit D lists current and former 
franchisees. You can contact them to ask 
about their experiences. 

What else should I 
know? 

These questions are only a few things you should 
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in 
this disclosure document to better understand this 
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other 
fees even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor 
to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes 
may require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may 
harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or 
a limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more 
expensive than similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating 
a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other 
restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to 
customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a 
territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, 
you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order 
to continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from 
operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have 
obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to 
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not 
mean that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in 
this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact 
your state, use the agency information in Exhibit B. 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be 
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific 
Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda. 
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Special Risk(s) to Consider About This Franchise 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The Franchise requires you to 
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or 
litigation only in Colorado. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation 
may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may 
also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in 
Colorado than in your own state.  

2. Mandatory Minimum Payments.  You must make minimum royalty or 
advertising fund payments, regardless of your sales levels.  Your inability 
to make the payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss 
of your investment. 

3. Short Operating History.  The franchisor is at an early stage of 
development and has a limited operating history.  This franchise is likely 
to be a riskier investment than a franchise in a system with a longer 
operating history. 

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific 
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted. 
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NOTICE REQUIRED 
BY 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

The State of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes 
in franchise documents.  If any of the following provisions are in these franchise 
documents, the provisions are void and cannot be enforced against you. 

(a) A prohibition on the right of the Franchisee to join an association of 
franchisees. 

(b) A requirement that the Franchisee assent to a release, assignment, 
novation, waiver, or estoppel which deprives the Franchisee of rights and protections 
provided in the Michigan Franchise Investment Law.  This section shall not preclude the 
Franchisee, after entering into the Franchise Agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

(c) A provision that permits the Franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the 
expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the 
Franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the Franchise Agreement and to cure 
such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which 
in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure. 

(d) A provision that permits the Franchisor to refuse to renew the franchise 
without fairly compensating the Franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair 
market value at the time of expiration of the Franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, 
fixtures and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the Franchisor 
and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings not reasonably required in 
the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation.  This section 
applies only if: 

(i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years; and 

(ii) the Franchisee is prohibited by the Franchise Agreement from 
continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, 
service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the 
same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the Franchisee does 
not receive at least 6 months advance notice of the Franchisor’s intent not to renew 
the franchise. 

(e) A provision that permits the Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on 
terms generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar 
circumstances. This section does not require a renewal provision. 

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside the 
State of Michigan.  This section shall not preclude the Franchisee from entering into an 
agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside the State 
of Michigan. 
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(g) A provision which permits the Franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of 
ownership of a franchise, except for good cause. This section does not prevent the 
Franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise.  Good cause 
shall include, but is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the Franchisor’s then-
current reasonable qualifications or standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the 
Franchisor. 

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to 
comply with all lawful obligations. 

(iv) The failure of the Franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums 
owing to the Franchisor or to cure any default in the Franchise Agreement existing 
at the time of the proposed transfer. 

(h) A provision that requires the Franchisee to resell to the Franchisor items 
that are not uniquely identified with the Franchisor.  This section does not prohibit a 
provision that grants to the Franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a 
franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to 
purchase those assets, nor does this section prohibit a provision that grants the 
Franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value 
of such assets if the Franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the Franchise 
Agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in section (c). 

(i) A provision which permits the Franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, 
assign, or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the 
Franchisee unless provision has been made for providing the required contractual 
services. 

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general 
does not constitute approval, recommendation or endorsement by the attorney 
general.  

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Michigan Department 
of Attorney General, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Unit, 525 West Ottawa 
Street, Lansing, Michigan 48933; telephone (517) 373-7622. 
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ITEM 1. 
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES 

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, the “Company,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Franchisor,” 
means SkyRun Franchising Limited. “You,” ”your,” or the “Franchisee,” means the person, corporation, 
limited liability company, partnership, or other business entity that buys the franchise.  If you are a 
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other entity, these terms also include your 
shareholders, members, partners, and owners who must sign a personal guaranty agreeing to comply with 
all provisions of the License Agreement.  

The Franchisor 

We are a Colorado limited liability company formed on June 28, 2022.  Our principal business address is 
390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, Colorado 80021.  We do business only under our 
company name, “SkyRun”, and “SkyRun Vacation Rentals”. Although our affiliates have offered SkyRun 
franchises in the past, and currently operate SkyRun businesses, we have never operated a SkyRun 
business. We started offering SkyRun franchises in the summer of 2022.  We do not conduct business in 
any other line of business nor do we offer franchises in any other line of business. 

Our agents for service of process are disclosed on Exhibit B. 

The Business 

We offer franchises for the establishment, development, and operation of property management and rental 
businesses focused primarily on vacation homes, using our reservation system, online distribution and 
listing services, and other proprietary methods of operation, which offer and provide online listing and 
property management services to residential property owners (“Owners”) who desire to rent their residential 
properties (“Properties”) to transient guests (“Guests”). These franchises will be operated under the 
“SkyRun®” and “SkyRun® Vacation Rentals” service marks and logo and other trademarks, trade names, 
service marks, and commercial symbols we may authorize (the “Marks”).  Each vacation property 
management and rental business operated under the Marks is referred to in this Disclosure Document as 
a “Business”.    

You will operate your Business using our unique operating system, which includes our proprietary 
reservation system, online distribution and listing services, marketing strategies and techniques, and 
methods of operation, and other know-how, information, materials, software, trade secrets, trade dress, 
and confidential information, as well as our standards, designs, methods of trademark and service mark 
usage, and research and development (the “System”).  We may change or otherwise modify the System at 
any time as we see fit.   

The Business you operate may only provide the online listing and property management services and other 
products and services we authorize.  You must follow all of our policies and procedures when operating 
your Business, including offering the products and services we specify and our restrictions on soliciting 
Owners and advertising Properties through our System.  We can add to, modify, or delete any products or 
services that you must offer or sell at any time as we determine, and change and modify our policies.  You 
will use your Business to solicit Owners with Properties physically located within your Designated Territory 
who desire to rent their Properties to Guests.  You may only service, list, and rent Properties that are 
physically located within your Designated Territory (see Item 12).  You will use the proprietary SkyTrax 
software platform to manage Property listings while we distribute and market your Property listings on our 
website and third-party online travel agencies, to market and price Properties, and to coordinate 
housekeeping and maintenance (“SkyTrax”).  Guests may book an available Property online, which booking 
will be handled solely through SkyTrax.  Upon check-out, you will use SkyTrax to charge the Guest for the 
booking and remit to us any fees due under your License Agreement and remit a commission to the Owner 
of the Property.  
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We prefer franchisees who will be owner-operators.  In any event, your Business must be directly 
supervised by a Manager (who may be the owner-operator) who will be responsible for the operation of the 
Business.  Depending on the number of Properties serviced through your Business, you may also require 
additional staff.  You may operate your Business from a home office or other office location, which we must 
approve, and which we prefer, but do not require, be located within your Designated Territory.   

License Agreement and SkyTrax Subscription Agreement 

Although no prior experience in operating a business is needed, we are looking for franchisees who have 
some prior business experience or strong interest in the property management, rental, real estate, or travel 
industries. Before granting a franchise, you must meet our current application requirements, including 
minimum liquid capital amounts, background checks, credit checks, and interview process.  If we grant you 
a SkyRun franchise, you must sign our standard license agreement, which is attached to this Disclosure 
Document as Exhibit F (the “License Agreement”).  At the time you sign the License Agreement, you will 
also sign a SkyTrax Subscription Agreement for the use of SkyTrax during the term of your License 
Agreement, which is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit G (the “SkyTrax Subscription 
Agreement”).  

The License Agreement grants you the right to operate 1 Business serving Properties physically located 
within your Designated Territory.  You may not operate an additional Business, or service Properties 
physically located outside your Designated Territory, unless you acquire additional franchise rights from us 
and sign another License Agreement.   

Predecessors, Parents, and Affiliates 

Our founders created the SkyRun brand and concept in 2004 to address a need for vacation rental property 
management services in resort markets.  SkyRun Partners LLC (“Partners”) was created to carry out the 
vision of the SkyRun founders and has been providing high-quality property management services in the 
resort areas of Colorado since June 2008.  Partners has offered property management services since its 
organization in June 2008.  Partners offered franchises for a very brief period of time and subsequently 
licensed the use of its name, website, and proprietary operating system to third parties seeking to operate 
property management businesses.  As of December 31, 2022, there were 22 franchised or licensed outlets 
in this system, including 4 which operate under License Agreements with Partners but are substantially 
similar to the franchises we offer under this Disclosure Document. Partners would be considered our 
predecessor as it is licensing all of its intellectual property to us.  It is also our parent company as we are 
wholly owned by it and an affiliate of ours as it may provide other products and services to you.  Its principal 
business address is the same as ours.  It has not offered franchises in any other line of business.     

Our affiliate Vacation Rentals of Breckenridge, LLC has been providing property management services to 
properties located in the Breckenridge, Colorado market area since November 2021.  The managing 
member of our predecessor also operates SkyRun outlets serving resort and vacation areas in Florida and 
Colorado:  SkyRun South Florida LLC, formed in 2017, services properties located in the Palm Beach, 
Broward and Miami-Dade, Florida market areas; SkyRun Vacation Rentals, LLC, formed in 2012, services 
properties located in the Vail, Colorado market; SkyRun Aspen LLC, formed in 2017, services properties 
located in the Aspen, Colorado market area; and SkyRun Condos, LLC, formed in 2004, services properties 
located in the Keystone market area in Colorado.  We consider each of these outlets to be affiliates of ours.   

No other parent, predecessor, or affiliate of ours offers franchises in any line of business or provides 
products or services to you, except as provided above.  

Market and Competition 

The target market for your Business includes residential property owners who desire to rent their properties 
for typically short-term vacation or other transient rentals. These properties are typically second or third 
homes and are located in resort or tourist areas or other urban areas.  As a franchisee, you will compete 
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with other vacation rental businesses, which may be independently owned or part of larger regional or 
national brands, as well as real estate agents or brokers who offer rental listing services and with residential 
property owners who directly offer their properties for vacation or other transient rentals.  

The property management services and other services that you may provide through your Business may 
be seasonal depending on the geographic region within which your Designated Territory is located, as the 
availability of Properties for rent and the demand from Guests may vary based on the weather, time of year, 
and the local tourism industry in general.   

Industry-Specific Regulations 

You must obtain all required licenses and permits to operate your Business. Some states require licenses 
to operate home or vacation rental businesses. These laws may require that you obtain a real estate license 
or that your Business operate under a broker’s license, and that your Business’ Owners obtain short-term 
rental licenses to rent their Properties. Local and state tax laws and regulations also apply to your Business.  
Although not required by all states, some states will require that deposits and other amounts paid to you by 
your customers be held in a trust account or escrow.  There are also local ordinances known as vacation 
rental rules and regulations that you may need to satisfy, depending upon where you are conducting 
business.  For example, some local ordinances may ban short-term rentals. 

In addition to the specific laws discussed above, your Business will be subject to national, state, and local 
regulations that apply to all businesses, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act, consumer data privacy 
and PCI laws and regulations, employment laws, occupational health and safety, equal employment 
opportunity, taxes, and business licensing and permitting requirements.  You must also comply with all 
zoning laws and regulations and building, fire, and health codes that apply to your Business.   

You are responsible for ensuring that your Business, and the Business’ Owners and their Properties, are 
in compliance with all applicable laws. 

ITEM 2. 
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

Lukas Krause (Chief Executive Officer)  

Mr. Krause has been our Chief Executive Officer since our formation in June 2022, located in Broomfield, 
Colorado.  He has also been the Chief Executive Officer of Partners since June 2021, located in Broomfield, 
Colorado.  From March 2019 to June 2021, he was President and Chief Operating Officer at National 
Corporate Housing, located in Greenwood Village, Colorado.  From February 2012 to March 2019, he was 
Chief Executive Officer at Real Property Management, located in Salt Lake City, Utah. 

Kyle Gjersee (Vice President of Development) 

Mr. Gjersee has been our Vice President of Development since our formation in June 2022, located in 
Broomfield, Colorado.  He has been a Managing Partner for JumpStart Franchise Services since January 
2016, located in Denver, Colorado.  He was a Franchise Developer at W.C. Franchise Developers from 
January 2018 to July 2022, located in Orange County, California.  From January 2013 to January 2018, he 
was Executive Vice President of Field Operations at WellBiz Brands, Inc., located in Highlands Ranch, 
Colorado. 

Lindsey Eller (Director of Location Support) 

Ms. Eller has been our Director of Location Support since our formation in June 2022, located in Broomfield, 
Colorado.  She has also been Director of Location Support at Partners since December 2020, located in 
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Broomfield, Colorado.  From May 2018 to December 2020, she was Manager of Location Development at 
Partners, located in Boulder, Colorado.  From May 2015 to May 2018, Ms. Eller was General Manager at 
SkyRun Condos LLC, located in Keystone, Colorado.   

Valerie Krause (Director of Franchise Development) 

Ms. Krause has been our Director of Franchise Development since April 2023, located in Broomfield, 
Colorado.  She was the Director of Franchise Development for Level 5 Capital Partners from October 2021 
to March 2023, located in Atlanta, Georgia.  From August 2020 to October 2021, she was the Vice President 
of Franchise Development for Storm Guard, located in Fort Worth, Texas.  From October 2018 to August 
2020, Ms. Krause was the Vice President of Franchise Development for Real Property Management, 
located in Salt Lake City, Utah. From December 2014 to October 2018, she was the Director of Franchise 
Development for Real Property Management, located in Salt Lake City, Utah. 

ITEM 3. 
LITIGATION 

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 4. 
BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.  

ITEM 5. 
INITIAL FEES 

Initial Franchise Fee 

You must pay us an initial franchise fee for a Business (the “Initial Franchise Fee”) based on the number of 
short-term rentals in your Designated Territory according to AirDNA data at the time of signing your License 
Agreement.  If your Designated Territory has 500 short-term rentals or less, the Initial Franchise Fee is 
$50,000.  If your Designated Territory has more than 500 short-term rentals, the Initial Franchise Fee is 
$70,000.  The Initial Franchise Fee is due and fully earned by us when you sign the License Agreement, 
and we do not offer any financing for the Initial Franchise Fee.  It is nonrefundable and is not credited 
against any other obligation you have to us.  If you are an existing SkyRun licensee converting your 
business to a SkyRun franchise we will not charge you an Initial Franchise Fee. 

The range of Initial Franchise Fees paid by our franchisees in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022 
was $45,000 to $65,000 per SkyRun franchise. 
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ITEM 6. 
OTHER FEES 

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 

Royalty Fee  Greater of 5% of monthly 
Gross Revenue or the 
Minimum Monthly Royalty 
Amount (Note 1)  

Payable monthly 
on the 20th day of 
the second month 
following the 
month in which 
the Gross 
Revenue was 
received 

(Note 1)  

Technology Fee Currently, $160 per month, 
plus an additional $8 per 
month per user over 8 users 
at a single Business 

Payable at same 
time as Royalty 
Fee   

(Note 2) 

Customer 
Service 
Relationship 
SAAS 

Currently, $1,200 to $2,400 
annually 

Upon invoice, 
billed monthly 

You must license our required 
customer service relationship 
software-as-a-service from our 
vendor, which may include us 
or our affiliate 

Marketing 
Services Fee  

1% of monthly Gross 
Revenue 

Payable at same 
time as Royalty 
Fee  

Marketing Services Fees 
received are deposited into the 
System Brand Fund. 

Grand Opening 
Program 

Up to $6,000 Upon demand (Note 3) 

Local Marketing 
Spend 

Currently, up to $12,000 per 
Term Year 

Upon demand (Note 4) 

Marketing 
Assistance Fee 

Currently, $100 per hour As incurred If you request additional 
marketing assistance that we 
agree to provide, you must pay 
us our current marketing 
assistance fee or if you 
request our assistance in 
customizing the page for your 
Business on our website. 

Mandatory and 
Optional 
Training Fees 

Currently, $180 per attendee 
per training session, plus 
travel and related expenses 

Before training 
begins 

(Note 5) 

Renewal Fee $5,000 Upon demand Payable only if you want to 
renew your franchise. 

Transfer Fee $10,000 Before you 
transfer your 
franchise 

Payable only if you seek to sell 
or transfer your Business or an 
interest in it or you. 
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 

Interest Lesser of 1.5% per month or 
highest rate of interest 
allowed by applicable law 

As incurred Payable on all overdue 
amounts. 

Late Payment 
Charge 

(Note 6)  As incurred Payable on all overdue 
amounts, in addition to 
interest. 

Audit Cost of audit Upon demand Payable only if we audit your 
records and the audit shows 
an understatement of at least 
2% of Gross Revenue for any 
period. 

Insurance 
Policies 

Amount of unpaid premiums 
plus our expenses for 
obtaining the policies 
required 

As incurred Payable only if you fail to 
maintain the types and limits of 
insurance that we require for 
your Business. 

Indemnification Varies As incurred You must reimburse us if we 
are sued or held liable for 
claims arising from your 
Business. 

Cost of 
Enforcement or 
Defense  

All costs including 
accounting and attorneys’ 
fees 

As incurred Payable only if we retain 
counsel following your breach 
of any obligation you have to 
us, or if we are successful in 
defending any claim you bring 
against us. 

All fees are paid to us and are nonrefundable (except as provided below).  All fees are uniform for all new 
franchisees. Existing franchisees and licensees who have signed earlier license agreements may have 
different fees.  Royalty Fees, Technology Fees, and Marketing Services Fees, and any other fees (except 
as provided below), are due on or before the 20th day of the second month following the month in which 
the Gross Revenue was received.  We may, upon at least 60 days’ prior notice to you, charge and collect 
any Royalty Fee, Technology Fee, and Marketing Services Fee or other fees on a more frequent basis, 
including weekly or monthly for the immediately prior month.  You must pay fees and other amounts due to 
us via electronic funds transfer or other means that we may require.  You must sign an agreement 
authorizing us to initiate debit entries and/or credit correction entries to a designated checking or savings 
account for payments of fees and other amounts payable to us and any interest that may be owing.  You 
will make the funds available to us for withdrawal by electronic transfer no later than the payment due date.  
A sample form of this authorization is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit H. 

“Gross Revenue” means all amounts, proceeds, fees, or revenue that you derive from any products or 
services offered to Owners or Guests in the operation of the Business, including all amounts, proceeds, 
fees, or revenue generated or collected whether by cash, check, or credit card or credit transaction. Gross 
Revenue also includes rental revenue, cleaning fees, booking fees, Guest damage waiver fees, travel 
insurance, pet fees, monthly management fees, maintenance services charges to Owners or Guests, and 
any local services up-sold to Owners or Guests (for example, revenue from porta-cribs, equipment rentals, 
side trips/activities, or concierge services). Gross Revenue does not include any amounts, proceeds, fees, 
or revenue related to any sales, use, or service taxes collected and paid to the appropriate taxing authority.    
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“Term Year” means the 12-month period starting on the effective date of your License Agreement (or 
successor license agreement), and each subsequent 12-month period thereafter, until the termination or 
expiration (without renewal) of your License Agreement (or successor license agreement). 

If your state, or any governmental body in your state, charges a tax on any fee you owe to us or to our 
affiliates, then you must pay an additional amount equal to the amount of this tax.  This does not apply to 
any federal or Colorado income taxes we or our affiliates have to pay. 

Notes 

Note 1. You must pay us a monthly Royalty Fee for each partial or full month equal to the greater 
of 5% of your monthly Gross Revenue from your Business or the applicable Minimum 
Monthly Royalty Amount.   

The “Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount” means the following: 

Term Year Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount 

1st Term Year $350 per month, except that the Minimum Monthly Royalty 
Amount is waived for the first 3 months of the term of the License 
Agreement 

2nd Term Year $750 per month 

3rd Term Year $1,500 per month 

4th Term Year $3,000 per month 

5th Term Year $5,000 per month 

If you renew your franchise and we grant you a successor license agreement (which will 
have an effective date starting on the expiration of your current License Agreement), the 
Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount for each Term Year under that successor license 
agreement will be $5,000 per month, adjusted annually at the start of each Term Year to 
reflect inflation during the previous Term Year according to the Consumer Price Index, All 
Urban Consumers (CPI-U), U.S. City Average, All Items (1982-84=100), published by the 
United States Department of Labor’s Bureau of Labor Statistics, or its successors.   

If you are an existing SkyRun licensee converting to our franchise model, we will honor the 
royalty amount in your agreement with our predecessor for the initial term of your License 
Agreement with us.   

Note 2. The Technology Fee is to offset our expenses incurred in implementing and supporting 
franchisee technology that we provide, which currently includes an email account for the 
Business and access to Google Workspace or similar service. We may change the 
Technology Fee on 30 days’ prior notice to you.  We may modify or terminate these 
technology services at any time.  You will still need to purchase or subscribe for various 
additional technology for your Business. If you are an existing SkyRun licensee converting 
to our franchise model, we will not charge you a Technology Fee during the initial term of 
your License Agreement with us.     

Note 3. You must spend a minimum of $6,000 on grand opening marketing and advertising of your 
Business within the first 3 months after you commence operation of your Business (the 
“Grand Opening Program”). You must obtain our approval of the Grand Opening Program 
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before implementation, and you must submit receipts of your Grand Opening Program 
expenditures. If you fail to spend the minimum required amount on the Grand Opening 
Program, you must contribute to the System Brand Fund the difference between what you 
actually spent on the Grand Opening Program and the minimum that you were required to 
spend on the Grand Opening Program. Indirect costs you incur in managing your local 
advertising campaigns, such as salaries and benefits of your employees, will not count 
towards these minimum expenditure requirements. Additionally, any costs you incur for 
advertising conducted at your Business, such as on-location materials and signage or 
banners, will not count towards these minimum expenditure requirements.  If you are an 
existing SkyRun licensee converting to our franchise model, this requirement will not be 
applicable to you.   

Note 4. In addition to the Grand Opening Program, once you commence operation of your 
Business, you must spend at least $12,000 per Term Year on approved local marketing 
activities (see Item 11).  You must obtain our approval of all local marketing activities before 
implementation, and you must submit receipts of your local marketing expenditures.  If you 
do not meet this yearly requirement by the end of any Term Year, you must contribute to 
the System Brand Fund the difference between what you actually spent on approved local 
marketing and the minimum that you were required to spend on approved local marketing 
during the past Term Year.  Indirect costs you incur in managing your local advertising 
campaigns, such as salaries and benefits of your employees, will not count towards these 
minimum expenditure requirements. Additionally, any costs you incur for advertising 
conducted at your Business, such as on-location materials and signage or banners, will 
not count towards these minimum expenditure requirements.  Amounts you spend for the 
Grand Opening Program discussed above will not count toward your monthly expenditure 
requirements. 

Note 5. We may periodically provide mandatory training, including if we determine you or your 
Manager are not meeting our standards, or if we require you to offer additional or different 
products or services from your Business.  If we provide it, you or one of your staff members 
that we approve must attend the training.  Any new Manager of your Business must 
complete our Initial Training Program before working at the Business.  We may periodically 
also provide optional training.  You must pay us our then-current training fee for these 
mandatory and optional trainings.  Our current training fee for these additional trainings is 
$180 per attendee per training session as we may require.  The cost for this training must 
be paid before the training begins. You are responsible for the travel and living expenses 
you and your employees incur in attending this training. 

Note 6. Subject to state law, we may terminate your License Agreement if you fail to pay any fees 
when due.  We may also, at our option, charge an additional late payment charge (in 
addition to interest) for any past due amounts. We will withhold and collect an additional 
5% of Gross Revenue for every 30 days that the amount is past due, which amount will 
escalate by 5% every 30 days the amount is past due. For example, if an account is 30 
days past due, we can elect to be paid an additional 5% of Gross Revenue (on top of the 
standard Royalty Fee and Marketing Services Fees).  If you are 90 days past due, you 
must pay us an additional 15% of Gross Revenue (on top of the standard Royalty Fee and 
Marketing Services Fees). This can occur up to 6 months past due. 
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ITEM 7. 
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

Type of Expenditure 
(Note 1) 

Low 
Amount 

High 
Amount 

Method of 
Payment 

When Due To Whom 
Payment is to 
be Made 

Initial Franchise Fee  
(Note 2) 

$50,000 $70,000 Lump sum Upon signing 
License 
Agreement 

Us 

Technology Fees – 3 
Months (Note 3) 

$480 $480 As incurred Monthly Us 

Additional Technology 
Services (Note 4) 

$600 $1,500 As incurred Monthly Vendors 

Technology Hardware 
(Note 5) 

$1,000 $3,000 As incurred Before opening Vendors 

Real Estate Costs (Note 6) $0 $500 As incurred As incurred Vendors 

Furniture, Fixtures, and 
Supplies (Note 7) 

$1,500 $2,500 As incurred Before opening Vendors 

Training Expenses  
(Note 8) 

$2,500 $3,000 As incurred As incurred Vendors 

Business Licenses and 
Permits and Professional 
Fees 

$3,000 $5,000 As incurred As incurred Vendors and 
government 
agencies 

Insurance (Note 9) $600 $1,200 As incurred As incurred Vendors 

Grand Opening Program 
(Note 10) 

$6,000 $6,000 As incurred As incurred Vendors or us 

Local Marketing – 3 
Months (Note 11) 

$3,000 $3,000 As incurred As incurred Vendors or us 

Additional Funds – 3 
Months (Note 12) 

$1,050 $5,000 As incurred As incurred Us, vendors, and 
government 
agencies 

Total (Note 13) $69,730  $101,180 

Notes 

Note 1. This table is an estimate of your initial investment to start a Business that you operate from 
a leased office space of about 200 square feet; you may, however, operate your Business 
from a home office. None of these payments are refundable (except as provided below). 
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These estimates are based on the experience of our affiliates in opening and operating 
company-owned SkyRun Businesses in Colorado.  If you are an existing SkyRun licensee 
converting to our franchise model, you will not incur many of these costs.     

Note 2. The Initial Franchise Fee is described in Item 5.   

Note 3. The Technology Fee is described in Item 6.  These estimates include the first 3 months of 
the current Technology Fees and assume you have less than 8 users in a single location.  

Note 4. In addition to the Technology Fee payable to us, we currently require that you subscribe to 
additional technology services from our approved vendors or that meet our specifications, 
depending on the technology service.  These estimates include the first 3 months of mobile 
telephone service and high-speed Internet service, as well as the first 3 months of the 
license fee for our required customer relationship management software-as-a-service 
(which costs $1,200 to $2,400 annually but is billed monthly typically after you start 
operations of your Business, payable to our required vendor, which may include us or our 
affiliate).  

Note 5. These estimates are for the computer and technology hardware that we require. You must 
purchase and use at a minimum, 1 mobile phone system with voicemail and 1 computer 
per person working for your Business.  All of these items must meet our specifications, 
including those related to model, brand, and functionality, but can be purchased from any 
vendor. 

Note 6. The high estimate is based on a Business operated from a leased office space of about 
200 square feet. Real estate costs depend on location, size, visibility, economic conditions, 
accessibility, competitive market conditions, and whether you are leasing or buying. Rent 
will vary depending upon the location of the premises and other related factors. The prepaid 
rent is usually nonrefundable. Our high estimate assumes you will lease space for your 
Business and these assumptions are based on our affiliate’s costs in leasing office spaces 
in Colorado; leasing costs will vary in other markets. If you choose to purchase, rather than 
rent, real estate on which a building suitable for your Business already is constructed or 
could be constructed, your real estate costs will be higher.  While we recommend that you 
operate your Business from a leased office space, you may operate your Business from a 
home office.  The low estimate is based on a Business operated from a home office.  

Note 7. These estimates are for the basic office furniture and other supplies, including office 
supplies and cleaning supplies, that you will initially need for your Business.  The low 
estimate assumed you are operating from your home and already have many of these 
items.   

Note 8. You, and your Manager if your Business is not owner-operated, must successfully 
complete Phase 1 of our Initial Training Program within 90 days after you sign the License 
Agreement but in any event before you commence operation of your Business.  Phase 2 
must be completed within 180 days after you sign the License Agreement.  We do not 
charge for the Initial Training Program for attendees attending the Initial Training Program 
together before you commence operation of your Business.  You must also pay for airfare, 
meals, transportation costs, salaries, benefits, lodging, and incidental expenses for all 
attendees.  The low estimate assumes only you, as the owner-operator of your Business, 
attend the Initial Training Program and that you either drive to training or obtain a 
discounted airfare and budget hotel accommodations.  The high estimate assumes you 
and 1 other attend the Initial Training Program together and that your travel costs are 
higher.  The Initial Training Program will be held in Colorado, virtually, or at another location 
we specify.  Your actual costs will vary depending on the distance to be traveled, your 
method of travel, and your personal circumstances.  Your costs will also be higher if you 
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have additional people attend this training, or if you have people attend a different training 
session than the one you attend. 

Note 9. Your insurance must meet our specifications, including type, amount, minimum 
deductibles, insurance carrier rating, additional insured designations, and subrogation 
waivers. We currently require you to carry commercial general liability insurance with a 
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $2,000,000 in the aggregate, 
covering all products and services offered through your Business and cyber risk coverage; 
commercial automobile liability insurance with a combined single limit for bodily injury and 
property damage of at least $1,000,000 each occurrence to include coverage for all owned, 
non-owned, and hired vehicles; worker’s compensation insurance complying with the law 
of the state(s) in which the Designated Territory is located; commercial umbrella 
liability/excess liability insurance with limits of not less than $2,000,000 in the aggregate.  
This estimate is for an initial deposit of 3 months for these insurance policies. 

Note 10. You must spend a minimum of $6,000 on the Grand Opening Program for your Business 
within the first 3 months after you commence operation of your Business.  You must obtain 
our approval of the Grand Opening Program before implementation, and you must submit 
receipts of your Grand Opening Program expenditures. If you fail to spend the minimum 
required amount on the Grand Opening Program, you must contribute to the System Brand 
Fund the difference between what you actually spent on the Grand Opening Program and 
the minimum that you were required to spend on the Grand Opening Program. Indirect 
costs you incur in managing your local advertising campaigns, such as salaries and 
benefits of your employees, will not count towards these minimum expenditure 
requirements. Additionally, any costs you incur for advertising conducted at your Business, 
such as on-location materials and signage or banners, will not count towards these 
minimum expenditure requirements.  This requirement is not applicable to a SkyRun 
licensee converting to the franchise model.    

Note 11. In addition to the Grand Opening Program, once you commence operation of your 
Business, you must spend at least $12,000 per Term Year on approved local advertising 
via local marketing campaigns and promotional programs and Internet advertising and 
Internet search engine campaigns.  You must obtain our approval of all local marketing 
activities before implementation, and you must submit receipts of your local marketing 
expenditures.  If you do not meet this yearly requirement by the end of any Term Year, you 
must contribute to the System Brand Fund the difference between what you actually spent 
on approved local marketing and the minimum that you were required to spend on 
approved local marketing during the past Term Year.  Indirect costs you incur in managing 
your local advertising campaigns, such as salaries and benefits of your employees, will not 
count towards these minimum expenditure requirements. Additionally, any costs you incur 
for advertising conducted at your Business, such as on-location materials and signage or 
banners, will not count towards these minimum expenditure requirements.  These 
estimates include the prorated minimum local advertising spend requirement for the first 3 
months of operation of your Business.  This requirement is not applicable to a SkyRun 
licensee converting to the franchise model.    

Note 12. This amount includes estimated operating expenses you should expect to incur during the 
first 3 months of operation of your Business, excluding any salary/distributions you may 
take and any fees payable to us.   

Note 13. This is only an estimate of your initial investment and is based on our estimate of costs and 
market conditions prevailing as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, and are 
based on our affiliates operating SkyRun Businesses in Colorado.  You should review 
these figures carefully with a business and a legal advisor before making any decision to 
purchase a franchise.  We do not offer financing for any part of the initial investment.  The 
availability and terms of financing will depend on factors like the availability of financing 
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generally, your credit worthiness, your relationship with local banks, your business 
experience, and any additional collateral you may offer to a lender to secure the loan.  Our 
estimates do not include any finance charges, interest, or debt service obligations. 

ITEM 8. 
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Required Specifications 

Most of the inventory and supplies, furniture, fixtures, and equipment, design and décor, branded items and 
signage, computer hardware and software, technology, marketing materials and methods, vehicles, 
insurance, and products you purchase for use or sale at your Business, must meet our specifications.  
Those specifications may include minimum standards for delivery, performance, design, appearance, and 
quality.  We will issue the specifications to you before you begin operating, or as they are updated.  We 
may include these specifications in the manual that we provide to you either hard copy or on-line, or we 
may issue them separately.  You must obtain our approval before you use any advertising materials you 
prepare, and before you establish any web page, social media, and/or social networking site, profile, 
account, or hashtag that refers to us, your Business, or the System.  

You can expect that the items you purchase to meet our specifications will represent approximately 20% of 
the total purchases you will make to begin operations.  Once you begin operating, we expect the items you 
purchase that meet our specifications will represent approximately 10% your total annual expenses. 

Required Purchases and Suppliers 

Although we have specifications for many of the items and services you will use in the operation of your 
Business we do not currently require you to purchase any items from a third party supplier we approve.  
However, we may do in the future.  You must license from our affiliate and use SkyTrax in your Business.  
SkyTrax is our affiliate’s proprietary software platform.  We do not currently charge any additional amounts 
for use of this platform but we can in the future.  This is the only property management platform or software 
you may use in the operation of your Business. You must also purchase from our required vendor, which 
may include us or our affiliate, our required customer relationship management software-as-a-service, 
which costs $1,200 to $2,400 annually.  

In the future we may designate other sole suppliers for items or services you must use in your Business.  
We, an affiliate or an unrelated third party may be a sole supplier.  In this situation, you will not be permitted 
to purchase the items or service from another party.   

We and our affiliates may sell products and services to you for use in your Business.  If we or our affiliates 
sell any of these items to you we and our affiliates expect to earn a profit on any items or services we sell 
to you.  As discussed above, we may require you to purchase products or services from suppliers we 
approve.  These suppliers may pay rebates or other amounts to us.  There are no caps or limitations on the 
amounts we may receive from suppliers as a result of franchisee purchases.  These amounts may be a flat 
fee or percentage amount based on purchases.  These suppliers may also provide us goods or services 
free or at reduced rates based on your purchases.  They may also provide us and our affiliates with credits 
on purchases we and our affiliates make from them based on the volume of purchases our franchisees 
make from them.   

In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, we received $1,500 from the sale or lease of required goods 
or services to franchisees which is approximately .88% of our total revenues of $170,722.  This information 
was taken from our audited financial statements.    

Our officers do not own any interest in any of our suppliers other than any affiliates of ours.    
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Technology 

You must purchase and use at a minimum, 1 mobile phone system with voicemail and 1 computer per 
person working for your Business.  You may also purchase a desk phone for additional functionality.  All of 
these items must meet our specifications, including those related to model, brand, and functionality, but 
can be purchased from any vendor.  You must subscribe to additional technology services and software 
from us or our affiliates or our approved vendors, or that meet our specifications, depending on the 
technology service; these services include mobile telephone service and high-speed Internet service, 
SkyTrax, and a customer relationship management software-as-a-service. 

Insurance 

Your insurance must meet our specifications, including type, amount, minimum deductibles, insurance 
carrier rating, additional insured designations, and subrogation waivers. Your insurance policies must name 
us as an additional named insured, and you must provide us a certificate of insurance before you commence 
operation of your Business. We currently require you to carry commercial general liability insurance with a 
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $2,000,000 in the aggregate, covering all 
products and services offered through your Business and cyber risk coverage; commercial automobile 
liability insurance with a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of at least $1,000,000 
each occurrence to include coverage for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles; worker’s compensation 
insurance complying with the law of the state(s) in which the Designated Territory is located; commercial 
umbrella liability/excess liability insurance with limits of not less than $2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

Approval of Alternative Specifications or Suppliers 

If you want to purchase or use items or services for your Business that differ from our specifications or from 
a supplier we have not approved (assuming we have designated an approved supplier for the item), you 
must notify us in writing.  If we request, you must submit samples and other information we require for 
testing or to otherwise determine whether the product, material, service, or supply meets our specifications 
and quality standards.  We do not impose any fee for our consideration.  

Although we do not make available the criteria we review when approving suppliers, we consider various 
factors including whether the product or service is consistent with our concept and brand; how the supplier 
and/or their products or services would enhance our brand; if the product or service is already available 
through other sources; would approval of another vendor enhance competition or dilute our ability to 
maximize pricing benefits for our franchisees; whether the product or service fits with our System; is the 
product of a commercial quality with a proven record of durability; and the supplier’s data privacy practices.  
If we approve an alternative supplier, the supplier must have a data privacy compliance plan that meets our 
specifications and all data privacy laws and regulations.  We will generally notify you of our approval or 
rejection within 90 days of our receipt of all the information and samples we request; if we do not notify you 
within this period, the supplier is deemed rejected.  If we revoke approval of any supplier or any item offered 
by a supplier, we will send you written notice of our revocation of an approved supplier or item, or update 
our manual accordingly.  

Negotiated Prices 

We may negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers and distributors of approved products for the 
benefit of our franchisees.  

Material Benefits 

We do not provide material benefits, such as renewing or granting additional franchises, based on your use 
of designated or approved suppliers.  



FDD (04/2023) 14 

Cooperatives 

We do not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives as of the issuance date of this Disclosure 
Document.  

ITEM 9. 
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS 

License Agreement 

This table list your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.  It will help you 
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of 
this Franchise Disclosure Document. 

Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document Item

a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease Section 9 Items 7 and 11 

b.  Pre-opening purchases/leases Sections 8 and 9 Items 7, 8, and 11 

c.  Site development and other pre-opening 
requirements 

Sections 8 and 9 Items 7 and 11 

d.  Initial and ongoing training Sections 8 and 9 Items 5, 6, and 11 

e.  Opening Sections 8 and 9 Items 7 and 11 

f.  Fees Sections 3 and 9 Items 5, 6 and 7 

g.  Compliance with standards and 
policies/operating manual 

Sections 5, 6, 8, and 9 Items 8, 11, 15, and 16 

h.  Trademarks and proprietary information Sections 5, 6, and 7 Items 13 and 14 

i.  Restrictions on products/services offered Sections 4 and 9 Items 8, 11, and 16 

j.  Warranty and customer service 
requirements 

Sections 5, 8, and 9 Items 6 and 16 

k.  Territorial development and sales 
quotas 

Not applicable Not applicable 

l.  Ongoing product/service purchases Sections 5 and 9 Items 5, 6, and 8 

m.  Maintenance, appearance, and 
remodeling requirements 

Sections 5 and 9 Items 5 and 6 

n.  Insurance Section 10 Items 7 and 8 

o.  Advertising Sections 8 and 9 Items 5, 6, 7, and 11 
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Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document Item

p.  Indemnification Section 10 Item 6  

q.  Owner’s participation/ 
management/staffing 

Section 9 Item 15  

r.  Records and reports Section 9 Not applicable 

s.  Inspections and audits Sections 6.8 and 9 Item 6 

t.  Transfer Section 13 Items 6 and 17 

u.  Renewal Section 11 Items 6 and 17 

v.  Post-termination obligations Section 12 Item 17 

w.  Non-competition covenants Section 14 Items 15 and 17 

x.  Dispute resolution Section 15 Item 17 

y.  Other: Guaranty of franchise obligations Guaranty (which follows 
the License Agreement) 

Item 15 

SkyTrax Subscription Agreement 

This table list your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.  It will help you 
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of 
this Franchise Disclosure Document. 

Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document Item

a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease Not applicable Not applicable 

b.  Pre-opening purchases/leases Not applicable Not applicable 

c.  Site development and other pre-opening 
requirements 

Not applicable Not applicable 

d.  Initial and ongoing training Not applicable Not applicable 

e.  Opening Not applicable Not applicable 

f.  Fees Not applicable Not applicable 

g.  Compliance with standards and 
policies/operating manual 

Sections 1 and 2 Items 8 and 11 

h.  Trademarks and proprietary information Sections 1, 4, and 5 Not applicable 

i.  Restrictions on products/services offered Not applicable Not applicable 
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Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document Item

j.  Warranty and customer service 
requirements 

Sections 6 and 7 Not applicable 

k.  Territorial development and sales 
quotas 

Not applicable Not applicable 

l.  Ongoing product/service purchases Not applicable Not applicable 

m.  Maintenance, appearance, and 
remodeling requirements 

Section 1.4 Not applicable 

n.  Insurance Not applicable Not applicable 

o.  Advertising Not applicable Not applicable 

p.  Indemnification Section 8 Item 6  

q.  Owner’s participation/ 
management/staffing 

Not applicable Not applicable 

r.  Records and reports Not applicable Not applicable 

s.  Inspections and audits Not applicable Not applicable 

t.  Transfer Section 13 Item 17 

u.  Renewal Not applicable Not applicable 

v.  Post-termination obligations Section 3.4 Item 17 

w.  Non-competition covenants Not applicable Not applicable 

x.  Dispute resolution Section 16 Item 17 

ITEM 10. 
FINANCING 

We do not offer direct or indirect financing.  We do not guarantee your note, lease, or obligation.

ITEM 11. 
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance. 

Pre-Opening Assistance 

Before you commence operation of your Business, we or our designee will: 
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1. Define the Designated Territory for your Business (License Agreement – Section 4). 

2. Provide the Initial Training Program (License Agreement – Section 8). 

3. Loan you a copy of our Operations Manual, which contains various information including mandatory 
and suggested specifications, standards, and procedures (License Agreement – Section 8).  We 
may provide the Operations Manual electronically only. We may modify any manual periodically in 
our discretion.  As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, our Operations Manual 
contains 254 pages.  A copy of the table of contents of our Operations Manual is attached to this 
Disclosure Document as Exhibit C.   

4. Provide you marketing collateral, as well as web and digital templates, which may include post-stay 
emails for Guests, collateral templates for post cards, Owner presentations, and printed materials 
for real estate agents (License Agreement – Section 8). 

5. Provide your Business a subdomain or subpage on our or our affiliate’s website, along with a 
template for the content of the subdomain or subpage (License Agreement – Section 8).   

6. License you access to SkyTrax, our proprietary software platform (License Agreement – Section 8 
and SkyTrax Subscription Agreement). 

7. Provide you with a list of specifications and approved suppliers for certain equipment, supplies, and 
services for your Business (License Agreement – Section 8.3).   

Post-Opening Assistance 

During the term of the License Agreement, we or our designee will: 

1. Provide annual and quarterly planning and review meetings (License Agreement – Section 8). 

2. Provide additional optional training at your request and expense and additional required training at 
your expense as needed (License Agreement – Section 8).  

3. Provide reasonable telephone or website chat access to our personnel to provide you consultative 
advice in starting and managing your Business (License Agreement – Section 8). 

4. Maintain and administer the System Brand Fund (License Agreement – Section 3.4). 

5. Provide additional marketing assistance that you request and which we agree to provide if you pay 
us our current Marketing Assistance Fee (License Agreement – Section 9.2). 

6. Provide you marketing collateral, which may include post-stay emails for Guests, collateral 
templates for post cards, Owner presentations, and printed materials for real estate agents (License 
Agreement – Section 8). 

7. Provide forms and templates which you may use or modify for your Business, as we direct (License 
Agreement – Section 8). 

8. License you access to SkyTrax, our proprietary software platform (License Agreement – Section 8 
and SkyTrax Subscription Agreement). 

9. Upon your request, and at your expense, update the information on your Business subdomain or 
subpage located on our or our affiliate’s website (License Agreement – Section 8).   
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10. Provide you access to the SkyRun phone system for inbound and outbound free calling when using 
the SkyRun desk phone to local phone numbers and from the SkyRun 877 number (License 
Agreement – Section 8). 

11. Provide you with a list of the specifications and approved suppliers (if any) for certain equipment, 
supplies, and services for your Business (License Agreement – Section 8.3).   

12. Sell to you equipment, supplies, inventory, and other services required for your Business, as we 
may make available (License Agreement – Section 8).  

Training 

Initial Training Program 

You, and your Manager if your Business is not owner-operated, must successfully complete our Initial 
Training Program (License Agreement – Sections 8.1 and 9).  We break our Initial Training Program into 2 
phases.  In Phase 1 you will complete the subjects described in the table below through Operations and 
Accounting.  In Phase 2 you will complete the remainder of the subjects.  Phase 1 of the Initial Training 
Program must be started within 30 days of the date you sign your License Agreement and completed to 
our satisfaction within 90 days of the date you sign your License Agreement.  Phase 2 must be completed 
to our satisfaction within 180 days from the date you sign your License Agreement.   

The portions of the Initial Training Program that are not at your location will usually be conducted in 
Colorado at a location we specify (typically at our headquarters, in a conference room, or at one of our 
affiliate’s locations), or virtually, as we determine.  This training will be held on an as-needed basis as we 
sell franchises.  We do not charge for the Initial Training Program for attendees attending the Initial Training 
Program together before you commence operation of your Business.  You will be responsible for all travel 
and living expenses you and your attendees incur in attending the training.  If you or any other attendee fail 
to complete the Initial Training Program to our satisfaction, we may terminate the License Agreement and 
we will not reimburse the Initial Franchise Fee.    

Our Initial Training Program as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document consists of approximately 
8 to 10 days of training.  A breakdown of the Initial Training Program is as follows: 

INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM 

Subject Hours of Classroom 
Training 

Hours of On-The-
Job Training 

Location 

Introduction to SkyRun 7-8 0 Colorado 

Homeowner Recruitment 7-8 0 Colorado 

Marketing 2 0 Colorado or virtually 

Reservations and Guest 
Services 

7-8 3-4 Colorado 

Operations and Accounting 7-8 3-4 Colorado 

Property Onboarding 3-4 3-4 Virtually 

Revenue Management 3-4 0 Virtually 
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INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM 

Subject Hours of Classroom 
Training 

Hours of On-The-
Job Training 

Location 

Metrics and KPIs 2 0 Virtually 

Total Training Time 38 to 44 hours 9 to 12 hours 

The classroom training will be held in a conference room or office setting, or virtually.  The on-the-job 
training will be held at one of the SkyRun Businesses owned by our affiliate or another franchisee. The 
instructors in charge of our Initial Training Program are Lindsey Eller and Susan Graber.  Ms. Eller is our 
Director of Location Support, and has been with our affiliates and predecessor since 2015 as a property 
manager before becoming the Director of Location Support of SkyRun Partners LLC in December 2020. 
Ms. Graber has been with our affiliates and predecessors since 2017 as a property manager.  Ms. Watkins 
and Ms. Graber have approximately 8 and 6 years of experience respectively in the property management 
field.  

Our Operations Manual and various presentations will be used as the instructional materials during the 
Initial Training Program.    The Initial Training Program is provided to protect our brand and trademarks, not 
to control the day-to-day operation of your Business. 

Additional Training 

Any new Manager must attend and successfully complete our Initial Training Program within 30 days of the 
start of employment or when they begin managing your Business, whichever is earlier (License Agreement 
– Section 8).  Each of these trainings is provided at the locations and times we specify. We charge $180 
per attendee for this training. The cost for this training must be paid before the training begins. You are 
responsible for the travel and living expenses you and your employees incur in attending this training. 

We may periodically also provide mandatory training (License Agreement – Section 8.1).  If we provide it, 
you or one of your staff members that we approve must attend or complete the training.  We may periodically 
also provide optional training (License Agreement – Section 8.1).  These additional trainings will be held 
periodically depending upon the need for the training.  You must pay us our then-current training fee for 
these mandatory and optional trainings.  Our current training fee for these additional trainings is $180 per 
attendee per training session as we may require.  The cost for this training must be paid before the training 
begins. You are responsible for the travel and living expenses you and your employees incur in attending 
this training.

Site Selection and Opening 

When you sign a License Agreement, you will receive the right to operate a single Business serving a single 
Designated Territory, and which will be located and operated from an office space or home office that is 
approved by us. Before you commence operation of your Business, we will provide general guidelines to 
you for the selection of sites for your Business, and review any proposed sites you select.  It will, however, 
be your obligation to select the site for your Business and to obtain our approval (License Agreement – 
Section 9.1).  You must submit to us information and materials we require and obtain our approval of the 
site. The factors we take into consideration when reviewing a site include the location and proximity of the 
site to the demographics of the surrounding area, whether the site is on a main thoroughfare, size and type 
of the proposed premises, and the proximity of the site to your Designated Territory.  We do not conform 
the premises to local ordinances and building codes or obtain any required permits for you, and we do not 
construct, remodel, or decorate the premises.  If we have not approved a location for your Business within 
30 days of the execution of the License Agreement we can terminate your License Agreement and retain 
all amounts you have paid to us and our affiliates, if any (License Agreement – Section 9.1).    
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You may not commence operation of your Business until: (1) we notify you in writing that all of your pre-
opening obligations have been fulfilled; (2) you and your Manager (if your Business is not owner-operated) 
have completed Phase 1 of our Initial Training Program to our satisfaction and you certify that you have 
provided all of your employees with the training we require; (3) you have furnished us with copies of all 
insurance policies and certificates required by the License Agreement, or other documentation of insurance 
coverage and payment of premiums we request; (4) you notify us that all approvals and conditions in the 
License Agreement have been met; (5) you have obtained all required permits and licenses; and (6) we 
have launched a website for your Business.  You must commence operation of your Business within 90 
days of the date you sign your License Agreement (License Agreement – Section 9.1).  If you do not, we 
can terminate your License Agreement and retain all amounts you have paid to us.  You will commence 
operation of your Business after you successfully complete Phase 1 of the Initial Training Program as 
described below.  

We estimate that the typical length of time between signing of the License Agreement and commencing 
operation of your Business will be between 45 and 90 days.  However, it may take you longer than this 
period to find and list your first Properties.  Some factors that may affect this timing include how long it takes 
you to select a suitable site for your Business, how long it takes you to complete our Initial Training Program, 
any shortages or delays in obtaining any supplies and inventory, whether, your ability to secure any 
necessary licenses, permits, insurance coverage, and financing, and the time it takes to find your first 
Properties. 

Advertising/Marketing 

System Brand Fund 

Under the License Agreement, you must contribute a monthly Marketing Services Fee to the SkyRun 
system-wide brand fund (the “System Brand Fund”).  The Marketing Services Fee is 1% of monthly Gross 
Revenue from the prior month.  All our franchisees contribute to the System Brand Fund, and the SkyRun 
businesses we or our affiliates own will also contribute to the System Brand Fund while our franchisees are 
contributing to the System Brand Fund.  SkyRun licensees who have converted to our franchise model may 
pay a different System Brand Fund depending upon the terms of their prior agreement with our predecessor. 

We account for the contributions to the System Brand Fund separately from our other revenues, and we do 
not use them to pay any of our general operating expenses other than our costs of administering the System 
Brand Fund and for creative services, including salaries and overhead of the individuals performing these 
tasks.  The purpose of the System Brand Fund is to develop and implement marketing programs and 
materials that benefit the SkyRun brand and promote the Marks.  This means we may use monies in the 
System Brand Fund for any purpose that promotes the SkyRun name, including the creation, production, 
and placement of commercial advertising; to pay for agency costs and commissions; to pay the costs to 
create and produce video, audio, and written advertisements; to pay for direct mail and other media 
advertising, including radio and Internet advertising, Internet search engine campaigns, email marketing 
campaigns, and the cost to maintain and update our or our affiliate’s websites and web pages, and for 
social media, and social networking sites, profiles and accounts, for the cost of search engine optimization; 
in-house staff assistance and related administrative costs; local and regional promotions and programs 
including System sales training; customer relationship and engagement programs; public relations 
campaigns including the cost of retaining public relations firms; market research; and other advertising and 
marketing activities (License Agreement – Section 3.4).   

We may create marketing materials in-house or use national, regional, and local agencies.  Advertising 
may be placed in local, regional, or national media of our choice, including print, direct mail, electronic and 
online advertising, radio, or television.  We do not guarantee that expenditures from the System Brand Fund 
will benefit you or any other franchisee directly, on a pro rata basis, or at all.  It is our responsibility to 
determine how these monies are spent.  We are not required to use monies in the System Brand Fund to 
benefit any individual market.  However, we will not spend any portion of these monies for advertising 
principally designed to solicit the sale of franchises.  In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, 28% of 
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expenditures from the System Brand Fund were on advertising, 17% on advertising production, 1% on 
public relations, 35% on Internet/SEO, and 19% on Systems sales training.  

Any unused amounts in the System Brand Fund in any calendar year will be carried over to the following 
year.  We will use any interest the System Brand Fund earns for marketing before we use any principal.  At 
your request, we will make available to you an annual accounting for the System Brand Fund that shows 
how the System Brand Fund proceeds were spent for the previous year, but these statements will not be 
audited.  We may, but have no obligation to, loan amounts to the System Brand Fund and can determine 
the repayment obligation of the System Brand Fund, including interest rate of the loan and repayment terms, 
as we see fit. 

We do not have an advertising council that advises us on advertising policies.  If we form one, we anticipate 
it will only be advisory, as we will make all final decisions as to the use of the System Brand Fund. 

Local Marketing 

Grand Opening Program 

You must spend a minimum of $6,000 on the Grand Opening Program for your Business within the first 3 
months after you commence operation of your Business (License Agreement – Section 9.2). You must 
obtain our approval of the Grand Opening Program before implementation, and you must submit receipts 
of your Grand Opening Program expenditures. If you fail to spend the minimum required amount on the 
Grand Opening Program within the timeframe discussed above, you must pay us the difference between 
what you actually spent on the Grand Opening Program and the minimum that you were required to spend 
on the Grand Opening Program and we will put it in the System Brand Fund. Indirect costs you incur in 
managing your local advertising campaigns, such as salaries and benefits of your employees, will not count 
towards these minimum expenditure requirements. Additionally, any costs you incur for advertising 
conducted at your Business, such as on-location materials and signage or banners, will not count towards 
these minimum expenditure requirements.   

Local Advertising Spend Requirement 

In addition to the Grand Opening Program, once you commence operation of your Business, you must 
spend at least $12,000 per Term Year on approved local advertising via local marketing campaigns and 
promotional programs, direct mail, email campaigns, Internet advertising, and Internet search engine 
campaigns (License Agreement – Section 9.2).  You must obtain our approval of all local marketing 
activities before implementation, and you must submit receipts of your local marketing expenditures.  If you 
do not meet this yearly requirement by the end of any Term Year, you must pay us the difference between 
what you actually spent on approved local marketing and the minimum that you were required to spend on 
approved local marketing during the past Term Year and we will put it into the System Brand Fund. Indirect 
costs you incur in managing your local advertising campaigns, such as salaries and benefits of your 
employees, will not count towards these minimum expenditure requirements. Additionally, any costs you 
incur for advertising conducted at your Business, such as on-location materials and signage or banners, 
will not count towards these minimum expenditure requirements.  Amounts you spend for the Grand 
Opening Program discussed above will not count toward your monthly expenditure requirements. 

Any local marketing must be limited to your Designated Territory, unless we otherwise approve.  You must 
obtain our prior approval of all local advertising and marketing you engage in for your Business, whether in 
your Designated Territory or elsewhere (if approved by us).  Your use of the Marks and other materials 
identifying our brand must be consistent with our approved standards.  You may not use the Marks or other 
materials identifying our brand on items to be sold or services to be provided without our prior written 
approval.  You may not establish, or have established for you, any websites, hashtags, profiles, or accounts 
that refer to us, your Business, or to the System, unless we otherwise approve (License Agreement – 
Section 6.3).  You are ultimately responsible for ensuring that your advertising and marketing complies with 
all applicable laws before implementing it.   
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Advertising Cooperatives 

Although we can require you to, we do not currently require our franchisees to participate in a local or 
regional advertising cooperative.  If we do, we will define the area of membership of the cooperative and 
determine how much you must contribute to the cooperative.  If we establish a cooperative in a market 
serviced by Businesses we or our affiliates own, they will participate in the cooperative too.  We will be 
responsible for administering any cooperatives.  We do not anticipate any cooperatives will operate from 
governing documents or prepare annual or periodic financial statements, but if they do, we will make them 
available to you upon request.  We have the power to form, change, dissolve, or merge these cooperatives.    

Technology 

Technology Hardware 

You must purchase and use at a minimum, 1 mobile phone system with voicemail and 1 computer per 
person working for your Business.  You may also purchase a desk phone for additional functionality.  All of 
these items must meet our specifications, including those related to model, brand, and functionality, but 
can be purchased from any vendor.  You will use the computer to access SkyTrax, perform accounting 
functions, complete forms and reporting, maintain financial information, produce reports, email 
correspondence with Owners and Guests, us, and others, and access any other computer software we 
require for the Business.  

We estimate the total cost to purchase the required items above to be approximately $1,000 to $3,000.  We 
do not have any obligation to upgrade or maintain these items.  Although most new computers come with 
a limited warranty we are not aware of any third parties with an obligation to upgrade or maintain these 
items. 

Technology Services 

The computers discussed above must contain the computer software we require, including Google 
Workspace.  The software is not proprietary to us.  Some of the software will come preinstalled on a 
computer.  You must pay us a Technology Fee (see Item 6).  We will also provide you with access and you 
must use SkyTrax, our proprietary software platform.  You will use this software for reservation 
management accounting, operational tracking and billing, to create custom metrics and reporting, and to 
assist with pricing.  You must also subscribe to additional technology services and software that meet our 
specifications; these services currently include mobile telephone service and high-speed Internet service, 
SkyTrax, and a customer relationship management software-as-a-service.  For programs that are not 
preinstalled, you will need to purchase them and install them on your computer.  You must renew your 
software licenses as required.  We estimate the cost for the above computer software and additional 
technology services to be $2,400 to $6,000 per year.  

Ongoing Maintenance and Use 

We are not obligated to provide you with ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades, or updates to the 
technology discussed above.  We may require you to upgrade or update your technology during the term 
of the franchise (License Agreement – Section 9.11).  We do not have any contractual obligation to upgrade 
or update any of your hardware or software during the term of this franchise. 

You must have access to the Internet and maintain an email account that allows us to communicate with 
you on a regular basis.  We can independently access your electronic information and data (including any 
information or data provided or used through SkyTrax or our or our affiliate’s website), and collect and use 
this electronic information and data in any manner we choose without any compensation to you.  There is 
no contractual limitation on our right to receive or use information we obtain from you.  You must protect 
yourself from viruses, computer hackers, and other communication and computer-related problems. 
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ITEM 12. 
TERRITORY 

When you sign a License Agreement, you will receive the right to operate a single Business serving a single 
Designated Territory.   

You will not receive an exclusive territory.  You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets 
that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. 

Designated Territory 

When we approve the site for your Business, we will also grant you a territory within which you must operate 
your Business.  We refer to this territory as the “Designated Territory” and we describe it in your License 
Agreement.  Depending upon the amount of your Initial Franchise Fee, your Designated Territory will 
generally cover an area with up to 300 short-term rental properties in it or approximately 1,000 short-term 
rental properties, in all cases based on available AirDNA data at the time of signing your License 
Agreement.  However, the exact size will depend upon various factors including natural boundaries like 
highways and bodies of water, the demographics of the area, including the number of short-term rental 
properties in the area, whether your Business is located in or near an urban, suburban, or rural area or 
tourist or resort attractions, and the size of your Business.  Your Designated Territory will not change even 
if the number of short-term rentals or population in your Designated Territory change.   

We prefer, but do not require, that your Business be operated from a location within your Designated 
Territory. Other SkyRun franchisees or we or our affiliates may be operating their or our Businesses from 
locations within your Designated Territory.  However, as long as you are in compliance with your License 
Agreement and any other agreements with us and any of our affiliates, we will not operate or grant a third 
party the right to operate a residential vacation property management and rental business under the 
SkyRun® or SkyRun® Vacation Rentals marks that services, lists, or rents Properties that are physically 
located in your Designated Territory.   

Other than this limitation there are no other prohibitions on us in your Designated Territory.  We can acquire 
businesses which may service, list, or rent residential rental properties within your Designated Territory, or 
sell our business, whether through a sale of assets or stock, to anyone, regardless whether they operate 
or franchise the operation of businesses similar to your Business.  We can operate or allow others to operate 
similar or identical businesses that service, list, or rent Properties that are physically located outside of your 
Designated Territory under the SkyRun® or SkyRun® Vacation Rentals marks or under any other 
trademarks even if the businesses compete with your Business in your Designated Territory.  We can also 
operate or allow others to operate businesses inside the Designated Territory under any marks, including 
the SkyRun® or SkyRun® Vacation Rentals marks, if the businesses do not provide residential vacation 
property management or rental services.    

Restrictions within Designated Territory 

You may only service, list, and rent Properties that are physically located within your Designated Territory.  
Other franchisees or Businesses we or our affiliates own may solicit or serve Owners who are physically 
located in your Designated Territory as long as they or we are not servicing, listing, or renting Properties 
that are physically located within your Designated Territory.  However, you cannot solicit Owners via the 
Internet, telemarketing, or other direct marketing efforts unless we approve of those efforts, and generally 
those activities must be limited to your Designated Territory. In any event, all of your advertising and 
marketing must be approved by us, and you must obtain our written approval before you establish any 
website, web page, or social networking or social media site, profile, account or hashtag, relating to or 
making reference to us, your Business, the Marks, or the System. You may not offer for sale, lease, or rent 
any Properties through any other channels of distribution, other than through us or our approved distribution 
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channels, without our prior written consent. We do not pay any compensation for soliciting or accepting 
orders from customers. 

Relocation 

You must obtain our approval before you relocate the site of your Business.  We will allow you to relocate 
the site of your Business if the new site meets our other then-current requirements for a site.   

Options and Rights of First Refusal 

You will not receive any options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional franchises.  You 
may not operate an additional Business, whether in your Designated Territory or elsewhere, unless you 
acquire additional franchise rights from us and sign another License Agreement.   

Competing Brands 

Neither we, nor our affiliates, offer franchises under different trademarks that sell goods and services that 
are similar to those you will offer from your Business.  

ITEM 13. 
TRADEMARKS 

Principal Marks 

The License Agreement gives you the right to operate a Business under the trade names, trademarks, and 
service marks that we establish.  Our affiliate, Partners, has registered the following service mark on the 
Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”), which we consider our 
principal Mark: 

Mark Registration Number Registration Date 

SkyRun 3511691 October 7, 2008 

We obtained the rights to use the principal Mark and all other marks, logos, commercial symbols, and other 
intellectual property owned by our affiliate, and to license others to use these items, under an Intellectual 
Property License Agreement dated July 8, 2022, between us and our affiliate, Partners. Under the terms of 
that Intellectual Property License Agreement, our affiliate may continue to operate businesses under these 
or other Marks, provided it does not operate a residential vacation property management and rental 
business under the SkyRun® or SkyRun® Vacation Rentals marks that services, lists, or rents Properties 
that are physically located in any Designated Territory granted to any of our franchisees. We are not 
restricted in any way in which we use these items and the length of the Intellectual Property License 
Agreement is indefinite. We therefore essentially have all the rights as the owner of the intellectual property 
to license others to use the intellectual property. If this Intellectual Property License Agreement were 
terminated you would have to stop using the Marks and all other intellectual property licensed to us under 
the Intellectual Property License Agreement. 

All affidavits required to preserve and renew the principal Mark disclosed above have or will be filed.  There 
are no currently effective material determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, 
the trademark administrator of any state or any court, any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation 
proceedings, or any pending material litigation involving any of our Marks which are relevant to the use of 
these Marks.  No currently effective litigation affects our use or rights in any of these Marks. No currently 
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effective agreement limits our right to use or license the use of these Marks and we do not know of any 
infringing uses that could materially affect your use of these Marks.  

You must follow our standards when you use our Marks.  You may not use any of our Marks alone or with 
modifying words, designs, or symbols as part of a corporate or business name or in any form on the Internet, 
including but not limited to URLs, domain names, hash tags, e-mail addresses, locators, links, metatags, 
or search techniques.  You may not use any of our Marks for the sale of any unauthorized product or service 
or in a manner we have not authorized in writing.  

We have an obligation to protect and maintain your rights to use the Marks against encroachment, misuse, 
or unauthorized use or against any challenges to any rights of use.  You must notify us immediately when 
you learn about an infringement of or challenge to your use of these Marks.  We may take the action 
necessary, in our sole discretion, to prevent the unauthorized use of the Marks, including bringing actions 
against third parties regarding the use of any of the Marks, but the Franchise Agreement does not require 
us to take any specific affirmative action.  We will control any administrative proceedings or litigation 
involving the Marks.  You must cooperate with us and take all actions we require to carry out the defense 
or prosecution.  We are not required to defend you against a claim based on your use of the Marks. 

We may change the Marks and require you to adopt new marks as if they were part of the Franchise 
Agreement at the time you sign it.  You must comply with these changes immediately after we notify you 
that we have discontinued, modified, or changed one or more of the Marks.  You must pay all amounts you 
incur to make these changes.  We will have no liability or obligation because of the discontinuation, 
modification, or change.  You must not directly or indirectly contest the validity of the Marks or our right to 
use or license the Marks, trade secrets, confidential information, or business techniques that are part of our 
System.  You must use the designations of ®, TM, and SM in advertising and promotions using the Marks, 
as we designate. 

ITEM 14. 
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

There are no patents or pending patent applications that are material to the purchase of a franchise. We 
claim copyright protection for our Operations Manual and to advertising and promotional materials, forms, 
and related materials that we produce, but we have not registered any of these materials with the Copyright 
Office of the Library of Congress.  These materials are proprietary and confidential and are our property.  
You may use them only as long as you are a franchisee, and only as provided in your License Agreement.  

There are currently no effective determinations of the United States Copyright Office, USPTO, or any court 
regarding any of our copyrighted materials, nor are any proceedings pending, nor are there any currently 
effective agreements between us and third parties pertaining to our copyrighted materials that will or may 
significantly limit your use of our copyrighted materials.  We are not aware of any infringing uses of these 
materials that could materially affect your use of these materials.  We are not required by any agreement 
to protect or defend our copyrights.  

We will be disclosing to you certain information we believe to be confidential or proprietary information and 
trade secrets, including our products and services, software, marketing and pricing methods, and other 
methods and techniques.  This will be included in our training, Operations Manual, and in materials we may 
separately provide you.  You may use these materials, in the manner we approve, in the operation of your 
Business during the duration of your License Agreement.  However, you may not use these materials in 
any other way for your own benefit, or communicate or disclose them to, or use them for the benefit of, any 
other person or entity.  These materials include all trade secrets, knowledge or know-how, confidential 
information, advertising, marketing, designs, plans, or methods of operation.  You may disclose this 
information to your Manager and staff but only to the extent necessary to operate the Business, and then 
only while your License Agreement is in effect. 
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ITEM 15. 
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE 

IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

We prefer that you participate personally, on a full-time basis, in the operation of your Business.  If you do 
not your business must be directly supervised by a Manager but you will still be responsible for the operation 
of the Business.  You or one of your majority owners if you are not an individual can hold this position.  You 
and your Manager (if your Business is not owner-operated) must have successfully completed our Initial 
Training Program.  Your Manager does not need an ownership interest in your Business but must sign non-
competition and confidentiality agreements that restrict them to the same extent as you are restricted under 
the License Agreement.  

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership or you transfer your License Agreement to 
a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership, you and any other owners must sign a personal 
guaranty of all obligations under the License Agreement. This personal guaranty also includes an 
agreement to be bound by the confidentiality and noncompete provisions of the License Agreement.  

ITEM 16. 
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must offer the products and services we specify, and you may not sell other products or services 
through your Business without our prior written approval. You cannot operate other businesses from your 
Business.    

We can also limit the type of products or services you may sell.  We can change the products or services 
we allow you to offer at any time.  You must follow our policies, procedures, methods, and techniques and 
comply with all of our mandatory standards and specifications when providing products or services through 
your Business.  We can also implement pricing policies, such as maximum price policies, and minimum 
advertised price policies, and you must abide by these policies.  

You may only list for rent Properties physically located within your Designated Territory. You cannot solicit 
Owners via the Internet, telemarketing, or other direct marketing efforts unless we approve of those efforts, 
and generally those activities must be limited to your Designated Territory. In any event, all of your 
advertising and marketing must be approved by us, and you must obtain our written approval before you 
establish any website, web page, or social networking or social media site, profile, account or hashtag, 
relating to or making reference to us, your Business, the Marks, or the System. You may not offer for sale, 
lease, or rent any Properties through any other channels of distribution, other than through us or our 
approved distribution channels, without our prior written consent. 

Membership, Gift Card, Loyalty, and Rewards Programs 

We may periodically develop and implement membership, rewards, loyalty, and pre-paid programs for 
Guests.  If we set up a membership, rewards, loyalty, or pre-paid program for Guests, we may require you 
to honor the terms and conditions of these programs for Property booking through your Business.  You 
must also participate in all gift card, gift certificate, and coupon or promotional programs we establish, and 
honor the terms and conditions of these programs through your Business. We will provide in our manuals 
our current policies and practices for allocating funds generated from the sale or redemption of gift cards, 
gift certificates, and reward or loyalty points that involve multiple Businesses. You may not create or issue 
your own gift cards, gift certificates, or rewards or loyalty programs, or other coupon or promotional 
programs.  We may modify, change, or discontinue these programs at any time and without notice to you. 
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ITEM 17. 
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

License Agreement 

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements.  You should 
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document. 

Provision Section in License 
Agreement 

Summary 

a.  Length of the 
franchise term 

Section 11.1 5 years 

b.  Renewal or 
extension of the 
term 

Section 11.2 If you are in good standing and you meet our 
conditions, you can renew your franchise for an 
additional 5-year period. 

c.  Requirements for 
you to renew or 
extend 

Section 11.2 Give written notice; sign successor license agreement 
(which may contain materially different terms and 
conditions than your original License Agreement); 
upgrade your Business and update your technology to 
comply with then-current standards; sign general 
release; pay Renewal Fee. 

d.  Termination by 
you 

Section 12.1 You may terminate only if we default and do not cure 
our default after receiving notice from you. 

e.  Termination by 
us without cause 

None Not applicable. 

f.  Termination by us 
with cause 

Section 12 We may terminate only if you default. 

g. “Cause” defined – 
curable defaults 

Section 12.3 Most defaults are curable and you will have 30 days to 
cure (10 days for monetary defaults), subject to state 
law variations. 

h. “Cause” defined – 
non-curable defaults 

Section 12.3 You fail to commence operation of the Business within 
90 days of the date of your License Agreement; you 
abandon the Business; you or any of your owners are 
convicted of, or plead guilty or no contest to, certain 
crimes; you lose a license or permit necessary to 
operate the Business; you maintain false books or 
records or submit any false or misleading application, 
statement, or report to us; you commit a default 2 or 
more times within a 12 month period (whether or not 
cured); you misuse the Marks or materially impair the 
value of, or the goodwill associated with the Marks or 
the System; the SkyTrax Subscription Agreement 
terminates or expires for any reason; or failure to fully 
fund any trust accounts required by us. 
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Provision Section in License 
Agreement 

Summary 

i.  Your obligations 
on termination/non-
renewal 

Section 12.6 Stop operating the Business, stop using our names and 
the Marks, the System of Operation, and SkyTrax, 
return information to us, and pay all amounts you owe 
us. You must also cease servicing all Owners and 
Properties within your Designated Territory and transfer 
all Owner accounts to us. 

j.  Assignment of 
contract by us 

Section 13.1 No restriction on our right to assign. 

k. “Transfer” by you 
– defined 

Section 13.2 Includes transfer of the License Agreement or 
Business, or transfer of majority control of the License 
Agreement or of the Business. 

l.  Our approval of 
transfer by 
franchisee 

Section 13.2 We must approve all transfers, but will not withhold our 
consent if all of the requirements for the transfer are 
met. 

m.  Conditions for 
our approval of 
transfer 

Section 13.3 Transferee must meet our requirements, including 
having all necessary licenses or permits to operate a 
Business and sign a new license agreement on our 
then-current form for the remaining term of your 
License Agreement (the new license agreement will 
start the Royalty Fee based on your Term Year at the 
time of transfer, but we will not require the transferee to 
pay us a new initial franchise fee). You must also pay a 
Transfer Fee and sign a release (subject to state law).  

n.  Our right of first 
refusal to acquire 
your business 

Section 13.4 We can match any offer for your Business or an interest 
in the Business, including a sale between owners or 
between an owner and you. 

o.  Our option to 
purchase your 
business 

None Not applicable. 

p.  Your death or 
disability 

Section 13.3 Your heirs can assume your rights, but if they do, they 
must meet the transfer requirements. 

q.  Non-competition 
covenants during the 
term of the franchise 

Section 14.1 No involvement in any residential vacation property 
management or residential vacation rental business. 

r.  Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is 
terminated or 
expires 

Section 14.2 For 2 years, no involvement in any residential vacation 
property management or rental business that is located, 
renting or managing properties, or otherwise operating 
within your Designated Territory or the designated 
territory of any other SkyRun Business. You must 
cease servicing all Owners and Properties within your 
Designated Territory and transfer all Owner accounts 
and Property listings to us.  
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Provision Section in License 
Agreement 

Summary 

s.  Modification of 
the agreement 

Section 17 No modifications without consent by both you and us, 
but our manuals are subject to change. 

t.  Integration/merger 
clause 

Section 17 Only the terms of the License Agreement and other 
written agreements are binding (subject to applicable 
state law).  Any representations or promises outside of 
this disclosure document and the License Agreement 
may not be enforceable. 

u.  Dispute 
resolution by 
arbitration or 
mediation 

Section 15 Except for certain disputes, all disputes must be first 
mediated, and if not settled by mediation, are then 
subject to litigation. 

v.  Choice of forum Section 15 Subject to state law, litigation must be in Colorado.  

w.  Choice of law Section 17 Subject to state law, Colorado law generally applies. 

SkyTrax Subscription Agreement 

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements.  You should 
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document. 

Provision Section in SkyTrax 
Subscription 
Agreement 

Summary 

a.  Length of the term Section 3 Continues until terminated, including upon 
termination or expiration of the License Agreement 

b.  Renewal or extension 
of the term 

None Not applicable. 

c.  Requirements for you 
to renew or extend 

None Not applicable. 

d.  Termination by you Section 3.3(b) Either of us may terminate the SkyTrax 
Subscription Agreement if the other party 
materially breaches the SkyTrax Subscription 
Agreement, which breach is not cured within 10 
business days. 

e.  Termination by us 
without cause 

Section 3.3(a) and 
3.3(c) 

Terminates automatically upon termination or 
expiration of the License Agreement; upon 90 
days’ prior notice to you; or our relationship with a 
third party partner who provides software, content, 
data, or other technology we use to provide 
SkyTrax expires, terminates or requires us to 
change the way we provide the SkyTrax. 
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Provision Section in SkyTrax 
Subscription 
Agreement 

Summary 

f.  Termination by us with 
cause 

Section 3.3(c) We may terminate if you default. 

g. “Cause” defined – 
curable defaults 

Section 3.3(b) Either of us may terminate the SkyTrax 
Subscription Agreement if the other party 
materially breaches the SkyTrax Subscription 
Agreement, which breach is not cured within 10 
business days. 

h. “Cause” defined – non-
curable defaults 

Section 3.3(c) You adversely impact the SkyTrax platform or you 
breach the SkyTrax Subscription Agreement or 
License Agreement. 

i.  Your obligations on 
termination/non-renewal 

Sections 3.4 and 9 Stop using SkyTrax and comply with post-
termination provisions, including indemnification 
and confidentiality provisions.  You must also 
provide us with all customer/client information, lists 
and other information we request and assign to us 
all customer/client accounts and all outstanding 
property management service agreements and 
customer agreements, and take all other actions 
we require to facilitate the assignment of all 
accounts and agreements to us, including 
transferring any deposits you are holding in 
connection with these accounts or agreements. 

j.  Assignment of contract 
by us 

Section 13 No restriction on our right to assign. 

k. “Transfer” by you – 
defined 

Section 13 Includes transfer of the SkyTrax Subscription 
Agreement or Business. 

l.  Our approval of 
transfer by franchisee 

Section 13 You may not transfer, assign, or delegate the 
SkyTrax Subscription Agreement except as part of 
an approved assignment of the franchise under 
the License Agreement. 

m.  Conditions for our 
approval of transfer 

None Not applicable. 

n.  Our right of first 
refusal to acquire your 
business 

None Not applicable. 

o.  Our option to 
purchase your business 

None Although we have no purchase option, you must 
assign to us all customer/client accounts and all 
property management service agreements and 
customer agreements upon the termination or 
expiration of your Franchise Agreement with us. 
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Provision Section in SkyTrax 
Subscription 
Agreement 

Summary 

p.  Your death or 
disability 

None Not applicable. 

q.  Non-competition 
covenants during the 
term of the franchise 

None Not applicable. 

r.  Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated or 
expires 

None Not applicable. 

s.  Modification of the 
agreement 

Section 21 No modifications without consent by both you and 
us, but the SkyTrax platform is subject to change. 

t.  Integration/merger 
clause 

Section 21 Only the terms of the SkyTrax Subscription 
Agreement and other written agreements are 
binding (subject to applicable state law).   

u.  Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Section 16 All disputes are subject to litigation. 

v.  Choice of forum Section 16 Subject to state law, litigation must be in Colorado. 

w.  Choice of law Section 16 Subject to state law, Colorado law generally 
applies. 

ITEM 18. 
PUBLIC FIGURES 

We currently do not use any public figure to promote the sale of franchises. 

ITEM 19. 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial 
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the 
information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document.  Financial performance 
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the 
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the 
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a 
particular location or under particular circumstances. 

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial 
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets.  We also do not authorize our employees or 
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing.  If you are purchasing an 
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet.  If you receive any 
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other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the 
franchisor’s management by contacting Lukas Krause at 390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, 
Colorado 80021 and 970-660-4422, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory 
agencies. 

ITEM 20. 
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

Table No. 1 
Systemwide Outlet Summary 

For Years 2020 to 2022 (Note 1) 

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Start 
of the Year 

Outlets at the End of 
the Year 

Net Change 

Franchised (Note 2) 2020 14 19 +5 

2021 19 21 +2 

2022 21 22 +1 

Company-Owned (Note 3) 2020 6 6 0 

2021 6 6 0 

2022 6 6 0 

Total Outlets 2020 20 25 +5 

2021 25 27 +2 

2022 27 28 +1 

Note 1.  The numbers for each year are as of December 31.  

Note 2. This includes 4 outlets that are licensees of our predecessor, SkyRun Partners LLC, but 
are included in this Item 20 as they are substantially similar to the franchises we offer under 
this Disclosure Document. 

Note 3.  These outlets are owned by our predecessor and by our affiliates.  

Table No. 2 
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners 

For Years 2020 to 2022 (Note 1) 

State Year Number of Transfers 

Colorado 2020 1 

2021 0 

2022 0 



FDD (04/2023) 33 

State Year Number of Transfers 

Total 2020 1 

2021 0 

2022 0 

Note 1. The numbers for each year are as of December 31.  The franchised outlets are licenses of 
our affiliate, SkyRun Partners LLC, but are included in this Item 20 as they are substantially 
similar to the franchises we offer under this Disclosure Document. 

Table No. 3 
Status of Franchised Outlets 

For Years 2020 to 2022 (Note 1) 

State Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Term-
inations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations – 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
of Year 

Arizona 2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

California 2020 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2021 2 0 1 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Colorado 2020 7 0 0 0 0 0 7 

2021 7 0 0 0 1 0 6 

2022 6 1 1 0 0 0 6 

Florida 
(Note 2) 

2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

Montana 2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 
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State Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Term-
inations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations – 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
of Year 

South 
Carolina 

2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Tennessee
(Note 2) 

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Texas 
(Note 2) 

2020 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2022 3 3 2 0 0 0 4 

Utah 2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Vermont 2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Wisconsin 
(Note 2) 

2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Total 2020 14 5 0 0 0 0 19 

2021 19 4 1 0 1 0 21 

2022 21 5 4 0 0 0 22 

Note 1. The numbers for each year are as of December 31.  

Note 2. Each of these states includes 1 outlet that is a licensee of our predecessor, SkyRun 
Partners LLC, but are included in this Item 20 as they are substantially similar to the 
franchises we offer under this Disclosure Document.  
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Table No. 4 
Status of Company-Owned Outlets 

For Years 2020 to 2022 (Notes 1 and 2) 

State Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Outlets 
Reacquired 

from 
Franchisee 

Outlets 
Closed 

Outlets Sold 
to 

Franchisee 

Outlets at 
End of 
Year 

Colorado 2020 4 0 0 0 0 4 

2021 4 0 1 0 0 5 

2022 5 0 0 0 0 5 

Florida 2020 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2021 2 0 0 0 1 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Total 2020 6 0 0 0 0 6 

2021 6 0 1 0 1 6 

2022 6 0 0 0 0 6 

Note 1. The numbers for each year are as of December 31.

Note 2. These outlets are owned by our affiliates.  

Table No. 5 
Projected Openings 

As of December 31, 2022 (Note 1) 

State License Agreements 
Signed But Outlet Not 

Opened 

Projected New 
Franchised Outlet in 
the Next Fiscal Year 

Projected New Company-
Owned Outlet in the Next 

Fiscal Year 

California 0 3 0 

Florida 0 5 0 

Nevada 0 2 0 

New Mexico 0 0 1 

Texas 0 2 0 

Total 0 12 1 

Note 1. While we are looking for prospective franchisees in the states listed above, we cannot know 
in advance where we might find prospects.  We will add franchises wherever we find 
qualified prospects.  
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The SkyRun Businesses owned by our affiliates are listed in Exhibit D.  We or our predecessor had 4 
franchisees who have had a License Agreement terminated, canceled, not renewed, or who otherwise 
voluntarily or involuntarily, ceased to do business under the License Agreement during the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022, or who had not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this 
Disclosure Document, which are listed in Exhibit D.  During the last 3 fiscal years, no current or former 
franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences 
as a franchisee in our franchise system.  If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed 
to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.  

We have not created, sponsored, or endorsed any franchise organization and no independent franchisee 
organization has asked to be included in this Disclosure Document. 

ITEM 21. 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit E is a copy of our audited financial statements for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2022. We were organized on June 28, 2022.  We have not been in business for 
3 years and therefore cannot provide 3 years of financial statements.  

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit E is a copy of our Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss 
Statement as of and for the 2-month period ended February 28, 2023. These financial statements have 
been prepared without an audit. Prospective franchisees or sellers of franchises should be advised that no 
independent certified public accountant has audited these figures or expressed an opinion with regard to 
their content or form.  

ITEM 22. 
CONTRACTS 

The following agreements and other required exhibits are attached to this Disclosure Document: 

Exhibit A. Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A are state specific addenda to the 
Disclosure Document, if any.  

Exhibit F. Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit F is a copy of the form License Agreement; 
state specific addenda to the License Agreement, if any; Statement of Ownership and 
Management; and form of a Guaranty to be signed by shareholders of a corporate 
franchisee, members of a limited liability company franchisee, or partners of a partnership 
franchisee.  Also attached is a transfer form if you want to sell, assign, or transfer your 
License Agreement to a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership you own; and 
an example of a release you must sign if you want to sell, assign, or transfer your License 
Agreement to an unrelated third party or to an entity or partnership you do not own or 
control.  

Exhibit G. Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit G is a copy of the form SkyTrax 
Subscription Agreement for the sublicense of SkyTrax. 

Exhibit H. Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit H is a copy of a sample Electronic Transfer 
of Funds Authorization authorizing us to initiate one-time, weekly, and/or monthly ACH 
debit and credit entries against your bank account for amounts that become due and 
payable by you to us or any affiliate. 
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Exhibit I. Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit I is a Franchisee Questionnaire you must 
complete at the time you purchase a franchise.  

ITEM 23. 
RECEIPTS 

The last 2 pages of this Disclosure Document are detachable documents acknowledging receipt of this 
Disclosure Document.  Please sign both receipt pages and return one to us. 



EXHIBIT A 
STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA 

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 



STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all SkyRun franchises offered 
and sold in the state of California:  

The California Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of California or if your business 
will be located in California. 

1. The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial 
Protection and Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement 
by the commissioner. 

2. The California Franchise Investment Law requires that a copy of all proposed agreements relating 
to the sale of the franchise be delivered together with the disclosure document.  

3. Item 3 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following paragraph: 

Neither SkyRun Franchising Limited, nor any person described in Item 2 of the Disclosure 
Document, is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or 
national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a 
et seq. suspending or expelling such persons from membership in such association or exchange.  

4. Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by the insertion of the following:  

California Business and Professions Code sections 20000 through 20043 establish the rights of 
the franchisee concerning termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If the license 
agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.  

The license agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be 
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. § 101 et seq.).  

The license agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination 
of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.  

The license agreement requires application of the laws of Colorado. This provision may not be 
enforceable under California law.  

5. Our website has not been reviewed or approved by the California Department of Financial 
Protection and Innovation.  Any complaints concerning the content of this website may be directed 
to the California Department of Financial Protection and Innovation at www.dfpi.ca.gov. 

6. The highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% annually. 

7. California civil Code Section 1671 restricts or prohibits the imposition of liquidated damage 
provisions. 

8. You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations 
Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California 
Corporations Code §§31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code §20010 voids a 

waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code §§20000 
through 20043).   



9. The license agreement contains a waiver of punitive damages and jury trial provisions.  These 
waivers may not be enforceable in California.  

10. No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any claim 
of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance on or the 

right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other 
person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee’s 

investment. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in 
connection with the franchise. 



STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE HAWAII FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all SkyRun® franchises offered 
and sold in the state of Hawaii: 

The Hawaii Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Hawaii or if your business will be 
located in Hawaii. 

1. The SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise Disclosure Document is currently registered (or exempt 
from franchise registration) in the states of:  California, Hawaii, Michigan, Minnesota, Rhode Island, 
and Virginia, and Wisconsin. 

2. The states in which SkyRun Franchising Limited’s Franchise Disclosure Document is or will be 
shortly on file:  California, Hawaii, Michigan, Minnesota, Rhode Island, and Virginia, and Wisconsin. 

3. No state has refused, by order or otherwise, to register the SkyRun®  franchise. 

4. No state has revoked or suspended the right to offer SkyRun® franchises.   

5. SkyRun Franchising Limited has not withdrawn the proposed registration of the SkyRun® 
Franchise Disclosure Document in any state.   

6. The state cover page of the SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise Disclosure Document is 
amended to include the following: 

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE 
STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR 
ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY 
THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED 
HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. 

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY 
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR 
SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE 
FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS 
PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, 
WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE OFFERING CIRCULAR, TOGETHER WITH A COPY 
OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE. 

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL 
PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE 
REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND 
OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE. 



STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all SkyRun® franchises offered 
and sold in the state of Minnesota:  

The Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Minnesota or if your business 
will be located in Minnesota. 

1. Items 5 and 7 of the FDD are amended to include the following: 

“Based upon the Franchisor’s financial condition, the Minnesota Department 
of Commerce has required a financial assurance.  Therefore, all initial 
franchise fees owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the business 
opens.” 

2.   In Item 17 it is disclosed that litigation must be in Colorado and that Colorado law generally 
applies to our agreements.  However, Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 
2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring 
waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or 
judgment notes.  In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate 
or reduce any of franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or franchisee’s 
rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

3.  We will comply with Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14, subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, except 
in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) 
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the Agreement, and that consent to the transfer of the franchise 
will not be unreasonably withheld. 

4. Item 13 is revised to include the following language: 

To the extent required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, we will protect your 
rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logo types or other 
commercial symbols related to the trademarks or indemnify you from any 
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding 
the use of the trademarks, provided you are using the names and marks in 
accordance with the Franchise Agreement. 

5. Item 17(c) and 17(m) are revised to provide that we cannot require you to sign a release 
of claims under the Minnesota Franchise Act as a condition to renewal or assignment. 

6.  We are prohibited from requiring you to assent to a release, assignment, novation or waiver 
that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22, 

provided that the foregoing shall not bar the voluntary settlement of disputes. 

7.  We will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.17 Subd. 5 with respect to limitation of 

claims.   

8.  NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute Section 604.113, which puts a limit of $30 

on service charges. 



9.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 

claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 

franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 

10.  Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that, with respect to 

such provision, the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act are met independently 
without reference to this Addendum.  



STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE RHODE ISLAND FRANCHISE INVESTMENT ACT 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all SkyRun® franchises offered 
and sold in the state of Rhode Island:  

The Rhode Island Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Rhode Island or if your 
business will be located in Rhode Island. 

1. The following sentence is added to Item 17: 

“Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act 
provides that: “A provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction 
or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the 
laws of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable 
under this Act.” 

2. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum. 
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE VIRGINIA RETAIL FRANCHISING ACT 

In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising 
Act, the Franchise Disclosure Document for SkyRun Franchising Limited for use in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia shall be amended as follows:   

1. The following language is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17 (e), entitled 
“Termination by us without cause”: 

“Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a 
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause.  If any ground for default or 
termination stated in the franchise agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” 
as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchise Act or the laws of Virginia, 
that provision may not be enforceable.” 

2. The page Special Risk(s) to Consider about This Franchise is amended with the addition 
of the following: 

“4.  Estimated Initial Investment.  The franchisee will be required 
to make an estimated initial investment ranging from $69,730 to 
$101,180. This amount exceeds the franchisor’s member’s 
deficient as of December 31, 2022, which is $49,043.” 

3. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 

claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 

franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 

4. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that, with respect to 

such provision, the jurisdictional requirements of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act are met independently 
without reference to this Addendum. 
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE WISCONSIN FAIR DEALERSHIP LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all SkyRun franchises offered 
and sold in the state of Wisconsin:  

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies to most franchise agreements in the state and prohibits 
termination, cancellation, non-renewal or substantial change in competitive circumstances of a 
dealership agreement without good cause.  The law further provides that 90 days prior written 
notice of the proposed termination, etc. must be given to the dealer.  The dealer has 60 days to 
cure the deficiency and if the deficiency is so cured the notice is void.  The Disclosure Document 
and License Agreement are hereby modified to state that the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, to 
the extent applicable, supersedes any provisions of the License Agreement that are inconsistent 
with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wis. Stat. Ch. 135.   

Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, 
that the jurisdictional requirements of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law are met independently, without 
reference to this Addendum. 
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EXHIBIT B 
LIST OF STATE AGENCIES AND 

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

State State Administrator Agent for Service of Process 

California Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation  

2101 Arena Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Tel: 1-866-275-2677 (toll free) 
Email: Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov 

Commissioner of Financial Protection 
and Innovation 

2101 Arena Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Tel: 1-866-275-2677 (toll free) 

Connecticut Securities and Business Investment 
Division 
Connecticut Department of Banking 

260 Constitution Plaza 
Hartford, CT 06103 

Tel: 860-240-8230 

Florida Department of Agriculture & Consumer 
Services 
Division of Consumer Services 

Mayo Building, Second Floor 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0800 

Tel: 850-245-6000 

Georgia Office of Consumer Affairs 

2 Martin Luther King Drive, S.E. 
Plaza Level, East Tower 
Atlanta, GA 30334 

Tel: 404-656-3790 

Hawaii Hawaii Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 

King Kalakaua Building 
335 Merchant Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI 96813  

Tel: 808-586-2744 

Illinois Franchise Division 
Office of the Attorney General 

500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62706 

Tel: 217-782-4465 
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State State Administrator Agent for Service of Process 

Indiana Securities Commissioner 
Indiana Securities Division 

302 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 

Tel: 317-232-6681 

Indiana Secretary of State 

200 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 

Iowa Iowa Securities Bureau 
Second Floor 

Lucas State Office Building 
Des Moines, IA 50319 

Tel: 515-281-4441 

Kentucky Kentucky Attorney General’s Office 
Consumer Protection Division 

1024 Capitol Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40602 

Tel: 502-696-5389 

Louisiana Department of Urban & Community 
Affairs 
Consumer Protection Office 

301 Main Street, 6th Floor 
One America Place 
Baton Rouge, LA 70801 

Tel: 504-342-7013 (gen. info.)  
Tel: 504-342-7900 

Maine Department of Business Regulations 

State House - Station 35 
Augusta, ME 04333 

Tel: 207-298-3671 

Maryland Office of the Attorney General 
Maryland Division of Securities 

200 St.  Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202 

Tel: 410-576-7786 

Maryland Securities Commissioner 

Same Address 

Tel: 410-576-6360 
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State State Administrator Agent for Service of Process 

Michigan Michigan Department of Attorney 
General 
Consumer Protection Division 
Antitrust and Franchise Unit 

G.  Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
525 W.  Ottawa Street 
Lansing, MI 48909 

Tel: 517-373-7117 

Michigan Department of Commerce 
Corporations and Securities Bureau 

Same Address 

Minnesota Minnesota Department of Commerce 

85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St.  Paul, MN 55101 

Tel: 651-296-6328 

Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce 

Same Address 

Tel: 651-539-1600 

Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance 

1526 K Street, Suite 300 
Lincoln, NE 68508 
P.O.  Box 95006 
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-5006 

Tel: 402-471-2171 

New 
Hampshire 

Attorney General 
Consumer Protection and Antitrust 
Bureau 

State House Annex 
Concord, NH 03301 

Tel: 603-271-3641 

New York NYS Department of Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 

28 Liberty St. 21st Fl 
New York, NY 10005 

Tel: 212-416-8222 

New York Secretary of State 

One Commerce Plaza 
99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor 
Albany, New York 12231-0001 

Tel: 518-473-2492 

North Carolina Secretary of State’s Office/Securities 
Division 

2 South Salisbury Street 
Raleigh, NC 27601 

Tel: 919-733-3924 
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State State Administrator Agent for Service of Process 

North Dakota North Dakota Securities Department 

600 East Boulevard Avenue 
State Capitol – 14th Floor, Dept. 414 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 

Tel: 701-328-4712 

North Dakota Securities Commissioner 

Same Address 

Ohio Attorney General 
Consumer Fraud & Crime Section 
State Office Tower 

30 East Broad Street, 15th Floor 
Columbus, OH 43215 

Tel: 614-466-8831  
Tel: 800-282-0515 

Oklahoma Oklahoma Securities Commission 

2915 Lincoln Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73105 

Tel: 405-521-2451 

Oregon Department of Insurance and Finance 
Corporate Securities Section 

Labor and Industries Building 
Salem, OR 96310 

Tel: 503-378-4387 

Rhode Island Rhode Island Department of Business 
Regulation 
Securities Division 

1511 Pontiac Avenue 
John O.  Pastore Center – Building 68-2 

Cranston, RI 02920 

Tel: 401-222-3048 

Director, Rhode Island Department of 
Business Regulation 

Same address 

South Carolina Secretary of State 

P.O.  Box 11350 
Columbia, SC 29211 

Tel: 803-734-2166 
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State State Administrator Agent for Service of Process 

South Dakota Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Insurance 
Securities Regulation 

124 S.  Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, SD  57501 

Tel: 605-773-3563 

Texas Secretary of State 
Statutory Documents Section 

P.O.  Box 12887 
Austin, TX 78711-2887 

Tel: 512-475-1769 

Utah Utah Department of Commerce 
Consumer Protection Division 

160 East 300 South (P.O.  Box 45804) 
Salt Lake City, UT 84145-0804 

Tel:  801-530-6601 
Fax:  801-530-6001 

Virginia State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail 
Franchising 

1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 

Tel: 804-371-9051 

Clerk of the State Corporation 
Commission 

1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Washington Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 

PO Box 9033 
Olympia, WA 98507 

Tel: 360-902-8760 

Director, Dept. of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 

150 Israel Road SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 

Wisconsin Wisconsin Dept. of Financial Institutions 
Division of Securities 

4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower 
Madison, WI 53705 

Tel: 608-266-8557 

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities 

Same Address 
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EXHIBIT C 
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF 

OPERATIONS MANUAL



vUftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

W\UdhYf?cbY?LQWURGXFWLRQ?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

an{�ny?d��}|�r?n{q?c�tn{v�n�v|{?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

S>=<;:9;8?7=86?869?X54;36=29?V=23>12059?V130:9;8?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

_kx�kv?a�xo|}rsz?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

Uyww�xsmk~syx?kxn?`y~s/mk~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

e.-d0;?f95:=;1>1<-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

hur?jnpn�v|{?fr{�ny?]{q�����?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGL

,4348=1;?59;84>?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

S?T|sop?Zs}~y|�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

f-+92?1*?h4348=1;?d9;84>2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

?>=<;>:@98<76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

q75843@f8<76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

g42761<741@n>8?7>1=76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

q75843@f8<76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

V9:1<54+6=32?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

[;)0285-?f59;)2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

fro?eu�d�x?Szz|ykmr?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

U1:+4;-?Z=2815-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

_=22=1;?e8489:9;8?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

c04>=8-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

h4>09?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

e95,=39?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

Y�uvpny?g�n{qn�q�?B?`rtny?fr�}|{�vovyv�vr�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JI

W�zom~k~syx}?kxn?^oqkv?do{�s|owox~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

XVV?4;)?X54;36=29?S<599:9;8FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

[;)9+9;)9;8>-?a7;9)?4;)?a+95489)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

f54)9?e935982?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

U1;*=)9;8=4>=8-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

U64;<9?1*?S))5922?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ



UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

vv

e-289:?U1:+>=4;39?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

X54;36=299?f54=;=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

V�n{q?Y�}rp�n�v|{�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JM

irk~?~y?W�zom~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

i648?i9?W(+938?a*?j10?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

U15+15489?U1;84382?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN

S++9;)=(?^=;.2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN

W\UdhYf?hkc?IUDQFKLVH$VWDUWXS?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

[r{r�ny?[�vqryv{r�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

Xy|wsxq?~ro?T�}sxo}}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

f-+92?1*?T02=;922?W;8=8=92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

s4=173@q1;176@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

a;4;3;@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

L?e89+2?81?[;315+15489?4?T02=;922?=;?U4;4)4?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

al~ksxsxq?^smox}o}?kxn?Xy|w}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

d737>;0K@q1;17K@a8/41:K@k/4=5=?;0@;43@j85;0@j=574676@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

e~y|sxq?domy|n}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

[x}�|kxmo?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

S))=8=1;4>?`4:9)?[;2059)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

b51+958-?d9+>439:9;8?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

i15.952?U1:+9;248=1;?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

Z1:917;952?4;)?e6158E895:?d9;84>?[;2054;39?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

es~o?eovom~syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

a**=39?d9'0=59:9;82?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

[xs~skv?W{�szwox~?bkmukqo?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

a8<?/17>@q8.1-;>7@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

r8806K@a07;4=4,@c+/=?<741K@m..=57@q/??0=76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

Y0928?e0++>=92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

T�}sxo}}?Smmy�x~?eo~?gz?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

W�~o|sy|?esqxkqo?A?Y|kzrsm}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

Zovz?Vo}u?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

Z17?81?e0&:=8?4?Z9>+?f=3.98?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

5>7;17@:8/>@;558/41@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPP



vvvUftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

r9>77@-;:6@18@6/*<=1@;@970?@1=5)71@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPP

j88)=4,@.8>@970?./0@=4.8><;1=84@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPP

[f?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

gr@675/>=1:@*761@?>;51=576@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

e0++158?e95,=392?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

bk�|yvv?A?Zd?eo~Egz?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

X|kxmrs}oo?f|ksxsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

a;<1=;<?f54=;=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

W\UdhYf?h\fYY?DFFRXQWLQJ$*$ILQDQFH?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

Yoxo|kvv�?Smmoz~on?Smmy�x~sxq?b|km~smo}?BYSSbC?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

S3310;8=;<?T928?b5438=392FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

X=;4;3=4>?b5=,43-?4;)?U1;*=)9;8=4>=8-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

?S3310;84&=>=8-?4;)?f54;2+459;3-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

U1;2=289;3-?4;)?e84&=>=8-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

b>4;;=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

Xsxkxmskv?_kxkqowox~?fo|wsxyvyq�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

Smmy�x~sxq?dyvo}?kxn?do}zyx}slsvs~so}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

X54;36=299?a&>=<48=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

X54;36=215?e0++158?d1>92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

S3310;8=;<?X=5:?d92+1;2=&=>=8=92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

eyp~�k|o?domywwoxnk~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

Upp|�{�v{t?[�vqn{pr?n{q?d�|pr��r�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGO

Smmy�x~sxq?b|ymon�|o}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

W(+9;292?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

V4=>-?%?b95=1)=3?S3310;8=;<?f42.2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

b;=0:@_558/41=4,@r;6)6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

i99.>-?S3310;8=;<?f42.2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

_1;86>-?%?c045895>-?S3310;8=;<?f42.2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

k84190:@_558/41=4,@r;6)6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

k84190:@(@o/;>17>0:@_558/41=4,@r;6)6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

W;)?1*?j945?T11..99+=;<?f42.2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

w7;>@c43@_558/41=4,@r;6)6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPT

eu�f|k�?Smmy�x~sxq?X�xm~syx}?A?Ssn}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN



UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

v�

X=;4;3=4>?X>17?1*?d9295,48=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN

d9295,48=1;?d9*0;)2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIO

p767>2;1=84@a;45700;1=846@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPV

a7;95?S)$028:9;82?%?b4-:9;82?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIP

m-47>@;558/41@;3'/61<7416@;>7@/673@18MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPW

_3'/61<741@a;17,8>=76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPW

V9+12=8?d9+1582?%?X=;4>=#48=1;?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIP

p75845=07@_00@n;:<7416@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPW

a>73=1@a;>3@`;159@p7?8>16@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPW

q/<<;>:@p7?8>16@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPX

d=4;0=&;1=84@p7?8>16@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPX

_32;4573@p767>2;1=84@n;:<7416@p7?8>16@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPX

q;076@r;%@p7?8>16@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPX

Z1:917;95?f4(?[;31:9?V130:9;82?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJH

S))=8=1;4>?S3310;8=;<?S=)2?%?e.-f54(?X0;38=1;2Gd9+1582?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJH

q):r>;%@d/451=846@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM QO

_558/41=4,@_=36@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM QO

dozy|~sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

U1:+>=4;39?d9'0=59:9;82?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

Uy|zy|k~o?bk�wox~}?BXVVC?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

X992?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

[x�ox~y|�?b|ymo}}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJK

U6458?1*?S3310;82?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJK

Uk}r?Xvy�?bvkxxsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJL

do~ksxsxq?A?e~y|sxq?domy|n}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJL

d9315).99+=;<?T928?b5438=392FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJM

bk�|yvv?A?Zd?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJM

b59*9559)?h9;)152?%?e-289:2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJM

f|kx}km~syx}?A?Smmoz~on?bk�wox~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJN

a>73=1@a;>36@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQU

fk�?dozy|~sxq?A?bk�wox~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJN

X|k�n?b|o�ox~syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJN

e9+4548=1;?1*?V08=92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJO



�UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

W\UdhYf?Zcif?PDUNHWLQJ?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

duvy|�|}u�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

fk|qo~?Vowy?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

U0281:95?V9:1<54+6=3?b51*=>92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

Yykv}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

^okn}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

_k~o|skv}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

U15+15489?S++51,4>?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

hoxny|}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

W�zoxns~�|o}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

an�xr�v{t?c�tn{v�n�v|{?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGM

`48=1;4>?,2"?^134>?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

_k|uo~sxq?Sn�ymk~o?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

`k~syxkv?Sn}?X�xn?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

^ymkv?_k|uo~sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

eu�d�x?b|ows�w?_k|uo~sxq?eo|�smo}?Beb_eC?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

`|pny?an�xr�v{t?Vr��?d�np�vpr�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGQ

_k|uo~sxq?Ukwzksqx}?A?T�nqo~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

V=5938?_4=>?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

V=<=84>?S),958=2=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

n;=3@_327>1=6=4,@a9;44706@(@r8806@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

m>,;4=5Nd>77@b=,=1;0@_327>1=6=4,@a9;44706@(@r8806@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

e13=4>?_9)=4?_45.98=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

q):p/4@q85=;0@k73=;@a9;44706@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM PO

a8695?_45.98=;<?U64;;9>2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

[�n{q?c}r{v{t?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JK

W\UdhYf?Z]jY?VDOHV?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

duvy|�|}u�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

m/>@_??>8;59@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMP

q):p/4@t;0/7@n>8?86=1=84@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMP



UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

�v

e]jdg`?[e?fZW?TWef?aX?TafZ?iad^Ve?[`??

hSUSf[a`?dW`fS^?_S`SYW_W`f?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

USeZ?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

n>8?>=71;>:@68.1-;>7@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

q1>;=,91.8>-;>3@17><6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

l8@84*8;>3=4,@8>@61;>1/?@.776@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

p7274/7@<;4;,7<741@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

k;>)71=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

r;%76@(@;558/41=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

USdW?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

k;=4174;457@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

f8/67)77?=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

POOE@m-47>@6;1=6.;51=84@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

TL61;>@,/761@986?=1;0=1:@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

Ua__g`[USf[a`?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

j85;0@61;..@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

m-47>@?8>1;0MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

e/761@58<</4=5;1=84@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

j=5746=4,K@?7><=11=4,K@(@>7,/0;18>:@,/=3;457@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

eyp~?eusvv}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

ekvo}?b|ymo}}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

Y9;9548=;<?^94)2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

^94)?*1>>17?0+?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

a�xo|?Sm{�s}s~syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

Z1:917;95?V93=2=1;?_4.=;<?b513922?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

U1;854382?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

c{o|n�qv{t?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JI

u9;1@38@8-47>6@7%?751@3/>=4,@197@84*8;>3=4,@?>85766$@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM PO

u9;1@698/03@:8/@7%?751@8.@:8/>@8-47>6@3/>=4,@197@84*8;>3=4,@

?>85766$@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPP

m4*8;>3=4,@a975)0=61MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPP

axlyk|nsxq?To}~?b|km~smo}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

a07;4=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

n>8?7>1:@g4.8@(@k;=4174;457@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ



�vvUftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

n9818,>;?9:@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

_48895+158?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

q):p/4@k;117>?8>1@a;<7>;@s67>6@e/=37@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

k;117>?8>1@`761@n>;51=576@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPU

by}~Eekvo?A?W�kv�k~syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN

W\UdhYf?g]l?KXPDQ$UHVRXUFHV?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

]xy�sxq?~ro?^k�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

Zs|sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

W:+>1-99?Z4;)&11.2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

g+61>)=;<?869?T54;)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

W:+>1-99?g;=*15:?T54;)?e84;)45)2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

f|yr�?B?fr�}|{�vovyv�vr�GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGL

dyvo?Vo}m|sz~syx}?kxn?V�~so}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

Zs|sxq?Szz|ykmr?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

T11..99+95?4;)?UbS?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

_4=;89;4;39?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

e9305=8-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

Tkmuq|y�xn?mromu}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

T1;)9)?4;)?[;2059)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

Zy�|}?A?e~kp/xq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

X15?869?*54;36=299!2?1**=39?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

JLGO?W:95<9;3-?e0++158?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

`n��?B?frt�yn�v|{�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JJ

Xks|?Zy�}sxq?Sm~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

d9<0>48=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

V=24&=>=8-?S331::1)48=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

p7;684;*07@<83=.=5;1=846@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

_66=61;457@;4=<;06@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

s4>7;684;*07@>7+/7616@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

d;<=0:@5846=37>;1=846@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

df_@_327>1=6=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

Zywoy�xo|}�?S}}ymsk~syx?BZaSCFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

fm_6@2;>:K@1:?=5;00:@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM PS



UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

�vvv

Xono|kv?^kly|?^k�}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

S:95=34;2?7=86?V=24&=>=8=92?S38?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

S<9?V=235=:=;48=1;?=;?W:+>1-:9;8?S38?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN

f69?[::=<548=1;?d9*15:?4;)?U1;851>?S38?BWEh95=*-C?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIO

f69?X4=5?^4&15?e84;)45)2?S38?BX4=5?i4<92C?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIO

f69?Z1:9>4;)?e9305=8-?S38?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIP

f69?g;=*15:9)?e95,=392?W:+>1-:9;8?4;)??

d99:+>1-:9;8?d=<682?S38FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIP

W:+>1-99?b1>-<54+6?b518938=1;?S38?BWbbSC?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIQ

f69?X4:=>-?4;)?_9)=34>?^94,9?S38?BX_^SC?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIQ

aeZS?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJH

WWaU?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJH

i4<9?Y45;=26:9;8FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

e~k~o?^kly|?^k�}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

i15.952!?U1:+9;248=1;?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

\05-?V08-?%?i=8;922?S++9454;39?^94,9?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

d928?%?^0;36?T594.2FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

iy|uzvkmo?ekpo~�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJJ

d9'0=59)?b128=;<2FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJJ

W\UdhYf?gYjYb?VDIHW\$*$VHFXULW\?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

aeZS?do{�s|owox~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

Yoxo|kv?Y�snovsxo}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

Y9;954>?e4*98-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

W:95<9;3-?%?X=528?S=)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

X=59?b59,9;8=1;?%?W(8=;<0=2695?g29FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

f11>2?%?W'0=+:9;8?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

a**=39?e4*98-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

Y0928?e4*98-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

Wwo|qoxm�?b|o�ox~syx?A?b|ozk|k~syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

W'0=+:9;8?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

U1;84382?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

b|omk�~syx}?py|?b|o�ox~sxq?Vs}ok}o?f|kx}ws}}syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O



v�UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

Z4;)?Z-<=9;9?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

bbW?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

U>94;=;<?%?V=2=;*938=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

ekpo?W{�szwox~?azo|k~syx?A?_ksx~oxkxmo?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

U1::1;?\1&?e=89?S33=)9;82?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

Zk�k|n?Uy||om~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

Wwzvy�oo?ekpo~�?A?eom�|s~�?f|ksxsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

Smmsnox~}?A?\ylEdovk~on?[xt�|so}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

U|s}s}?es~�k~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

V9*=;=;<?4?U5=2=2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

e89+E&-Ee89+?U5=2=2?Y0=)9?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

`18=*-=;<?%?U1>>4&1548=;<?7=86?S08615=8=92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

eom�|s~�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

e81>9;?b51+958-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

h4;)4>=2:?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

_51=84@q17?6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

d1&&95-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

X=59?b5139)0592?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

e9,959?i948695?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

i948695?W:95<9;3-?Y0=)9>=;92?%?b5139)0592?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

u7;197>@c<7>,745:@e/=370=476@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

iok~ro|?Wwo|qoxm�?b|ymon�|o}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

X>11)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

[*?4?*>426?*>11)?133052?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

i=;895?e815:?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

Z055=34;9?f65948?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

e9,959?e815:?G?f15;4)1?f65948?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

[*?4?815;4)1?745;=;<?133052?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

W4586'04.9?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

S*895?869?94586'04.9?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

Vs}k}~o|?domy�o|�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

Y9;954>?Y0=)9>=;92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

U151;4?,=502Gb4;)9:=3?b518131>2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN

T1;)9)?4;)?[;2059)?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIN



UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

�

eom�|s~�?e�}~ow}?A?eyp~�k|o?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIO

S))=8=1;4>?e1*87459?e9305=8-?d931::9;)48=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIO

W\UdhYf?Y][\h?FOHDQLQJ$*$PDLQWHQDQFH?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

anv{�r{n{pr?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

f�zo}?yp?[}}�o}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

_ksx~oxkxmo?To}~?b|km~smo}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

iy|u?a|no|}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

iy|u?a|no|}?sx?eu�f|k�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

u8>)@8>37>@1;*@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

j;*8>@371;=0@1;*@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

m197>@59;>,76@371;=0@1;*@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

_11;59<7416@1;*@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

l8176@1;*@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

iy|u?a|no|}?�}F?fyEVy}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

u8>)@8>37>6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMT

r8Lb86@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMT

[x}zom~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

=S0)=815?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

n>85766@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM U

Zy�}ouoozsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

b|ozk|sxq?~ro?b|yzo|~�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

Uvokxsxq?Uromuvs}~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

U115)=;48=;<?U>94;=;<?_9861)2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

R@<719836@18@;??>8;59@507;4=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM W

n;:<741@8?1=846@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM W

_32;41;,76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

b=6;32;41;,76@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM X

Zy�?~y?To}~?[x~o|pkmo?�s~r?Zy�}ouoozsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

W\UdhYf?b]bY?IUDQFKLVH$VWDUWXS?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

Yoxo|kv?azo|k~syx}?[xpy|wk~syx?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFI

Zy�|}?yp?azo|k~syx?A?Zyvsnk�}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

[r{r�ny?[�vqryv{r�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGL

f�zsmkv?^ymk~syx?Vo�ovyzwox~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K



�vUftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

do�ox�o?_kxkqowox~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

S}}o}}sxq?e�zzv�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

d43.?b5=3=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

e9<:9;848=1;??FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

Uywzo~s~s�o?eo~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

Tyyusxq?isxny�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

f|kns~syxkv?b|smsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

V�xkwsm?b|smsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

Uyx/q�|k~syx?yp?V�xkwsm?b|smsxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

e9421;4>?%?^9;<86?1*?e84-?b5=3=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

b=3.0+?d9+158=;<?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

Vs}~|sl�~syx?e~|k~oq�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

Uyx~|km~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

Vs}my�x~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIP

fr�r��n�v|{�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JR

Vs|om~?�}F?[xns|om~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJI

axvsxo?f|k�ov?Sqoxmso}?BafS}C?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJJ

Urkxxov?_kxkqo|}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJJ

Tyyusxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJJ

ey�|mo}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJK

fro?eu�d�x?do}o|�k~syx?Xy|w?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJN

Urk|qo}?A?Vs}my�x~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJN

do}o|�k~syx?Snns~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJP

do}o|�k~syx?Uyno}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJP

Xoo}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJQ

fo|w}?A?Sq|oowox~}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFJQ

Ukxmovvk~syx?byvsm�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFKH

bk�wox~?bvkx}?A?fo|w}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFKH

_kxkqsxq?do}o|�k~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFKI

Smmywwynk~syx}?A?Swoxs~so}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFKI

gYfj]WY?B?fYhYbh]cb ?

[�r��?Y�}r�vr{pr?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

^yyusxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMP

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ



UftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

�vv

Tyyusxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMQ

b|ozk|sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF K

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

S||s�sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFL

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMS

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMT

e~k�sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF M

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMT

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM U

e/761@k84=18>=4,@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM U

Vozk|~sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF N

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM U

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM V

dowowlo|sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF O

w8/@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM V

q):p/4@q:617<6@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM W

Y�o}~?Uyww�xsmk~syx?Urkxxov}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

Y�o}~?Uyx~km~?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

Y0928?U1;8438?V05=;<?e84-?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

_kxkqo?W�zom~k~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

_kxkqsxq?Uywzvksx~}?A?`oqk~s�o?do�so�}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF Q

Wwzk~rs�o?A?hkvsnk~o?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

do�so�}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

Zkxnvsxq?`oqk~s�o?do�so�}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

do�so�}?A?afS}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

t>*8@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPQ

_=>*4*@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

p������@��@���@q��p��@q�����@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

q):p/4@p72=7-6@k;4;,7>@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

p72=7-@_,,>7,;1=84@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR



�vvvUftTpi-X\^\odji-T`io\gn--,+*)('&,%$-#(%"(!-
43215�5FDFF50/.-325,-+2*)(0(2'5&(%($1#5&&*5 +&&5-(')$05-101-"1#!

W\UdhYf?Y`YjYb?qmdru_pcGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

g���rz�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGJ

iol}s~o?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

eu�f|k�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF I

\yywvk?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

Zywoy�xo|?by|~kvFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF J

k;=4@1;*@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMR

p767>2;1=846@r;*@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMT

q1;17<7416@r;*@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM U

p7?8>16@r;*@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM V

a841;51@r;*@@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM V

h||y�?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGQ

Vsqs�w?e�s~mr�y�?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

Ye0=89?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

W:4=>D?V5=,9D?V132D?U4>9;)45?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

e.-d0;?b61;9?e-289:?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF P

p7;<;&7@l81=.=5;1=84@c%;<?076@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM PO

e0++>9:9;845-?e-289:2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IH

eu�d�x�?}?`y~s/mk~syx?e�}~ow?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

`18=*=348=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFII

f9:+>489?S58=3>92?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

V484?%?f4<2FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIJ

_4;04>>-?e9;)=;<?`18=*=348=1;2?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIK

f8-@18@k;4/;00:@q743@l81=.=5;1=846@MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMPR

g�}}|��?GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG JM

^ymk~syx?e�zzy|~?fokw?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

Zovz?Vo}u?e�}~owGeyv�~syx}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF IL

hkmk~syx?dox~kv?gxs�o|}s~�?BhdgC?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

_yx~rv�?iolsxk|}?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM

Sxx�kv?^ymk~syx?a�xo|?_oo~sxq?FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFIM



FDD (04/2023) D - 1 

EXHIBIT D 
LIST OF OUTLETS 

Company-Owned Outlets 

The following outlets are owned by our predecessor or affiliates as of December 31, 2022:  

Name City State Address Phone Number 

SkyRun Aspen 
LLC 

Aspen Colorado 800 S. Mill St. #305A 
Aspen, CO 81611 

970-236-2444 

SkyRun 
Condos, LLC 

Beaver Creek Colorado 680 Lionshead Place #522 
Vail, CO 81657 

970-331-0073 

Vacation 
Rentals of 
Breckenridge, 
LLC 

Breckenridge Colorado 400 N. Park Avenue #10B 
PMB421 Breckenridge, CO 
80424  

970-300-1815 

SkyRun 
Partners, LLC 

Broomfield Colorado 390 Interlocken Crescent, 
Suite 350 
Broomfield, CO 80021 

970-660-4422 

SkyRun 
Vacation 
Rentals, LLC 

Vail Colorado 680 Lionshead Place #522 
Vail, CO 81657 

970-331-0073 

SkyRun South 
Florida LLC 

 Miami Florida 330 SW 27th Avenue, Suite 
508 Miami, Florida 

786-382-0652 

The following outlets were opened by our predecessor or affiliates after December 31, 2022 but before the 
issuance date of this Disclosure Document:  

Name State City Address Phone Number 

SkyRun New 
Mexico LLC* 

Colorado Broomfield 390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350 
Broomfield, CO 80021 

970-660-4422 

*Territory is Santa Fe, New Mexico and surrounding area. 

Franchised and Licensed Outlets 

The following outlets are franchised as of December 31, 2022 (unless otherwise noted as licensed by our 
predecessor): 

Name City State Address Phone Number Licensed 

Maria and Peter 
Vlahos 

Phoenix Arizona 1890 E Sagittarius Pl 
Chandler, AZ  85249 

480-462-5884 

Rod and Leslie Heier North Lake 
Tahoe 

California 10040 E. Harney Lane 
Lodi, CA 95240 

530-214-4131 
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Name City State Address Phone Number Licensed 

Paul Myers Copper 
Mountain 

Colorado 800 Copper Road #3338  
Copper Mountain, CO 80443 

970-300-1831 

Kendra Caldwell Denver Colorado 6424 Kendall St. 
Arvada, CO 80003 

720-728-1956 

Greg Rosener, Julie 
Phares, and Brad 
Whitehead 

Estes Park Colorado Estes Park Vacation Rentals, 
LLC 
950 Comanche Street 
Estes Park, CO 80517 

970-235-5550 

Megan and Louis 
Gutschenritter 

Steamboat Colorado PO Box 772732 
Steamboat Springs, CO  
80477 

970-315-0209 

Paul Myers and Mike 
Phillips 

Frisco-
Dillon-
Silverthorne 

Colorado W1194 Illinois Ave.  
Green Lake, WI 54941 

970-300-1817 

Rachel Scott & 
Bryan Scott 

Winter Park Colorado PO Box 3486 
Winter Park, CO 80482 

970-627-4610 

Matthew and Alexa 
Cooper 

Anna Maria Florida 7720 Drayton Cir. 
Bradenton, FL 34201 

941-241-3055 

Chad Crane Destin Florida Crane Destin Property 
Management, LLC 
4201 Indian Bayou Trail, Unit 
1310 
Destin, FL 32541 

850-460-3410 * 

Hans Kirkegaard Longboat 
Key 

Florida 1975 Gulf of Mexico Drive 
Unit G4-104 

Longboat Key, Florida 34228 

414-803-4000 

Scott Teuton, Aaron 
Scott, and Angie 
Scott 

Whitefish Montana PO Box 1382 
Whitefish, MT 59937 

406-412-1911 

Rod and Alice 
Turnage 

Charleston South 
Carolina 

charleston@skyrun.com 843-886-1750 

Jon Hilfiger Kiawah South 
Carolina 

4062 Blackmoor St. 
Mount Pleasant, SC 29466 

843-588-1905 

Jason and Melissa 
Albert 

Heather and Matt 
Albert 

Gatlinburg Tennessee 1843 Spencer Dr. 
Maryville, TN 37801 

865-505-7005 * 
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Name City State Address Phone Number Licensed 

Amanda Bryan and 
Ethan Bryan 

Jonathan and 
Johnnie Cantwell 

Melanie and Monte 
Tucker 

Galveston Texas SkyRun Galveston 

38 Maple Lane 
Galveston, TX 77551 

409-908-4822 * 

Scott Teuton 

Aaron and Angie 
Scott 

Ryan and Amber 
Engler 

Texas Hill 
Country 

Texas 1405 Sattler Road 
New Braunfels, TX 78132 

512-842-7006 

Ryan and Amber 
Engler 

Scott Teuton 

Aaron and Angie 
Scott 

Highland 
Lakes 

Texas 501 Free Rein 
Horseshoe Bay, TX 78657 

830-201-3568 

Michael and Fonda 
LeClerc 

Park City Utah 50 Shadow Ridge Dr.  
Park City, UT 84060 

435-214-2055 

Rachel Scott and 
Bryan Scott 

Killington 

Stowe 

Sugarbush 

Vermont 27 Unicorn Circle 
Amesbury, MA 01913 

802-760-6917 

Todd Birkholz Lake 
Geneva 

Wisconsin lakegeneva@skyrun.com 262-686-1800 * 

Paul Myers Long Lake Wisconsin northwoods@skyrun.com 715-674-2255 

* Denotes a licensee of our predecessor, SkyRun Partners LLC, but which is substantially similar to 
the franchises we offer under this Disclosure Document. 

The following outlets were terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily, 
ceased to do business during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, or had not communicated with us 
within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document: 

Name City State Phone Number 

Kendra Caldwell Denver Colorado 720-728-1956 

Scott Teuton, Aaron Scott, and 
Angie Scott 

Whitefish Montana 406-412-1911 

Scott Teuton, Aaron and Angie 
Scott, and Ryan and Amber Engler 

Texas Hill Country Texas 512-842-7006 
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Ryan and Amber Engler, Scott 
Teuton, and Aaron and Angie Scott 

Highlands Lakes Texas 830-201-3568 

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the 
franchise system.
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NOTICE ABOUT UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:  

These financial statements have been prepared without an audit. Prospective franchisees or sellers of 
franchises should be advised that no independent certified public accountant has audited these figures or 
expressed an opinion with regard to their content or form. 



Feb 28, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Chase Chk-SkyRun Franch (7671) 298,979.01
Chase Ck-SkyRun Franch (7663) 40.00

Total Checking/Savings 299,019.01

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 324,511.56

Total Accounts Receivable 324,511.56

Other Current Assets
Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets 0.00

Total Current Assets 623,530.57

TOTAL ASSETS 623,530.57

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Loan Payable - SkyRun Partners 30,000.00
Overhead Payable - SkyRun Ptnrs 461,705.63

Total Other Current Liabilities 491,705.63

Total Current Liabilities 491,705.63

Total Liabilities 491,705.63

Equity
Retained Earnings 69,022.70
Net Income 62,802.24

Total Equity 131,824.94

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 623,530.57

5:16 PM SKYRUN FRANCHISING LLC
03/29/23 Balance Sheet*, CASH BASIS, by Month
Accrual Basis As of February 28, 2023

*Does not yet include final year-end adjsting entries from CPA for 2022 Page 1



 11:37 AM

 04/21/23

 Accrual Basis

 SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED

 Profit & Loss
 January through February 2023

Jan - Feb 23

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Franchise Income

Licensee Income

Licensee - Commissions 250,496.70

Licensee - New Destination Fee 260,000.00

Total Licensee Income 510,496.70

Marketing Income

Licensee - Nat'l Mkting Income 42,196.58

Licensee - Prem Mkting Serv 7,361.32

Total Marketing Income 49,557.90

Reimbursables Income 9,788.00

Total Franchise Income 569,842.60

Total Income 569,842.60

Cost of Goods Sold 2,778.63

Gross Profit 567,063.97

Expense

Bank Service Charges 89.23

Commissions - New Locations 168,125.24

Contract Labor 197.25

Dues and Subscriptions 688.24

IT Expense 26,073.84

Leased Employees 221,389.71

Licenses, Permits & Fees 10.34

Marketing 69,587.74

Miscellaneous 394.70

Office Rental 5,548.22

Office Supplies 13.39

Postage & Shipping 176.09

Printing & Copies 25.12

Professional Fees 8,400.30

Storage 472.12

Telephone & Cable Expense 148.64

Travel, Meals & Enter. Expense 2,921.56

Total Expense 504,261.73

Net Ordinary Income 62,802.24

Net Income 62,802.24

 Page 1 of 1
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600 Hwy 169 South, Suite 300 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55426

Phone 763 545 2353    |    Fax 763 354 7059
www.tdhcd.com

 MiChael J. ConDon, Cpa  
raChel a. peterS, Cpa, CFe 

JoSeph t. bernDt, Cpa 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the CEO and Board of Directors 
SkyRun Franchising Limited 
Broomfield, CO 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SkyRun Franchising Limited, (a Colorado LLC), which 
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of income (loss) and member’s 
equity (deficit), and cash flows for the period from inception June 28, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of SkyRun Franchising Limited as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 
period from inception June 28, 2022 to December 31, 2022 in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of SkyRun Franchising Limited 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SkyRun Franchising Limited’s ability to continue as 
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 



 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
SkyRun Franchising Limited’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about SkyRun Franchising Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 
 
 
 
 
March  18, 2023 
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Current assets
Cash 64,521$         
Accounts receivable 188,788         

Total current assets 253,309         

Total assets 253,309$       

Current liabilities
Advances from related party 154,286$       
Deferred revenue, brand fund fees 18,066           

Total current liabilities 172,352         

Long term liability
Deferred revenue-franchise fees 130,000         

Total long term liability 130,000         

Total liabilities 302,352         

Member's deficit (49,043)          

Total liabilities and member's deficit 253,309$       

Assets

Liabilities and Member's Equity

SkyRun Franchising Limited
Balance Sheet

 December 31, 2022

See notes to financial statements
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Amount

Revenues
Royalty fees 152,609$                      89.4 %
Brand fund fees 7,888                            4.6
Technology Fee 1,500                            .9
Miscellaneous fees 8,725                            5.1

Total Revenues 170,722                        100.0

Operating expenses
Dues and subscriptions 1,867                            1.1
IT expense 10,649                          6.2
Marketing 20,129                          11.8
Office 1,345                            .8
Travel 892                               .5
Commission-new locations 65,580                          38.4
Management fees 89,425                          52.4
Professional fees 59,928                          35.1

Total operating expenses 249,815                        146.3

Net loss (79,093)                        (46.3)  %

Member's equity (Deficit) 
Beginning of period -                                   
Member contributions 30,050                          

End of period (49,043)$                      

Percent

SkyRun Franchising Limited
Statement of Income (Loss) and Member's Equity (Deficit)

For the Period from June 28, 2022 to December 31, 2022

See notes to financial statements
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (79,093)$                

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
by operating activities 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (188,788)                
Increase (decrease) in:

Deferred revenue, branding fund fees 18,066                    
Deferred revenue, franchise fee 130,000                  

Net cash used by operating activities (119,815)                

Cash flows from financing activities
Member contributions 30,050                    
Advances from related party 154,286                  

Net cash provided by financing activities 184,336                  

Net increase in cash 64,521                    

Cash
Beginning of period -                             
End of period 64,521$                  

SkyRun Franchising Limited

For the Period from June 28, 2022 to December 31, 2022
Statement of Cash Flows

See notes to financial statements
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NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Business description  
 
SkyRun Franchising Limited (the Company), located in Broomfield, CO, is a Colorado limited liability company 
and wholly owned subsidiary of SkyRun Partners, LLC and was formed on June 28, 2022. The Company offers 
franchises for operation under the SkyRun Vacation Rentals trademark and logo of a business that provides property 
management and vacation rental services for third parties.  
 
Basis of presentation 
 
The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as codified by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. 
 
Franchising 
 
The Company executes franchise agreements that set the terms of its arrangement with each franchisee.  The 
agreements cover a five-year period.  The franchise agreements require the franchisee to pay an initial fee of $45,000 
for designated territories with 500 short-term rentals or less or $65,000 for designated territories with more than 
500 short-term rentals. The initial fee is due upon signature of the franchise agreement, is nonrefundable and cannot 
be credited against any other obligation that the franchisee has with the Company. Existing SkyRun licensees 
converting their business to a SkyRun franchise are not charged an initial franchise fee. Each franchisee is required 
to pay a monthly royalty fee of 5% of monthly gross revenue or the minimum monthly royalty amount as defined 
in the franchise agreement. Each franchisee is required to pay a monthly marketing services fee of 1% of monthly 
gross revenue. The marketing services fee proceeds are used to develop programs that benefit the franchisor’s brand 
and promotes the trademarks. A monthly $160 technology fee plus $8 per user over eight users at a single location 
is also required. Subject to the Company’s approval and payment of a renewal fee totaling $5,000, a franchisee may 
generally renew its agreement upon its expiration subject to satisfaction of certain conditions for an additional five-
year period. Direct costs of sales and servicing of franchise agreements are charged to operating expenses as 
incurred.  Franchisees that desire to sell or transfer the business or an interest in it are required to pay a transfer fee 
of $10,000 before the transfer takes place. 
 
Revenue recognition 
 
The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with FASB ASU No. 2019-09, Revenue from contracts with 
Customers (Topic 606), implemented from inception. 
 
Performance obligations 
 
A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the client and is the unit 
of accounting in Topic 606. A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and 
recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. For contracts with multiple performance 
obligations, the Company allocates the contract’s transaction price to each performance obligation based on the 
relative standalone selling price. 
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SkyRun Franchising Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

 

 

NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Revenue recognition (continued) 
 
Performance obligations (continued) 
 
The primary method used to estimate standalone selling price is the expected cost plus a margin approach, under 
which the Company forecasts their expected costs of satisfying a performance obligation and then add an 
appropriate margin for that distinct good or service based on margins for similar services sold on a standalone basis. 
While determining relative standalone selling price and identifying separate performance obligations require 
judgment, generally relative standalone selling prices and the separate performance obligations are readily 
identifiable as the Company sells those performance obligations unaccompanied by other performance obligations.    
 
Franchise revenue 
 
Franchise revenues consist of the initial franchise fee and renewal fees. The Company has identified the following 
performance obligations in connection with the initial franchise fee: 
 

1. Intellectual property license  
2. Initial training program  
3. Marketing materials collateral  
4. Commission or referral bonus 

 
Each of the identified performance obligations is considered to be a series of distinct services transferred over time. 
While the underlying activities may vary from day to day, the nature of the commitments are the same each day, 
and the franchisee can independently benefit from each day's services.  
 
Under ASC 606, the intellectual property license portion of the initial and renewal fees, are recognized as revenue 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective franchise agreement. All initial franchise fees and renewal 
fees are due on the date of signing the agreement. 
 
Revenue from royalties is recognized in the period in which the franchisee earns the revenue upon which this fee is 
based. Royalties are computed as a percentage of gross revenues earned by the franchisee or the minimum monthly 
royalty amount as follows:  
 

Term Year  Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount 
1st Term Year  $350 per month, except that the minimum monthly royalty amount is 

waived for the first three months of the term of the license agreement 
2nd Term Year  $750 per month 
3rd Term Year  $1,500 per month 
4th Term Year  $3,000 per month 
5th Term Year  $5,000 per month 

 
For franchisees that desire to renew and for which a successor license agreement is granted, the minimum monthly 
royalty amount for each term year under that successor license agreement will be $5,000 per month, adjusted 
annually at the start of each term year to reflect inflation during the previous term year according to the Consumer 
Price Index. 
 
Revenue from brand fund fees are deferred and classified as a liability until used for qualifying purposes. Marketing 
service fees are computed as a percentage of gross revenues earned by the franchisee. 
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NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Revenue recognition (continued) 
 
Franchise revenue (continued) 
 
Revenue from technology fees is recognized in the period in which the franchisee earns the revenue upon which 
this fee is based. Technology fees are charged at a flat $160 monthly fee plus $8 per user over eight users at a single 
location to the franchisee. 
 
Revenue from miscellaneous other fees is recognized in the period in which the franchisee earns the revenue upon 
which this fee is based. 
 
Use of estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates, and such differences may be material. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased 
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company did not hold any cash 
equivalents at December 31, 2022. At times throughout the period, the Company’s cash balances may exceed 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits.  No amounts were in excess of limits at December 31, 2022, 
and the Company has not experienced any losses from such accounts. 
 
Accounts receivable 
 
Accounts receivable evolve in the normal course of business. It is the policy of management to review the 
outstanding receivable balance at year end, as well as the bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish 
an allowance for doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts. The Company believes no allowance for doubtful 
accounts is necessary at December 31, 2022. Normal accounts receivable are due net 30 days from the invoice date. 
Extended terms may be offered on a per customer basis. The Company accrues interest on past due accounts based 
on terms on a per contract basis.  
 
Advertising costs  
 
Advertising and marketing costs are generally charged to operations in the year incurred and amounted to $20,129 
for the period ended December 31, 2022. 
 
Income taxes  
 
The Company has elected under the Internal Revenue Code to be a limited liability company. As of December 31, 
2022, it is structured as a single member wholly owned subsidiary of SkyRun Partners, LLC. In lieu of corporation 
income taxes, Skyrun Partners, LLC is taxed on the Company’s taxable income or losses. Therefore, these 
statements do not include any provision for corporation income taxes, refunds, or deferred income taxes. For state 
tax purposes the member is taxed on the proportionate share of the Company’s taxable income. 
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NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Uncertain tax positions 
 
Management has determined that the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and associated 
unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial statements or related disclosures. Since tax matters are 
subject to some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Company’s tax filings will not be 
challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Company or its member will not be subject to additional tax, 
penalties, and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the Company’s tax filings remain open for three 
years. The Company has adopted the policy of expensing any interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions 
in other expense on the statement of income (loss). For the period ended December 31, 2022, there were no such 
interest or penalty expenses. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
The Company’s financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, deferred revenue and advances from related 
party. It is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest rate or credit risks arising 
from these instruments. Unless otherwise noted, the fair values of these financial instruments approximate their 
carrying values.  
 
Leases 
 
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update 
(“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases, which together with subsequent amendments is included in ASC 842. ASC 842 requires 
a lessee to recognize a liability to make lease payments and an asset with respect to its right to use the underlying 
asset for the lease term.  
 
In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-11, which amends the guidance to add a method of adoption whereby 
the issuer may elect to recognize a cumulative effect adjustment at the beginning of the period of adoption. ASU 
No. 2018-11 does not require comparative period financial information to be adjusted. Leases will be classified as 
either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the statements of 
income (loss) and members equity (deficit). ASU 2016-02 defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that 
conveys the right to control the use of identified property, plant or equipment for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.  
 
To determine whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of the identified asset for a period of time, the 
customer has to have both (1) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the 
identified asset and (2) the right to direct the use of the identified asset, a contract does not contain an identified 
asset if the supplier has a substantive right to substitute such asset ("the leasing criteria").  
 
Management determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in ROU assets, and 
lease liability obligations are included in the balance sheet, except for those that qualify for the short-term scope 
exception of 12 months or less. ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and 
lease liability obligations represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. ROU assets and 
liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. 
 
As of December 31, 2022, the Company was not party to any lease agreements in which it was the lessor or the 
lessee.  
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NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Subsequent events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 18, 2023, the date which the financial statements were 
available to be issued.  
 
NOTE 2 – FRANCHISING  
 
Franchise revenue consisted of the following: 

      
 

Period from 
June 28, 2022 to 

December 31, 2022 
       
Royalty fees      $                     152,609 
Brand fees                                7,888 
Technology fees                                 1,500 
Other fees                                8,725 
Total franchise fee revenue      $                     170,722   

 
Information about the number of franchised offices is as follows: 
      Period from 
      June 28, 2022 to 
      December 31, 2022 
 Franchised locations:       
 Opened                                   20       
 Closed                                   - 
 In operation as of December 31, 2022                                    20 

 
As of December 31, 2022, twenty existing Skyrun licensees converted into the franchising model and commenced 
operations. Four more locations had signed agreements as of December 31, 2022 and commenced operations 
subsequent to year end.  
 
NOTE 3 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
Advances from member  
 
During the period the Company’s sole member advanced the Company funds for temporary working capital needs. 
The advances totaled $154,286 as of December 31, 2022. No interest is paid on these advances. 
 
NOTE 4 – COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") recognized COVID-19 as a global pandemic, 
prompting many national, regional, and local governments to implement preventative or protective measures, such 
as travel and business restrictions, temporary store closures, and wide-sweeping quarantines and stay-at-home 
orders. As a result, COVID-19 and the related restrictive measures have had a significant adverse impact upon many 
sectors of the economy, including the industries in which the Company operates. The final determination of the 
extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the business and financial results will depend on future developments, 
including the duration and spread of future outbreaks within the markets in which the Company operates and the 
related impact on consumer confidence and spending, all of which are uncertain.  
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SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED 
LICENSE AGREEMENT

This LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated as of _________ 20   , (the “Effective 
Date”), by and between  

1. SkyRun Franchising Limited, a Colorado limited liability company (“Franchisor”), and

2.  ______________________________, a   
(“Franchisee”).

Introduction 

Franchisor and its predecessor have developed certain policies, procedures and techniques for the 
operation of property management and rental businesses servicing owners of vacation and other 
properties, which businesses are operated under the SkyRun® mark and stylized logo and use the website 
and URL located at www.skyrun.com, a proprietary operating system licensed to Franchisor and certain 
other information, know-how, processes, techniques, and business methods owned by or licensed to 
Franchisor.  Franchisor desires to grant to qualified persons franchises to use the concepts, programs and 
methods of promotion developed by Franchisor and its predecessor to develop and operate a Business (as 
defined below).  Franchisee has made application to Franchisor for a franchise and the application has 
been approved by Franchisor in reliance on all the representations made in the application.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promise of the parties hereto, and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 

Terms of Contract 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions and Interpretation. 

1.1 Definitions. The terms set forth below shall have the ascribed meanings for all purposes 
of this Agreement. Other terms are defined in the text of this Agreement, and throughout this Agreement 
those terms shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them. 

“Franchisee Web Page” means a subdomain or subpage provided by Franchisor to Franchisee for 
its use solely in connection with and during the term of this Agreement, including all content provided by 
Franchisor to Franchisee for display on the Franchisee Web Page. 

“Business” means the business franchised under this Agreement that provides property management 
and rental services to residential property owners and guests under the Marks and using the System. 

“Confidential Information” means the proprietary techniques and confidential information of 
Franchisor or its affiliates which have value in the operation of its business, the System, and the Services 
and Products, and includes all information not generally known or available to the public about 
Franchisor’s or its affiliates operations, all information that has or could have commercial value or other 
utility in the business in which Franchisor or its affiliates are engaged or contemplate engaging, and the 
terms of this Agreement. Confidential Information also includes all information the unauthorized 
disclosure of which could be detrimental to the interests of Franchisor or affiliates, whether or not such 
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information is identified as Confidential Information by Franchisor, including any and all information 
concerning teaching techniques, processes, formulas,  innovations, inventions, discoveries, improvements, 
research or development and test results, specifications, data, know-how, formats, marketing plans, 
business plans, strategies, forecasts, unpublished financial information, budgets, projections,  client and 
supplier identities, characteristics, and agreements. Franchisor has and will also have access to 
confidential information of its clients (“clients” means any person or entity for whom Franchisor or 
Franchisee performs services or from whom Franchisor or Franchisee obtains information, and 
specifically includes both property owners and guests). 

“Gross Revenue” means all amounts, proceeds, fees or revenue that Franchisee derives from 
property management services or from any Services and Products offered to guests or property owners in 
the operation of the Business, including all amounts, proceeds, fees or revenue generated or collected 
whether by cash, check or credit card or credit transaction. Gross Revenue also includes rental revenue, 
cleaning fees, booking fees, guest damage waiver fees, travel insurance, pet fees, monthly management 
fees, maintenance services charges to property owners or guests, and any local services up-sold to guests 
or property owners (for example, revenue from porta-cribs, equipment rentals, side trips/activities, or 
concierge services). Gross Revenue shall not include any amounts, proceeds, fees or revenue related to 
any sales, use or service taxes collected and paid to the appropriate taxing authority.  

“Intellectual Property” means the Know-How, Trade Secrets, Website, and the Licensed 
Software owned or licensed by Franchisor or its affiliates. 

“Know-How” means all rights, title, and interest in and to certain information, designs, drawings, 
operations manuals, compilations of technical information, research files and records, methods and 
specifications, quality assurance specifications, know-how, processes, business methods, learning, ability, 
techniques, practical knowledge, and skill utilized to market and conduct the Business. 

“Licensed Software” is defined the proprietary software platform known as SkyTrax or its 
successor, as determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion. 

“Marks” means all trade names, trademarks, service marks, domain names, and other 
commercial symbols, including associated logos, now or hereafter selected, used or promoted by 
Franchisor and licensed to Franchisee for use in connection with the System. 

“Services and Products” means the property management and rental services offered and sold to 
clients pursuant to the rights granted by this Agreement.  

“Subscription Agreement” means the SkyTrax Subscription Agreement by and between 
Franchisee and Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliate for the Licensed Software.  

“System” means the standards, systems, concepts, identifications, methods, processes, 
procedures, techniques, and valuable business, financial, and other proprietary information, including the 
Intellectual Property, for the sales, marketing, implementation, and provision of Services and Products, 
but specifically excludes any employee policies or procedures that Franchisor may make available to 
Franchisee for its optional use. 

“Term Year” means the 12-month period starting on the Effective Date of this Agreement, and 
each subsequent 12-month period thereafter. 

“Trade Secrets” means trade secrets as defined by applicable law, including design, process, 
procedure, formula, improvement, confidential business or financial information, listing of names, 
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addresses, or telephone numbers, or other information relating to Franchisor’s business which is secret 
and of value to Franchisor or its affiliates.  

“Website” means all rights, title, and interest in and to the URL and all content of the website 
located at www.skyrun.com and other URLs and websites linked to such site, including all subdomains 
and subpages. 

1.2 Rules of Interpretation. In this Agreement, unless a contrary intent is clearly stated: (a) 
the definition ascribed to each word or phrase defined herein, and each common noun and pronoun, shall 
be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such term and to masculine, feminine and 
neuter genders of such term; (b) “or” is not exclusive and includes “and/or”; (c) “including” means 
“including, without limitation”; (d) “shall” means ‘has a duty to; is required to; (e) references to Sections, 
sub-sections, and Exhibits shall refer to such portions of this Agreement unless otherwise specified, all of 
which are part of this Agreement; (f) unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, or may otherwise 
require, in this Agreement the terms “herein,” “hereunder,” “hereby,” “hereto,” “hereof” and any similar 
terms refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Section or subsection; (g) headings are 
inserted as a matter of convenience only, and do not define, limit, or describe the scope of this Agreement or 
the intent of the provisions hereof; (h) common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the 
masculine, feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the person may in the context require ; and 
(i) reference to a person includes an individual, a corporation, joint venture, association, government 
body, firm and any other form of entity. 

2. Grant of License. 

2.1 Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to 
Franchisee, and Franchisee accepts, a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable license (the 
“License”) to use the System for the Term of this Agreement and the Licensed Software pursuant to the 
Subscription Agreement, solely in connection with operating a Business in the Territory pursuant to this 
Agreement.   

2.2 Franchisor has the right to add to, subtract from, revise, modify or change the System or 
any part thereof from time to time, and Franchisee shall promptly accept and comply with any such 
addition, subtraction, revision, modification or change and to make such reasonable expenditures as may 
be necessary to comply.

2.3 The Intellectual Property and all rights therein and goodwill pertaining thereto belong 
exclusively to Franchisor or its affiliates, and all rights resulting from Franchisee’s use of the Intellectual 
Property as permitted hereunder inure to the benefit of Franchisor or its affiliates. Franchisee shall not 
(and shall not allow any third party to): (a) decompile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer the 
Website or the Licensed Software or attempt to reconstruct or discover any source code, underlying ideas, 
algorithms, file formats or programming interfaces of the Website or Licensed Software by any means 
whatsoever (except and only to the extent that applicable law prohibits or restricts reverse engineering 
restrictions); (b) distribute, sell, sublicense, rent, lease or use the Website, the System, the Licensed 
Software, or any software related thereto (or any portion thereof) for time sharing, hosting, service 
provider or like purposes; (c) remove any product identification, proprietary, copyright or other notices 
contained in the Website, the Licensed Software, or related software; or (d) modify any part of the 
Website, the Licensed Software, or related software, create a derivative work of any part of the System or 
Licensed Software, or incorporate the Website, the System, the Licensed Software, or any related 
software into or with other software, except to the extent expressly authorized in writing by Franchisor. 

2.4  Franchisee shall notify Franchisor within three (3) days in writing of any act that 
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Franchisee believes constitutes an act of infringement by a third party either of its rights under this 
Agreement or of the Intellectual Property or the Marks and shall cooperate fully with Franchisor in 
dealing with it. Franchisor has the right but not the obligation to bring any action against persons it 
believes are infringing the Intellectual Property. Franchisor will have full control of the proceedings and 
Franchisee will provide complete cooperation to Franchisor in connection with the action.  

3. Fees. 

3.1 Initial Franchise Fee. On the Effective Date, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor the non-
refundable initial franchise fee set forth on the Rider to this Agreement (the “Initial Franchise Fee”).   

3.2 Royalty. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a monthly royalty fee (the “Royalty Fee”) for 
each full or partial month during the Term, equal to the greater of five percent (5%) of monthly Gross 
Revenue or the applicable Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount for the applicable month as set forth 
below.  

(a) For the first (1st) Term Year, the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount shall be 
$350 per month, except that the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount is waived for the first three 
(3) months of the Term of this Agreement;  

(b) For the second (2nd) Term Year, the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount shall 
be $750 per month; 

(c) For the third (3rd) Term Year, the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount shall be 
$1,500 per month; 

(d) For the fourth (4th) Term Year, the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount shall be 
$3,000 per month; 

(e) For the fifth (5th) Term Year, the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount shall be 
$5,000 per month; and 

(f) If Franchisee renews the License and Franchisor grants Franchisee a successor 
license agreement (which will have an effective date starting on the expiration of this 
Agreement), then, notwithstanding the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount provided in such 
successor license agreement, the Minimum Monthly Royalty Amount for each Term Year under 
that successor license agreement shall be $5,000 per month, adjusted annually at the start of each 
Term Year to reflect inflation during the previous Term Year according to the Consumer Price 
Index, All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), U.S. City Average, All Items (1982-84=100), published by 
the United States Department of Labor’s Bureau of Labor Statistics, or its successors. 

3.3 Technology Fee; Additional Fees.  Franchisor will provide Franchisee with certain 
technology services from time to time. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor at the times specified by 
Franchisor the then-current “Technology Fee” charged for these services, which fee Franchisor may 
change upon thirty (30) days’ prior notice to Franchisee. Further, Franchisee shall license from 
Franchisor’s required vendor, which may include Franchisor or its affiliate, any required customer 
relationship management software-as-a-service and pay the current license fee to the licensor.  Franchisor 
may modify or terminate these technology services at any time. These are not the only technology or 
technology services Franchisee will need to operate its Business and Franchisee is responsible for 
obtaining such technology and services. 
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3.4  Marketing Services Fee. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a marketing services fee (the 
“Marketing Services Fee”) equal to one percent (1%) of Gross Revenue for each full or partial month 
during the Term. Franchisor will deposit Marketing Services Fees received from Franchisee into a 
system-wide brand fund (the “System Brand Fund”). Disbursements from the System Brand Fund shall 
be made for the payment of expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection with the general promotion of 
the SkyRun brand and Marks, including: (a) development and production of advertising, marketing, and 
promotional materials; (b) the cost of formulating, developing, and implementing advertising and 
marketing campaigns, including Internet advertising, Internet search engine campaigns, and email 
marketing campaigns, and the cost to maintain and update Franchisor’s or its affiliates’ websites, web 
pages, social media and social networking sites, profiles and accounts, and search engine optimization; (c) 
the cost of formulating, developing, and implementing promotional and public relations programs or 
campaigns, including advertising in trade publications and client relationship and engagement programs, 
and sales training for SkyRun franchisees and licensees; (d) market research and other advertising 
activities; and (e) the cost of administering the System Brand Fund, including professional fees, the cost 
of salaries and fringe benefits paid to Franchisor’s employees engaged in administration of the System 
Brand Fund and creative services, and overhead allocated to advertising activities.  All interest, if any, 
earned by the System Brand Fund shall be used for the payment of the foregoing expenses before 
application of any principal to those expenses.  Methods, media employed, contents of advertising, and 
terms and conditions of advertising campaigns and promotional programs shall be within the sole 
discretion of Franchisor.  Franchisor reserves the right to engage the professional services of an 
advertising agency owned by, or affiliated with, Franchisor or any of its principals, to assist in developing 
and/or placing advertising, and to compensate that agency.  Franchisor reserves the right to dissolve the 
System Brand Fund but will not do so until all the monies in the System Brand Fund have been expended. 
Franchisee shall not advertise in places that are primarily targeted to guests of or owners or to properties 
located outside Franchisee’s Territory without prior consent from Franchisor.  

3.5 Payment.  

(a)  Franchisee shall pay the Royalty Fee, Technology Fee, and Marketing Services 
Fee monthly on or before the twentieth (20th) day of the second month following the month in 
which the Gross Revenue was received. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor interest at the maximum 
rate permitted by law, not to exceed 1.5% month, for any past due payment. Franchisor reserves 
the right, upon at least sixty (60) days’ prior notice to Franchisee, to charge and collect any 
Royalty Fee, Technology Fee, and Marketing Services Fee or other fees on a more frequent basis, 
including weekly or monthly for the immediately prior month.   

(b) Franchisor shall have the right to implement payment procedures in the future by 
written notice to Franchisee, including the right to require Franchisee to remit Royalty Fees, 
Technology Fees, and Marketing Services Fees, and other amounts due to Franchisor or its 
affiliates via electronic-funds transfer or other similar means.  Franchisee shall comply with all 
procedures specified by Franchisor and in its manuals with respect to such transfers, and deliver 
and execute such documents as may be necessary to facilitate or accomplish payment by the 
method described in this Section 3.5.  

(c) Franchisee shall not withhold or escrow any amounts due to Franchisor under 
this Agreement, or set off any such amounts against any amounts claimed to be due to Franchisee.  
If any sales, excise, use, or privilege tax is imposed or levied by any government or governmental 
agency on account of any amounts payable under this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay to 
Franchisor as an additional fee, a sum equal to the amount of such tax (but this provision shall not 
apply to any federal or Colorado income taxes imposed upon Franchisor).   
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3.6 Payment.  

(a)  Gross Revenue shall be deemed received by Franchisee at the time the Services 
and Products from which they were derived are delivered or rendered or at the time the relevant 
sale takes place, whichever occurs first, regardless of whether final payment (e.g., collection on a 
client’s personal check) has been received by Franchisee. By way of example, revenue from a 
future reservation taken when this Agreement is in effect will be subject to the Royalty Fee even 
if the Agreement is terminated prior to the guest arrival. Gross Revenue consisting of property or 
services shall be valued at the retail prices applicable and in effect at the time that they are 
received. 

(b)  In addition to interest specified in Section 3.5(a) and without forgoing 
Franchisor’s right for termination for non-payment at any point in time after non-payment breach, 
if there is any amount past due or not reported, an additional five percent (5%) of Gross Revenue 
will be withheld by Franchisor for every thirty (30) days that the amount is past due, which 
amount will escalate by five percent (5%) of Gross Revenue every thirty (30) days the amount is 
past due. By way of example, if an account is thirty (30) days past due, Franchisor can terminate 
this Agreement (subject to Section 12) or elect to be paid an additional five percent (5%) of Gross 
Revenue (on top of the standard Royalty Fee and Marketing Services Fees).  If the Franchisee is 
ninety (90) days past due, Franchisee must pay Franchisor an additional fifteen percent (15%) of 
Gross Revenue (on top of the standard Royalty Fee and Marketing Services Fees). This can occur 
up to six (6) months past due.  

4. Territory.  During the Term, Franchisor will not operate or grant a third party the right to operate 
a residential vacation property management and rental business under the SkyRun mark that services, 
lists, or rents residential vacation properties that are physically located in the geographic area defined in 
the Rider to this Agreement (the “Territory”). The boundaries of the Territory have been established 
based on Franchisor’s criteria and will not be adjusted without the written consent of Franchisor, 
regardless of whether the population or the number of residential properties in the Territory increases or 
decreases over time. Franchisee acknowledges that its License is nonexclusive and Franchisor has the 
right: (a) to acquire businesses which may service, list, or rent residential rental properties within the 
Territory, or sell its business, whether through a sale of assets or stock, to anyone, regardless whether they 
operate or franchise the operation of businesses similar to the Business; (b) to operate or allow others to 
operate similar or identical businesses that service, list, or rent residential vacation properties that are 
physically located outside of the Territory under the Marks or under any other trademarks even if the 
businesses or their residential vacation properties compete with the Business in the Territory; or (c) to 
operate or allow others to operate businesses inside the Territory under any marks, including the Marks, if 
the businesses do not provide residential vacation property management or rental services.  

5. Ownership and Use of Intellectual Property, Compliance with Laws. 

5.1  Franchisee shall not dispute, contest, or challenge, directly or indirectly, the validity or 
enforceability of the Intellectual Property or Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s ownership or ability to license 
the Intellectual Property, nor counsel, procure, or assist anyone else to do the same. Franchisee shall not 
take any action that is inconsistent with Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s ownership or ability to license the 
Intellectual Property, and shall not represent that it has any right, title, or interest in the Intellectual 
Property other than the limited license expressly granted by this Agreement. 

5.2 Upon Franchisor’s request, Franchisee will cooperate fully, both before and after 
termination or expiration of this Agreement and at Franchisor’s expense, in confirming, perfecting, 
preserving, and enforcing Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s rights in the Intellectual Property, including 
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executing and delivering to Franchisor or its affiliate such documents as Franchisor reasonably requests 
for any such purpose, such as assignments, powers of attorney, and copies of commercial documents 
showing sale and advertising of the Services and Products.  

5.3 If Franchisee or any of its owners acquires, as a result of the exercise of any rights 
provided under this Agreement, any rights in the Intellectual Property, Franchisee shall assign or have its 
owners assign, and hereby assigns, all such rights to Franchisor or its affiliate. 

5.4 Franchisee shall not use any materials in connection with the Business that are false or 
misleading. Franchisee shall ensure that all its advertising and other materials associated with the Services 
and Products fully conform to all applicable laws and regulations. Franchisee shall conduct its business 
operations in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations, including all requirements regarding 
licensing to provide property management services in accordance with their state, local and municipality 
laws. Franchisee is solely responsible for protecting itself from disruptions, Internet access failures, 
Internet content failures, and attacks by hackers and other unauthorized intruders and Franchisee waives 
any and all claims Franchisee may have against Franchisor or its affiliates as the direct or indirect result 
of such disruptions, failures, or attacks. If Franchisee suspects or knows of a security breach, Franchisee 
shall immediately give notice of such security breach and promptly identify and remediate the source of 
any compromise of security breach at its expense. Franchisee assumes all responsibility for providing all 
notices of breach or compromise and all duties to monitor credit histories, and transactions concerning 
clients, unless otherwise directed by Franchisor. Franchisee shall comply with all standards, laws, rules, 
regulations, or any equivalent thereof relating to personal information, data privacy, and data protection, 
including but not limited to, as applicable, the California Consumer Privacy Act, Cal. Civ. Code Section 
1798.100 et seq., and must comply with any privacy policies or data protection and breach response 
policies Franchisor periodically may establish. 

5.5  Franchisee shall ensure that the Services and Products offered and provided by 
Franchisee are offered and provided in a manner that will not reflect adversely on Franchisee or 
Franchisor in the minds of consumers. To monitor its performance, Franchisee shall conduct surveys of 
its property owner clients at least annually, in the form required by Franchisor, and provide Franchisor 
with copies of all surveys and results. If Franchisee does not conduct the survey annually, Franchisor can 
conduct the survey on behalf of Franchisee. 

5.6 All data stored on Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s systems including client (owner and 
guest) and reservation data, whether provided by Franchisee or otherwise, is the property of Franchisor or 
its affiliate, and Franchisor hereby grants a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable, revocable 
license to Franchisee to use such data during the Term solely in connection with conducting Franchisee’s 
Business.  Franchisor may contact or market such clients (owners and guests) for any reason at any time.  
All information Franchisor or its affiliate obtains from Franchisee or about or related to the Business, and 
all revenues Franchisor or its affiliate derives from such information, shall be Franchisor’s or its 
affiliate’s property, excluding any employment records of Franchisee (which shall belong solely to and be 
the responsibility of Franchisee).  Franchisee may use information that it acquires from third parties in 
operating the Business during the Term to the extent lawful and at its sole risk and responsibility, but only 
in connection with operating the Business for the purposes hereunder.  Such information (except for 
information Franchisee provides to Franchisor with respect to it and its affiliates) shall become the 
confidential information of Franchisor or its affiliate, which Franchisor or its affiliate may use for any 
reason it deems necessary or appropriate.  Franchisee and Franchisor shall comply with all applicable 
laws pertaining to the privacy and security of personal information, including, without limitation, local, 
regional, and national requirements applicable to the Business.   



License Agreement (04/2023) 8 

5.7 Franchisee must subscribe, at Franchisee’s expense, to an Internet service provider or 
other electronic communication provider or service and obtain and use, at Franchisee’s expense, and in 
the manner and form and meeting such minimum standards as Franchisor may approve or require, 
computer equipment, operating software, communication services, and other electronic and computer 
systems, and the like, for communicating, reporting, and other operations of the Business.  Franchisor 
shall have independent access to all of Franchisee’s computer systems, excluding any employment 
records.  Franchisor may require that any and all communications between Franchisee and Franchisor be 
made through the Internet or such other electronic medium as Franchisor may designate, and Franchisee 
may be required to access the Internet or other electronic information on a regular basis to obtain full 
benefit of the System.  Franchisee shall maintain a working email address to communicate with 
Franchisor.  Franchisor is not liable for any damage to Franchisee including lost profits, which occur as a 
result of any outage or delay related to electronic transmission of information, whether by the Internet or 
otherwise, or as a result of Franchisee’s failure to access the information.  Franchisor and its affiliate may, 
in their sole discretion, make use of any information furnished by them to Franchisee in the conduct of its 
business, excluding any employment records.   

6. Ownership and Use of Trademarks. 

6.1 License. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants 
to Franchisee a limited, nonexclusive, royalty-free, non-transferable, non-sublicensable right and license 
during the Term to use the Marks in the Territory solely in connection with the Business and solely in 
accordance with Franchisor’s trademark usage guidelines, as may be amended and provided to Franchisee 
by Franchisor in Franchisor’s discretion from time to time.  

6.2 Ownership. Franchisee’s right to use the Marks is under a license derived solely from this 
Agreement and all such usage and any goodwill established thereby shall inure to the exclusive benefit of 
Franchisor or its affiliates. Except for the limited license expressly set forth in Section 6.1, Franchisee 
shall have no right, title, or interest in or to the Marks and all rights not specifically granted to Franchisee 
in Section 6.1 are expressly reserved to Franchisor and its affiliates. All use of the Marks by Franchisee 
shall inure to the benefit of Franchisor and its affiliates for all purposes, including for purposes of 
trademark registration and domain name registration, and nothing herein shall transfer or grant any such 
rights to Franchisee. Nothing in this Agreement limits or restricts Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s right, 
either by itself of through third parties, to use, promote, license, or otherwise exploit the Marks, or any 
portion thereof. 

6.3 General Restrictions. Franchisee shall not use the Marks in any manner that is not 
specifically authorized by this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (a) Franchisee 
shall not use any marks, trade names, Internet domain names, or social media accounts, profiles, or 
hashtags confusingly similar to the Marks or that refer to the Business or System, (b) Franchisee shall not 
use any Mark or portion thereof in conjunction with any Franchisee trademark, trade name or logo in a 
manner that suggests that such marks are a composite or singular mark, and (c) Franchisee shall use the 
Marks in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations (including all laws and regulations relating 
to the maintenance of the validity and enforceability of a Mark), and shall at all times conduct its 
activities under this Agreement in a lawful manner. Franchisee shall cooperate to avoid confusion or 
conflict arising out of Franchisee’s and Franchisor’s (including any licensees of Franchisor) use of the 
Marks, and to resolve any such conflicts to the satisfaction of Franchisor. Franchisee shall not challenge 
the validity of the Marks, any registrations or applications for registration thereof or Franchisor’s or its 
affiliate’s ownership thereof or register or attempt to register any Mark or any confusingly similar 
intellectual property, including Internet domain names and any phrase in which a Mark is used. 
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6.4 Conflicting Uses. Franchisee does not have the right to use any of the Marks in any 
manner that might conflict with the rights of any third party or tarnish, disparage, weaken, or otherwise be 
reasonably expected to adversely affect Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s rights in any of the Marks. If 
Franchisor determines in its discretion that Franchisee’s use of a Mark may or does infringe the rights of 
any third party or adversely affect Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s rights in such Mark, Franchisee will 
terminate or modify such use immediately in accordance with Franchisor’s instructions. If Franchisee 
fails to terminate or modify such use as reasonably directed by Franchisor, Franchisor shall have the right 
to terminate this Agreement for breach. If Franchisor identifies conflicting uses requiring treatment under 
this Section 6.4, Franchisor agrees to work with Franchisee in good faith to identify alternatives under 
this Section permitting modification of conflicting uses, prior to exercising its right of termination under 
this Section 6.4. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor promptly of any infringement or adverse effect on any 
Mark which comes to Franchisee’s attention, and Franchisor shall have the sole right and authority to take 
action in any such case. 

6.5 Further Assurances. Franchisee shall cooperate and assist Franchisor or its affiliate in 
securing, perfecting, preserving, and enforcing Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s rights in the Marks. Without 
limitation, Franchisee shall, at Franchisor’s sole expense, (a) execute and deliver to Franchisor or its 
affiliate, upon Franchisor’s request, all documents necessary or desirable to secure, prefect or preserve 
Franchisor’s or its affiliate’s rights in and to the Marks, to record Franchisee as a registered user of the 
Marks or to cancel such registered user recordation when appropriate and (b) cooperate and assist 
Franchisor or its affiliate in registering, and prosecuting claims against infringers of, the Marks.  

6.6 No Warranty. The grant of rights hereunder by Franchisor to the Marks is made only to 
the extent of the rights held by Franchisor in the Marks. Franchisor makes no warranty, express or 
implied, and hereby disclaims all warranties, with respect thereto or with respect to the rights of any third 
parties that may conflict with the rights granted hereunder. 

6.7 Quality Standards. Franchisor shall have the right to exercise quality control over 
Franchisee’s use of the Marks, including over the materials, products and services which are actually or 
planned to be offered, sold, marketed, distributed, or provided by Franchisee under or in connection with 
any of the Marks, and to the degree deemed necessary by Franchisor to maintain the validity and 
enforceability of the Marks and to protect the goodwill associated therewith. The quality of the materials, 
products and services offered by Franchisor through Franchisor’s Business as of the Effective Date is 
adequate for this purpose. Accordingly, Franchisee acknowledges and is familiar with the high standards, 
quality, style, and image of Franchisor, and Franchisee shall at all times during the Term use the Marks in 
a manner that is consistent therewith; and Franchisee shall ensure that the materials, products and services 
offered by it under or in connection with the Marks adhere to at least this level of quality and shall not 
reflect adversely upon Franchisor or the Marks. Franchisee shall not use or display the Marks in any 
manner that might be deceptive or misleading or that might bring Franchisor or the Marks into disrepute. 
Each of the provisions of this Agreement relating to the proper use and protection of the Marks, and of the 
goodwill associated therewith, is a material provision of this Agreement. 

6.8 Right to Sample and Inspect. To permit Franchisor to determine whether Franchisor’s 
standards of quality are met by Franchisee’s use of the Marks and the materials, products and services 
which are actually or planned to be offered by Franchisee under or in connection with any Mark, 
Franchisee shall, upon Franchisor’s request, and at no cost to Franchisor, during Franchisee’s normal 
business hours (i) provide to Franchisor reasonably representative samples of all such materials and 
products and the use of the Marks thereon or in connection therewith, and (ii) permit Franchisor to review 
all such services, in the manner in which they are performed, and the use of the Marks in connection 
therewith. Franchisor shall have the right at any time to require Franchisee to make any changes or 
corrections with regard to such materials, products or services as may be required in Franchisor’s 
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reasonable judgment to maintain the quality standards prescribed by Franchisor, and Franchisee shall 
make and incorporate such changes or corrections at Franchisee’s sole cost and expense. 

6.9 Proprietary Notices. All advertising and promotional materials and all other electronic, 
printed, and written materials using a Mark shall state that such Mark is owned by or licensed to 
Franchisor. Franchisee shall use one of the following forms of such notice, which Franchisor may change 
from time to time:  

[LICENSED MARK OR LICENSED NAME]* is a [trademark][service mark][trade 
name] of SkyRun Partners LLC under license from SkyRun Franchising Limited. Where 
“*” indicates the symbol “®” where the applicable Mark is registered by the United States 
Patent and Trademark Office and indicates the symbol “TM” or “SM”, as appropriate, where 
the applicable Mark is not the subject of such a registration.  

6.10 Changes to Marks. If Franchisor or its affiliate modifies or alters the Marks for any 
reason, Franchisee shall cooperate in such rebranding effort and use any new Mark specified by 
Franchisor from time to time including delivering new promotional materials provided by Franchisor 
from time to time, at Franchisee’s sole cost and expense. 

7. Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure. Franchisee (and its agents, employees and other 
representatives) shall use Confidential Information solely in connection with offering the Services and 
Products and in conducting Franchisee’s Business and not for any other purpose. Franchisee shall not 
disclose Confidential Information to any third party under any circumstances whatsoever, unless 
specifically agreed to by Franchisor in writing. Franchisee shall instruct each of its employees, agents or 
representatives who will have access to any Confidential Information as to its confidential nature and 
each such employee shall agree not to disclose the Confidential Information to anyone for any purpose 
without the express authorization of Franchisor. Franchisee shall be responsible for any breach of this 
Agreement by any of its employees, agents, or representatives. Franchisee shall take all reasonable steps 
to protect the Trade Secrets, and to employ at least those precautions that Franchisee employs to protect 
its own Trade Secrets, and shall take at least the following minimum steps: (a) Franchisee will limit 
access to Trade Secret information only to those employees or contractors of Franchisee who require the 
information in order to perform their jobs; and (b) no Trade Secret information will be disclosed to third 
parties; and (c) Franchisee will require that all employees or contractors who need access to Trade Secrets 
enter into confidentiality agreements, in a form approved by Franchisor.  

8. Services and Assistance.  

8.1 In addition to the License and the license to the Marks granted herein, Franchisor or its 
affiliate shall provide the following services to Franchisee: 

(a) The Franchisee Web Page, whose template is provided by Franchisor. Franchisor 
may charge Franchisee Franchisor’s current fee for making modifications or edits to the 
Franchisee Web Page.  Any and all content and any changes to the same must be approved by 
Franchisor prior to being made and the Franchisee Web Page may contain only such information 
as Franchisor may approve from time to time.  Other than this Franchisee Web Page, Franchisee 
shall not establish or maintain, or have established or maintained on its behalf, either alone or in 
concert with others, any other digital or electronic medium or method of communication, 
including a website, home page, HTML document, Internet site, web page, online directory or 
online business profile, review and opinion web pages or sites, or social media or social 
networking site, hashtag, profile, avatar, account or username relating to or making reference to 
Franchisor, the Marks, or the Business (each, a “Social Media Presence”), unless otherwise 
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approved by Franchisor.  Franchisee may not use all or part of any of the Marks, or any similar 
name, word, symbol, or variant thereof, in a domain name, email address, account name, 
username, profile, or URL.  Franchisor reserves the right at any time, in its sole discretion, to 
require Franchisee to remove, delete, or modify any Social Media Presence, or any information, 
content, or post thereon.  Franchisor will retain sole ownership of any Social Media Presence, as 
well as any domain name related thereto and all content thereon, which includes all or a portion 
of any of the Marks, or any word, phrase, or symbol confusingly similar thereto or variant 
thereof, as part of the domain name, username, account name, profile, or page reference. 
Franchisee must provide Franchisor with all passwords and access to any such Social Media 
Presence. Franchisee may not offer, promote, or sell any products or services or make use of any 
of Franchisor’s Marks, the License or Business, or the System, via any Social Media Presence 
without Franchisor’s prior written approval. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may also 
impose prohibitions on Franchisee posting or blogging of comments about Franchisor, the 
License or Business, or the System.  The foregoing prohibition includes personal blogs, common 
social networks like Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, Twitter, Snapchat, and Pinterest; professional 
networks, business profiles, or online review or opinion sites like LinkedIn, Google Business 
Profile, or Yelp; live-blogging tools like Twitter and Snapchat; virtual worlds, metaverses, file, 
audio and video-sharing sites, and other similar social networking or media sites or tools;  

(b) A license to access and use the proprietary Licensed Software for use in 
Franchisee’s conduct of the Business, subject to the terms set forth in this Agreement and the 
Subscription Agreement.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it shall exclusively use the 
Licensed Software and no other property management platform, service, or software in the 
Business; 

(c)  A Google Workspace account with business versions of Google Docs, Email, 
Calendar, Groups, and Drive; 

(d) Telephone or website chat access to Franchisor personnel to provide Franchisee 
advice in starting and managing Franchisee’s Business; 

(e) Access to the Franchisor phone system for inbound and outbound free calling 
when using the Franchisor desk phone to local phone numbers and from the SkyRun 877 number;  

(f) An initial training program; provided, that, Franchisee shall be responsible for 
wages and personal traveling and living expenses, including lodging, incurred by its personnel 
that participate in the training program. The initial training program, and any portions of it, shall 
be held at Franchisor’s facilities, or at the Franchisee’s location, or virtually or other location, all 
as determined by Franchisor. Franchisor does not charge for the initial training program for 
attendees attending the initial training program together before Franchisee commences operation 
of the Business, but Franchisee shall pay Franchisor’s then-current per attendee training cost for 
any other attendees attending a separate initial training program session.   

(g) One or more manuals for use in the Business, which manuals will be loaned by 
Franchisor to Franchisee and may consist of brand standards, operations, and manuals or 
otherwise.  The manual(s) are not to be copied in whole or in part, shall remain the property of 
Franchisor, and shall always be kept in safekeeping.  Franchisor, from time to time, may add to or 
modify some or all of the manual(s) to supplement or to improve the System and the contents and 
methods of promotion franchised hereunder and Franchisee shall at all times maintain the updated 
manual(s). 
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(h) Various example forms or templates Franchisee may use in the operation of the 
Business, including management and customer contracts, forms, and templates.  Franchisor 
makes no representation or warranty as to the enforceability of any contracts or other forms 
provided to Franchisee for use in its Business, or whether any such forms meet the legal 
requirements of the jurisdiction in which Franchisee does business.  Franchisee acknowledges 
that it is Franchisee’s responsibility to modify such forms to meet all laws and regulations 
applicable to the Business and to use no contract that does not comply with applicable law.   
Franchisee shall not make any modifications, deletions, or additions to any management and 
customer contracts, forms, and templates provided by Franchisor except to the extent required by 
applicable law, and in any event, Franchisee shall obtain Franchisor’s prior approval before using 
any modified management or customer contract, form, or template. Under no circumstances shall 
Franchisee modify, remove, or otherwise contravene the assignment and transfer provisions 
provided by Franchisor in such management and customer contracts, forms, and templates.  
Franchisor may from time to time update the forms provided to Franchisee.  Upon provision of an 
updated form to Franchisee, Franchisee must immediately discontinue use of any prior version 
and only use the new version of the form on a going forward basis. 

(i) Annual planning and quarterly review meetings (which may be in-person or 
virtually, as determined by Franchisor).  

(j) Franchisor may periodically provide mandatory training.  If Franchisor provides 
it, Franchisee or one of its staff members that Franchisor approves must attend or complete the 
training.  Franchisor may periodically also provide optional training.  Any new manager of the 
Business must attend and successfully complete Franchisor’s initial training program within thirty 
(30) days of the start of employment or when they begin managing the Business, whichever is 
earlier.  Each of these trainings is provided at the locations and times Franchisor specifies. 
Franchisee must pay Franchisor its then-current training fee for these mandatory and optional 
trainings.  The cost for this training must be paid before the training begins. Franchisee is 
responsible for the travel and living expenses it and its employees incur in attending this training. 

8.2 Franchisee shall maintain all furniture, fixtures, and equipment, technology and computer 
hardware, supplies, and inventory used in the Business in excellent working condition.  As such items 
become damaged, worn, obsolete, unsafe, or mechanically impaired to the extent they require 
replacement, Franchisee shall replace such items with either the same or substantially similar types and 
kinds of items as are being installed in other, similar businesses franchised by Franchisor, or opened by 
Franchisor or its affiliates, at the time replacement becomes necessary.  All such items used in the 
Business shall meet the specifications of Franchisor and shall be approved by Franchisor prior to 
installation or use thereof.   

8.3 Unless Franchisor otherwise approves, the furniture, fixtures, and equipment, design and 
décor, branded items and signage, computer hardware and software, technology and security systems, 
products Franchisee purchases for use or sale at the Business, insurance, and advertising and marketing 
materials, must meet Franchisor’s specifications as they may be provided to Franchisee from time to time.  
From time to time, Franchisor may provide Franchisee a list of approved suppliers of furniture, fixtures, 
and equipment, supplies, software and hardware, insurance, and other items or services necessary to 
operate the Business.  The approved source of supply for any individual item may be Franchisor, an 
affiliate of Franchisor, or an independent third party.  Franchisor, an affiliate, or an unrelated third party 
may be the sole source of supply for an item.   

(a) Unless otherwise specified by Franchisor, Franchisee shall not be restricted from 
using sources of supply other than those previously approved by Franchisor, if the other sources 
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supply items or services of substantially the same quality and specifications as those supplied by 
the approved suppliers.   

(b) Franchisor reserves the right to require Franchisee to obtain the written approval 
of Franchisor prior to the use of any supplier not previously approved by Franchisor and, as a 
precondition to the granting of such approval, may require the proposed supplier to submit to 
Franchisor samples of products it proposes to provide to Franchisee for use in the Business and 
any other information Franchisor requires, to have a data privacy compliance plan that meets 
Franchisor’s specifications and all data privacy laws and regulations and to meet any other 
requirements of Franchisor.  In such event, Franchisor shall have ninety (90) days from its receipt 
of all such information to approve such supplier.  Any supplier not approved in such time period 
shall be deemed rejected.  

8.4 Franchisor shall not have control over, and shall not provide significant assistance for, the 
day-to-day management or operations of Franchisee’s Business. Franchisor is not obligated to perform 
services set forth in this Agreement to Franchisee’s particular level of satisfaction, but as a function of 
Franchisor’s experience, knowledge, and judgment. Franchisor does not represent or warrant that any 
other services will be provided to Franchisee, other than as set forth in this Agreement. Franchisor does 
not represent or warrant that the services offered by Franchisor under this Agreement will generate any 
additional clients or that Franchisee will obtain any additional revenue. If Franchisor determines that it is 
necessary for it to provide additional services to Franchisee to protect its goodwill in the System and its 
Marks, or if Franchisee requests additional services from Franchisor, Franchisor may charge Franchisee a 
reasonable fee for such additional services. If Franchisee believes Franchisor has failed to adequately 
provide any services required to be provided to Franchisee or its employees in regard to the training, 
support, or any other matter affecting the establishment of the Business, Franchisee shall so notify 
Franchisor in writing within thirty (30) days following commencement of operation of the Business.  
Absent the timely provision of such notice to Franchisor, Franchisee shall be deemed to conclusively 
acknowledge that all pre-opening and opening services required to be performed by Franchisor were 
sufficient and satisfactory in Franchisee’s judgment. 

9. Franchisee’s Duties and Obligations. 

9.1 Franchisee shall operate the Business from a home office or other office location, which 
in either case must be approved by Franchisor.  It shall be the responsibility of Franchisee to identify 
prospective sites for the Business and to obtain Franchisor’s approval of any proposed site for the 
Business before obtaining possession of the site.  Franchisee may not commence operation of the 
Business until Franchisee has satisfied all conditions set forth in this Agreement and the manuals required 
to be satisfied by Franchisee prior to commencing operation of the Business, including successful 
completion of those portions of the initial training program required by Franchisor, obtaining all licenses 
and permits and insurance policies necessary to operate the Business, and the launch of the Franchisee 
Web Page.  Franchisee shall complete all condition precedents to opening and shall commence operation 
of the Business within ninety (90) days after the Effective Date.  Franchisor may terminate this 
Agreement and retain all amounts paid by Franchisee if Franchisee fails to commence operation of the 
Business within such time period or Franchisee fails to obtain Franchisor’s approval of its business 
location within thirty (30) days of the execution of this Agreement. 

9.2 Franchisee shall diligently develop Franchisee’s Business within the Territory and use its 
best efforts to market and promote the Services and Products in its Territory while maintaining the highest 
ethical standards and the reputation of Franchisor. Franchisee shall not offer any products and services 
through the Business that are not approved by Franchisor, and Franchisee shall not operate the Business 
outside the Territory. Prior to using any marketing or promotional materials, advertisements, or other 
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advertising not prepared by or at the direction of Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit such items to 
Franchisor for its prior approval.  If Franchisor does not approve the use of such materials by Franchisee 
within fifteen (15) days after its receipt of such materials, they shall be deemed to have been rejected.  
However, Franchisor may revoke approval of any previously approved materials at any time.   

(a)  Franchisee shall spend at least $6,000 to conduct a grand opening of the Business 
within the first three (3) months of commencing operation of the Business.  Upon Franchisor’s 
request, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor receipts of expenditures spent on the grand opening 
program. If Franchisee fails to spend the minimum required amount on the grand opening 
program, Franchisee must pay to Franchisor the difference between what it actually spent on the 
grand opening program and the minimum that it was required to spend on the grand opening 
program.  

(b) In addition to the grand opening program, once Franchisee commences operation 
of the Business, Franchisee must spend at least $12,000 per Term Year on approved local 
advertising via local marketing campaigns and promotional programs, direct mail, email 
campaigns, Internet advertising, and Internet search engine campaigns.  Franchisee must obtain 
our approval of all local marketing activities before implementation, and Franchisee must submit 
receipts of local marketing expenditures.  If Franchisee does not meet this yearly requirement by 
the end of any Term Year, Franchisee must, upon Franchisor’s demand, pay to Franchisor the 
difference between what it actually spent on approved local marketing and the minimum that it 
was required to spend on approved local marketing during the past Term Year. Amounts 
Franchisee spends for the grand opening program will not count toward the monthly expenditure. 
Franchisee shall deliver promotional materials reflecting the SkyRun brand and all SkyRun 
locations to its guests and owners both in offices and guest rooms and online on Franchisee’s 
website.  

(c) Indirect costs Franchisee incurs in managing local advertising campaigns, such as 
salaries and benefits of its employees, will not count towards these minimum expenditure 
requirements in this Section 9.1. Additionally, any costs Franchisee incurs for advertising 
conducted at the Business will not count towards these minimum expenditure requirements in this 
Section 9.2. 

(d) If Franchisee request additional marketing assistance that Franchisor agrees to 
provide, Franchisee must pay Franchisor its current marketing assistance fee. 

(e) Franchisee will comply with all directives from Franchisor with respect to any 
Social Media Presence approved by Franchisor, including those related to materials posted on any 
Social Media Presence, links to and from any Social Media Presence, the use of the Marks on any 
Social Media Presence, provision to Franchisor of passwords and any log-in credentials needed to 
access, remove, delete, or modify any Social Media Presence, and security for any Social Media 
Presence.  In addition, any Social Media Presence approved by Franchisor must be operated and 
maintained by Franchisee in compliance with all provisions of this Agreement, including those 
regarding the use of confidential and proprietary information, as well as any and all operating 
procedures, policies, standards, and requirements that Franchisor may specify from time to time.  
Franchisee must also maintain any Social Media Presence approved by Franchisor in compliance 
with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, including those applicable to copyright and 
trademark, privacy, anti-defamation, and advertising and endorsements.  Franchisor reserves the 
right at any time, in its sole discretion, to itself, or require Franchisee to, remove, delete or modify 
any Social Media Presence, or any information, content or post thereon.  Franchisor will retain 
sole ownership of any Social Media Presence, as well as any domain name related thereto and all 
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content thereon, which includes all or a portion of any of the Marks, or any word, phrase or 
symbol confusingly similar thereto or variant thereof, as part of the domain name, username, 
account name, hashtag, profile or page reference. 

9.3 Franchisee shall attend and complete those portions of the initial training program within 
the times required by Franchisor and must pay all expenses of persons attending from Franchisee’s 
company, including all expenses for travel, lodging, and food. 

9.4 Franchisee shall at all times comply with the Terms of Use, as amended by Franchisor 
from time to time in connection with its use of the Franchisee Web Page and the website provided by 
Franchisor. 

9.5 Franchisee shall offer any additional services, products, promotions, or loyalty programs 
introduced into the System by Franchisor for sale on a continuing basis from the Business and on 
Franchisee’s website at the time and in the manner required by Franchisor. These programs may require 
discounting the daily rates for Franchisee’s properties by up to twenty percent (20%). 

9.6 Franchisee shall not offer any service or product except the Services and Products unless 
Franchisee receives the prior written consent of Franchisor. 

9.7  Franchisee must always comply with all applicable federal, state and local ordinances, 
rules, regulations and other legal requirements in connection with Franchisee’s Business and its offer and 
sale of the Services and Products. In connection therewith Franchisee acknowledges that it will collect, 
possess, and utilize personally identifiable information of its clients. Franchisee shall always comply with 
Franchisor’s privacy policy and shall post on Franchisee’s Web Page and comply with a privacy policy at 
least as protective of clients’ personal data as Franchisor’s privacy policy. Franchisee shall comply with 
all standards, laws, rules, regulations, or any equivalent thereof relating to personal and financial 
information, data privacy, and data protection, including but not limited to, as applicable, the California 
Consumer Privacy Act, Cal. Civ. Code Section 1798.100 et seq. Franchisee shall implement and maintain 
Franchisor’s minimum standards as Franchisor may adopt from time-to-time in its manuals or otherwise 
for technical, access, data, and organizational security, including, without limitation, with respect to 
unlawful or unauthorized access, accidental loss, or destruction of personal data in Franchisee’s 
possession or control; account access; login information and processes; periodic security training and 
certifications; and anti-virus and anti-malware protection. Franchisee acknowledges that computer 
systems are vulnerable in varying degrees to interruptions, computer viruses, bugs, power disruptions, 
communication line disruptions, Internet access failures, Internet content failures, date-related problems, 
degradation of service and attacks by hackers and other unauthorized intruders (“Tech Problems”). 
Franchisor does not guarantee that information or communications systems that Franchisor or others 
supply, or host will not be vulnerable to Tech Problems. It is Franchisee’s responsibility to protect itself 
from Tech Problems, which may include obtaining cyber risk insurance. Franchisee shall take reasonable 
steps to verify that its suppliers, system administrators, lenders, landlords, clients, and governmental 
agencies have reasonable protection from Tech Problems. This may include taking reasonable steps to 
secure Franchisee’s systems (including without limitation, utilizing firewalls, password protection and 2-
factor authentication, workstation encrypting and anti-virus and malware systems) and to provide backup 
systems. Tech Problems will not constitute a basis for refunding commissions or compensating 
Franchisee or it’s owners or guests for losses. 

9.8  Franchisee shall pay when due all debts and taxes arising in connection with the 
Business, except those duly contested in a bona fide dispute. 

9.9 Franchisee shall not operate the Business outside of Franchisee’s Territory, advertise to 
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guests or owners that are outside of Franchisee’s Territory or list or service properties that are physically 
located outside of Franchisee’s Territory, or provide Services and Products outside of Franchisee’s 
Territory, unless authorized by Franchisor in writing. 

9.10 Franchisee shall employ at least one (1) manager who is responsible for the general 
operation of the Business; if Franchisee is the owner-operator of the Business, then Franchisee shall be 
the manager.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee shall at all times be held responsible for the day-
to-day operation and management of the Business.  At the time this Agreement is executed by Franchisee, 
Franchisee shall also complete the Statement of Ownership and Management attached hereto, and, if 
Franchisee is a corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, each owner of Franchisee as of the 
date hereof, as well as any future owners of Franchisee, must sign Franchisor’s then-current Guaranty at 
the time such individual becomes an owner of Franchisee.  Franchisee shall immediately notify 
Franchisor of any change in any of the information in the Statement of Ownership and Management last 
submitted to Franchisor.  Further, upon request of Franchisor, Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with an 
updated Statement of Ownership and Management. 

9.11 Notwithstanding anything set forth in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor may 
require Franchisee to upgrade any technology used by Franchisee in the Business at any time, replace its 
computer systems, replace or upgrade hardware or software used by Franchisee in the Business, or require 
Franchisee to purchase additional hardware or software that Franchisor may select for use in the Business.   

9.12 Franchisee must participate in, comply with all terms and conditions of, and pay all 
charges related to, all programs Franchisor may require Franchisee to participate in from time to time.  
The terms and conditions of any such programs, as well as the programs themselves, may be modified or 
terminated at any time by Franchisor in its sole and absolute discretion.   

9.13 Franchisee shall maintain its books and records in the manner reasonably required by 
Franchisor.  Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with such financial and sales information relating to the 
business of Franchisee as from time to time may be reasonably required by Franchisor.  Franchisee shall 
provide to Franchisor such monthly and/or annual financial reports as Franchisor may specify.  The 
financial and sales information shall be delivered to Franchisor, at the time, in the form and by the means 
of communication authorized by Franchisor.  Franchisor may use such financial information in any 
manner and for any purpose it, in its sole and absolute judgment, deems appropriate.  Franchisor has the 
right to share any such financial information and other information Franchisee provides to Franchisor 
with other SkyRun franchisees and to publicly disclose and include Franchisee’s financial information in 
Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document.  Franchisee, and if Franchisee is a limited liability company, 
corporation, or partnership, the owners of Franchisee, shall also submit to Franchisor, upon request, 
copies of their annual federal, state, and city income and sales tax returns, if any. 

9.14 Franchisor shall have the right to audit or cause to be audited the sales reports and 
financial statements delivered to Franchisor, and the books, records, and sales and income tax returns of 
Franchisee, and if Franchisee is a limited liability company, corporation, or partnership, the owners of 
Franchisee, excluding any employment records.  If any audit discloses that Franchisee has failed to pay to 
Franchisor any fees owed Franchisor (including as a result of an underreporting of Gross Revenue), 
Franchisee, within ten (10) days of receipt of the audit report, shall pay to Franchisor the fees and other 
amounts due Franchisor, plus late payment charges as provided in this Agreement.  In addition, if an 
understatement for any period equals two percent (2%) or more of the Gross Revenue of the Business for 
any period, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the cost of the audit, including the charges of any 
independent accountant and the travel expenses, lodging, and compensation of persons employed by 
Franchisor to make the audit. Franchisee shall permit Franchisor and its representatives, whenever 
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Franchisor reasonably may deem necessary, during normal business hours, to enter, remain on, and 
inspect the Business.   

10. Insurance and Indemnification. 

10.1  During the Term, Franchisee shall maintain in full force and effect insurance policies 
issued by an insurance company authorized to do business in the state where the Business is located and 
acceptable to Franchisor as follows, in such amounts as Franchisor may from time-to-time require in its 
manuals or otherwise:  

(a) Worker’s Compensation insurance complying with the law of the state(s) in 
which the Territory is located.  

(b) Commercial General Liability insurance, covering all Services and Products to be 
offered under this Agreement and cyber risk coverage.  

(c) Commercial Automobile Liability insurance to include coverage for all owned, 
non-owned, and hired vehicles. 

(d) Commercial Umbrella Liability/Excess Liability insurance.   

Insurance policies must insure Franchisee and name Franchisor and Franchisor’s designated affiliates, 
officers, directors, managers, members, and all other person designated by Franchisor as additional named 
insureds. Failure of Franchisee to obtain this required insurance constitutes a material breach of this 
Agreement entitling Franchisor to terminate this Agreement or exercise any or a combination of the other 
default remedies set forth in this Agreement. Franchisee shall also procure and pay for all other insurance 
required by state or federal law.  If Franchisee at any time fails or refuses to maintain any insurance 
coverage required by Franchisor, or fails to furnish satisfactory evidence thereof, Franchisor, at its option 
and in addition to its other rights and remedies hereunder, may obtain such insurance coverage on behalf 
of Franchisee, and any costs of premiums incurred by Franchisor in connection therewith shall be paid by 
Franchisee on demand. 

10.2  Franchisee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Franchisor, its affiliates and their 
respective officers, directors, managers, members, employees, and agents against all claims, demands, 
losses, damages (including punitive damages), costs, suits, judgments, penalties, expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and amounts paid in settlement or compromise) and liabilities of any kind, 
whether or not ultimately determined to be meritorious (and including damages suffered by Franchisee or 
any of its property) (together, “Damages”) for which they are held liable, or which they incur (including 
travel, investigation and living expenses of employees and witness fees) in any litigation or proceeding as 
a result of or arising out of: 

(a)  Franchisee’s breach of this Agreement or any other agreement between the 
parties; 

(b)  loss of or damage to any property or injury, bodily or personal, to or death of any 
person(s), including Franchisee’s employees, agents, or contractors, in or on any premises used 
by Franchisee to provide the Services and Products; 

(c)  Franchisee’s taxes, liabilities, costs or expenses of its Services and Products; 
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(d)  any negligent or willful act or omission of Franchisee, its officers, directors, 
managers, members, partners, employees, agents, servants, contractors, or others for whom it is 
responsible; 

(e)  any suit, action, legal proceeding, claim or demand of whatever kind or character 
based on: (i) any alleged defect, negligence, or breach of warranty with respect to Franchisee’s 
Business, its Services and Products, the equipment used to provide the Services or the use or 
condition thereof; (ii) any allegation of false or misleading advertising involving Franchisee’s 
Services and Products or its use of the Intellectual Property; or (iii) any allegation of passing off 
or unfair competition involving the Services and Products or the Intellectual Property. 

(f)  any violation of any federal, state or local law, ordinance or regulation imposing 
requirements or prohibitions on Franchisee in the offering of the Services and Products;   

(g)  any advertising or promotional material distributed, broadcast or in any way 
disseminated by Franchisee or on its behalf; 

(h)  use of the Intellectual Property in a manner not authorized by this Agreement; 

(i)  claims arising out of Workers’ Compensation, Unemployment Compensation or 
similar such laws or obligations applicable to employees of Franchisee or its contractors; or 

(j) breach of a warranty, representation, guarantee or duty of Franchisee to any 
person. 

11. Term; Renewal.  

11.1 Term. This Agreement, unless terminated earlier as provided herein, will remain in full 
force and effect until 12:01 a.m. Mountain Time on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Effective Date (the 
“Term”).  

11.2 Renewal.  Franchisee may renew the License for an additional term of five (5) years, 
subject to the satisfaction of all conditions imposed by Franchisor upon renewal, including that upon 
expiration of the Initial Term, Franchisee shall have:  

(a) complied with all provisions of this Agreement and operated the Business utilizing and 
conforming to the System and utilized exclusively the Marks in the operation of the Business;  

(b) upgraded the Business, including any technology used in the Business, to meet Franchisor’s 
then-current standards;   
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(c) provided Franchisor at least two hundred ten (210) days prior written notice of its election to 
renew the License; and 

(d) within thirty (30) days after delivery to Franchisee of all agreements and documents required 
by Franchisor for renewal: (1) executed Franchisor’s then-current form of license or franchise agreement 
offered to prospective new franchisees, as amended to reflect that the License is a renewal and not a grant 
of a new License, and all other agreements and legal instruments and documents then customarily 
employed by Franchisor in the grant of SkyRun franchises to prospective new franchisees, including a 
general release; and (2) paid to Franchisor a renewal fee of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000).   

Except to the extent provided in Section 3.2(f), Franchisee acknowledges that the right of renewal 
set forth herein does not give Franchisee the right to renew any specific provisions of this Agreement, and 
Franchisee recognizes that the terms of license or franchise agreements utilized by Franchisor upon 
renewal are likely to be substantially different than the terms offered by Franchisor as of the date hereof.  
Franchisee further acknowledges that the failure to meet any conditions of renewal imposed by 
Franchisor, including those set forth herein, shall be deemed an election by Franchisee not to renew the 
Franchise. 

11.3 Holdover.  If Franchisee does not sign a new license or franchise agreement prior to 
expiration of the Term, and Franchisee continues to accept the benefits of this Agreement after the 
expiration of this Agreement, then at the option of Franchisor this Agreement shall be deemed to: (1) have 
expired as of the date of its stated expiration, with Franchisee then operating without a Franchise to do so 
and in violation of Franchisor’s rights; or (2) be continuing on a month-to-month basis (the “Interim 
Period”) until one party provides the other with written notice of such party’s intention to terminate the 
Interim Period, in which case the Interim Period will terminate thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice 
to terminate the Interim Period.  Notwithstanding anything set forth herein to the contrary, all obligations 
of Franchisee shall remain in full force and effect during the Interim Period as if the Term of the 
Franchise had not expired and all obligations and restrictions imposed on Franchisee upon expiration of 
this Agreement shall be deemed to take effect upon termination of the Interim Period. 

12. Termination. 

12.1 Termination By Franchisee.  Franchisee may terminate this Agreement and the franchise 
granted hereunder effective ten (10) days after delivery to Franchisor of notice of termination, if 
Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement and Franchisor materially breaches this Agreement and 
fails to cure the breach within thirty (30) days after written notice of the breach is delivered to Franchisor. 

12.2 Pre-Termination Options of Franchisor.  Prior to the termination of this Agreement, if 
Franchisee fails to pay any amounts owed to Franchisor or its affiliates (whether under this Agreement or 
otherwise) or fails to comply with any term of this Agreement, then in addition to any right Franchisor 
may have to terminate this Agreement or to bring a claim for damages, Franchisor shall have the option 
to:  

(a) Prohibit Franchisee from attending any conventions, meetings, trainings, or 
seminars held or sponsored by Franchisor;  

(b) Remove any listing of the Business from any advertising and remove the 
Franchisee Web Page; and 

(c) Suspend the provision of any or all of the services provided by or through 
Franchisor to Franchisee. 
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Franchisor’s actions, as provided in this Section 12.2, may continue until Franchisee has brought its 
accounts current, cured any default, and complied with Franchisor’s requirements, and Franchisor has 
acknowledged the same in writing.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the taking by Franchisor of 
any of these actions shall not deprive Franchisee of a substantial portion of the benefits provided to it 
under this Agreement and therefore the taking of any of the actions permitted in this Section 12.2 shall 
not suspend or release Franchisee from any obligation that would otherwise be owed to Franchisor or its 
affiliates under the terms of this Agreement, or otherwise, nor shall Franchisee assert that the taking of 
any such actions shall act as an actual or constructive termination of this Agreement. 

12.3 Termination by Franchisor. In addition to Franchisor’s other termination rights in this 
Agreement, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon receipt by Franchisee 
of notice of termination, if Franchisee: 

(a) Voluntarily abandons the franchise relationship under this Agreement; 

(b) Is convicted in a court of competent jurisdiction of an offense directly related to 
the Business, or fails to comply with any federal, state, or local law or regulation applicable to the 
operation of the Business;   

(c) Loses a license or permit required by applicable law to operate the Business, 
which shall include the loss of a license or permit by any owner of Franchisee; 

(d) Fails to cure a default under this Agreement which materially impairs the 
goodwill associated with the Marks after Franchisee has received written notice to cure at least 
twenty four (24) hours in advance of the notice of termination;   

(e) Submits to Franchisor two (2) or more sales reports, financial statements, or other 
information or supporting records in any period of twelve (12) consecutive months, which 
materially distorts any other material information, or consistently fails to submit when due sales 
reports or financial statements to Franchisor;  

(f) Fails to pay when due any fees or other payments due to Franchisor or its 
affiliates and such failure continues for ten (10) days after notice to Franchisee; 

(g) Consistently fails to remit when due payments to suppliers or other creditors of 
the Business, and such failure continues for ten (10) days after notice to Franchisee; 

(h) Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or an admission of its inability 
to pay its obligations as they become due, or files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any 
pleading seeking any reorganization, arrangement, composition, adjustment, liquidation, 
dissolution, or similar relief under any law, admits or fails to contest the material allegations of 
any such pleading filed against it, or is adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent; 

(i) Makes an unauthorized assignment or transfer of this Agreement, the Business, 
or the franchise granted hereunder;   

(j) Has made material misrepresentations on its application for the franchise granted 
hereunder;  

(k) Fails to fully fund, at all times, any trust accounts required by Franchisor and 
does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after notice to Franchisee; or 
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(l) Loses the right, for any reason, to use or access the Licensed Software, including 
as a result of termination or expiration of the Subscription Agreement;  

(m) Otherwise materially breaches this Agreement or fails to comply with any 
provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard, or operating procedure prescribed by 
Franchisor and does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after notice to Franchisee. 

12.4 Compliance with Applicable Law.  The foregoing notwithstanding, to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement provide for periods of notice less than those required by applicable law, or 
provide for termination, cancellation, non-renewal, or the like other than in accordance with applicable 
law, such provisions shall, to the extent such are not in accordance with applicable law, be superseded by 
said law, and Franchisor shall comply with applicable law in connection with each of these matters. 

12.5 No Exclusive Remedy. Termination of this Agreement will not be the exclusive remedy 
of the non-defaulting party in the event of a default, and the non-defaulting party may exercise any and all 
other legal remedies available to it under applicable law in the event of default. 

12.6 Effect of Termination or Expiration; Survival. Upon the effective date of termination or 
expiration of this Agreement for any reason, Franchisee shall immediately:  (a) discontinue all use of the 
System, Intellectual Property and the Marks; (b) return to Franchisor all copies of all manual(s) that have 
been loaned to it by Franchisor and any confidential or proprietary material of Franchisor; (c) pay to 
Franchisor such Royalty Fees, Technology Fees, Marketing Services Fees, and other charges as have or 
will thereafter become due hereunder and are then unpaid; and (d) provide Franchisor with all client 
information, lists and other information requested by Franchisor related to such clients and assign to 
Franchisor or its designee such client accounts and outstanding property management service agreements 
and customer agreements as Franchisor may determine, in its sole and absolute discretion, and take all 
other actions reasonably requested by Franchisor to facilitate the assignment of all such client accounts 
and agreements to Franchisor or its designee, including the transfer of any deposits or other amounts held 
in connection with such accounts or agreements.  

Franchisor will also have the right upon termination to immediately disable Franchisees’ access 
to the Website and, except as expressly provided herein, will have no further duties or obligations to 
Franchisee. After Franchisor provides Franchisee with notice of any default hereunder, Franchisor can 
notify any third parties, including any landlords, lenders, and clients, of the default and communicate with 
such third parties regarding Franchisee and the Business.  All obligations of Franchisor and Franchisee 
that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration, or assignment of this Agreement or 
the franchise granted hereunder, including the post-termination rights and obligations, non-competition, 
confidentiality, indemnification, and enforcement and dispute resolution provisions herein, shall continue 
in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement 
until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire. 

13. Sale, Transfer, Assignment.

13.1 Assignment by Franchisor.  This Agreement is fully assignable by Franchisor without the 
consent of or prior notice to Franchisee, and shall inure to the benefit of any assignee or other legal 
successor in interest of Franchisor.   

13.2 General Prohibition on Franchisee Assignment.  No Franchisee, partner (if Franchisee is 
a partnership), shareholder (if Franchisee is a corporation), or member (if Franchisee is a limited liability 
company), without the prior written consent of Franchisor, by operation of law or otherwise, shall sell, 
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assign, transfer, convey, give away, lease, have redeemed, or encumber to any person, trust, firm, 
corporation, partnership, or company, its interest in this Agreement or its interest in the franchise granted 
hereby or its interest in any proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or limited liability company which, 
directly or indirectly, owns any interest in the franchise, or its interest in the Business, or the assets of the 
Business.  Any purported assignment not having the necessary consent shall be null and void and shall 
constitute a material default hereunder. 

13.3 Conditions to Franchisee Assignment.  Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold its 
consent to any assignment provided the following conditions and requirements shall first be satisfied: 

(a) If Franchisee desires to assign or transfer all of its rights to a partnership, 
corporation, or limited liability company controlled by Franchisee:   

(1) the transferee shall be newly organized and its charter shall provide that 
its activities are confined exclusively to operating the Business;  

(2) the transferee shall be properly licensed to provide the Services and 
Products offered through the Business;  

(3) Franchisee shall be and shall remain the principal executive officer of the 
transferee;   

(4) Franchisee shall be and shall remain in control of the transferee and shall 
be and shall remain the owner of not less than fifty one percent (51%) of the issued and 
outstanding voting stock or membership interests of the transferee corporation or limited 
liability company or, in the case of a partnership, of fifty one percent (51%) of the voting 
control of the transferee partnership (or such higher ownership amounts as required by 
state law); 

(5) each stock or membership certificate of the transferee corporation or 
limited liability company, or the partnership agreement of the transferee partnership, shall 
have conspicuously endorsed upon it a statement that it is held subject to, and that further 
assignment or transfer of any interest therein is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon 
assignments by this Agreement;   

(6) no new voting interest in the transferee shall be issued to any person or 
entity without obtaining Franchisor’s prior written consent;  

(7) the transferee shall enter into a written agreement with Franchisee and 
Franchisor, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, assuming all of Franchisee’s obligations 
hereunder;   

(8) all the partners, shareholders, or members of the transferee shall enter 
into a written agreement in a form satisfactory to Franchisor jointly and severally 
guaranteeing the full payment and performance of the transferee’s obligations to 
Franchisor and agreeing to be personally bound by all covenants and restrictions imposed 
upon the transferee under this Agreement; and 

(9) all accrued money obligations of Franchisee to Franchisor and its 
subsidiaries, affiliates, and assigns shall be satisfied prior to assignment or transfer.   
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(b) If an assignment (other than an assignment as set forth in Section 13.3(a)), alone 
or together with other previous, simultaneous, or proposed transfers, would have the effect of 
transferring control of the Franchise created hereby or the Business: 

(1) the transferee shall meet Franchisor’s then-current standards for the 
issuance of a Franchisor Vacation Rentals franchise, be of good moral character and 
reputation, be properly licensed and in good standing with the state in which the Business 
is located and operating, and shall have a good credit rating, financial capabilities, and 
competent business qualifications reasonably acceptable to Franchisor.  Franchisee shall 
provide Franchisor with the information it may reasonably require to make a 
determination concerning each proposed transferee;   

(2) the transferee, including all shareholders, members, and partners of the 
transferee, shall jointly and severally execute a new license or License Agreement with 
Franchisor, on the terms then offered by Franchisor to new franchisees, for the remaining 
term of this Agreement, except that all pre-opening obligations of the parties shall be 
waived, other than the transferee’s obligation to complete the initial training program to 
Franchisor’s satisfaction;   

(3) the purchase price paid by the transferee for the Business shall be 
reasonable and based on the depreciated value of the assets of the Business, excluding 
any goodwill of the Business; 

(4) if the transferee is a corporation, limited liability company, or 
partnership, each stock or membership certificate, or the partnership agreement, shall 
have conspicuously endorsed upon it a statement that it is held subject to, and further 
assignment or transfer of any interest therein is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon 
assignments by this Agreement;   

(5) if the transferee is a corporation, partnership, or limited liability 
company, no new voting interest in the transferee shall be issued to any person or entity 
without obtaining Franchisor’s prior written consent;   

(6) Franchisee shall have fully paid and satisfied all of Franchisee’s 
obligations to Franchisor and its affiliates, and Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a 
transfer fee of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000);  

(7) Franchisee shall have executed an agreement in form satisfactory to 
Franchisor in which it agrees to: (1) release any claims it has against Franchisor and its 
affiliates; (2) subordinate any claims it may have against the transferee to any amounts 
owed by the transferee to Franchisor; and (3) comply with the post-term obligations set 
forth herein, including the non-competition and confidentiality provisions; 

(8) if the transferee is a corporation, limited liability company, or 
partnership, all the shareholders, members, or partners of the transferee shall enter into a 
written agreement, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, jointly and severally guaranteeing 
the full payment and performance of the transferee’s obligations to Franchisor and 
agreeing to be personally bound by all covenants and restrictions imposed upon the 
transferee under the terms of this Agreement; and 
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(9) if the assignment or transfer is caused by the death or incapacity of 
Franchisee (or in the case of a partnership, corporation, or limited liability company, by 
the death or incapacity of one controlling more than forty-nine percent (49%) of the 
voting interest of Franchisee), the provisions of this Section 13.3(b) must be met with 
regard to the heir or personal representative of Franchisee succeeding to Franchisee’s 
interest hereunder; provided, however, if the heir or personal representative assigns, 
transfers, or sells its interest in the Franchise within one hundred twenty (120) days after 
the death or incapacity of Franchisee, the person to whom the interest is assigned, 
transferred, or sold, and not Franchisee’s heir or personal representative, must comply 
with the provisions of this Section 13.3(b) as transferee.   

(d) Disclosure.  Franchisee consents to Franchisor releasing to any proposed 
transferee any information concerning the Business which Franchisee has reported to Franchisor.   

(e) No Single or Partial Transfer.  Notwithstanding anything set forth herein to the 
contrary, Franchisee may not transfer a portion of its rights or obligations hereunder or a portion 
of the Business without Franchisor’s approval and the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in 
Section 13.3(b) as Franchisor may require.   

13.4 Right of First Refusal.  If, at any time during the Term, Franchisee receives a bona fide 
offer to purchase or lease the Business, or any owner of Franchisee receives an offer to purchase any 
interest in Franchisee, either directly or indirectly, which offer Franchisee or such owner is willing to 
accept, Franchisee shall communicate in writing to Franchisor the full terms of the offer and the name of 
the offeror, and Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor any and all information, documents, or agreements 
reasonably requested by Franchisor, including the executed purchase or lease agreement and past 
financial statements of Franchisee or related to the Business, as prepared by an independent accountant.  
Franchisor may elect to purchase or lease the Business, or the interest, as applicable, on the terms set forth 
in the offer.  If Franchisor elects to exercise such option, it shall give Franchisee written notice of the 
election within thirty (30) days after Franchisor receives Franchisee’s complete and accurate 
communication of the offer (including all information, documents, or agreements requested by 
Franchisor).  If Franchisor fails to give written notice of election within thirty (30) days, Franchisee or the 
owner, as the case may be, may sell or lease to the offeror on the terms offered, subject to Sections 13.2 
and 13.3.  The sale or lease must, however, be completed within sixty (60) days of the termination of the 
thirty (30) day period during which Franchisor may give written notice of election to purchase or lease; 
otherwise, an additional notice must be given to Franchisor and an additional option period must expire 
prior to any such transfer.  If Franchisor elects to exercise its rights hereunder, it shall have the right to 
substitute equivalent cash for any noncash consideration included in the bona fide offer and to exclude the 
real property on which the Business is located or operates, and Franchisor and Franchisee or Franchisee’s 
owner, as the case maybe, will use their best efforts to complete the transaction within sixty (60) days 
from the date of Franchisor’s notice of election to exercise its rights hereunder. Franchisor may assign, 
transfer, or sell its rights under this Section 13.4 to any third party, including another franchisee or 
licensee of Franchisor. 

14. Restrictive Covenants. 

14.1  During the Term, Franchisee shall not, directly or indirectly, without the prior written 
consent of Franchisor, either individually or in partnership or jointly or in conjunction with any person, 
firm, association, syndicate or corporation, as principal, agent, shareholder or in any manner whatsoever, 
carry on or be engaged in or be concerned with or interested in or advise, lend money to, guarantee the 
debts or obligations of or permit its name or any part thereof to be used or employed in any residential 
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vacation property management or residential vacation rental business, or any business similar to the 
Business (“Competitive Business”) as carried on periodically during the Term, or any business or 
venture that is granting franchises or licenses for the operation of Competitive Businesses. Nothing in this 
Section 14.1 shall prevent any active officer of Franchisee or member of Franchisee’s family either 
individually or collectively, from owning not more than a total of five percent (5%) of the stock of any 
company which is subject to the reporting requirements of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. 

14.2  Franchisee shall not, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of 
Franchisor, for a period of two (2) years following the expiration, termination, or assignment of this 
Agreement,  operate, own, manage, be employed by or consult with any Competitive Business, other than 
one operated under a valid license agreement with Franchisor, or any business or venture that is granting 
franchises or licenses for the operation of a Competitive Business, that is located or doing business in the 
Territory or the territory of any other SkyRun business in the United States.  In the event of the violation 
of this Section 14.2 by Franchisee, the period of time Franchisee shall be required to abide by the 
breached obligation shall be extended to a period of two (2) years after Franchisee is no longer in breach 
of such obligation.   

14.3  The parties intend this Section 14 to limit Franchisee’s right to compete only to the extent 
necessary to protect Franchisor from unfair competition and to protect Franchisor’s Trade Secrets. If any 
court determines that any provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the court has 
the power to fashion and enforce another provision (instead of the provision held to be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable) that is valid, legal and enforceable and carries out the parties’ intentions under this 
Agreement. In addition, Franchisor reserves the right to reduce the scope of said provision without 
Franchisee’s consent, at any time or times, effective immediately upon notice to Franchisee. 

14.4  Franchisee acknowledges that a breach of the covenants contained in this Agreement will 
be deemed to threaten immediate and substantial irreparable injury to Franchisor. Accordingly, 
Franchisee agrees that Franchisor will have the right, without prior notice to Franchisee, to obtain 
immediate injunctive relief without limiting any other rights or remedies. 

15. Enforcement. 

15.1  Injunctive Relief; Attorneys’ Fees.  Either party may apply for injunctive or other 
equitable relief to: (a) enforce its right to terminate this Agreement for the causes in Section 12; and (b) 
prevent or remedy a breach of this Agreement if such breach could materially impair the goodwill of such 
party’s business, including to enforce the obligations of a party to be performed following the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement and enforcement of the non-competition and confidentiality provisions 
of this Agreement.  Each party shall be entitled to the entry of temporary restraining orders and temporary 
and permanent injunctions enforcing its aforementioned rights.  If Franchisor secures any such injunction, 
or any other relief against Franchisee, or is successful in defending a claim brought against it by 
Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an amount equal to the aggregate of Franchisor’s costs of 
obtaining such relief and defending such claim, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of 
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses, and travel and living expenses.   

15.2 Mediation.  Except with respect to matters for which a party believes it necessary to seek 
injunctive or equitable relief, Franchisee and Franchisor shall be required to enter into mediation of all 
disputes involving this Agreement, or any other aspect of the relationship between them, for a minimum 
of four (4) hours, prior to the initiation of any litigation or other action or proceeding against the other.   

(a) Upon written notice by either party to the other of the initiating party’s desire to 
mediate, the party receiving the notice shall select an independent entity that regularly provides 
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mediation services to franchisors and franchisees to serve as mediator in the proceeding.  If the 
party receiving the notice of intent to mediate does not provide the name of such an organization 
within ten (10) business days from the date the notice of intention to mediate is received, then the 
other party may forego mediation of the issue(s) and commence a lawsuit under Section 15.3 or, 
at its option, make the selection of the organization to provide mediation services.  If one party 
selects an organization that is unwilling to serve as mediator or does not meet the requirements of 
this Section 15.2(a), then the other party may select the organization.  Once the organization is 
designated and agrees to accept appointment as mediator, the organization shall be directed to 
schedule a mediation proceeding at a time mutually convenient to Franchisor and Franchisee.  
The mediation shall be held within thirty (30) days following receipt by the mediation 
organization of notification that its services are requested.  If the parties cannot agree on a date 
for mediation, then the mediation organization shall select a date it believes is reasonable for the 
parties, given all of the alleged conflicts in dates.  The actual mediator shall be a person who has 
had at least ten (10) years of experience as either franchisee or franchisor (or as an officer of such 
an entity), or in franchise law.   

(b) The parties shall equally share the cost of the mediator.  The mediator shall select 
the location for the mediation, giving due consideration to the location that will minimize the total 
expenses of the mediation; provided, however, that unless agreed to by both Franchisor and 
Franchisee, the mediation shall be held in a metropolitan area having a population of at least two 
hundred fifty thousand (250,000) persons that is not located within two hundred (200) miles of 
the Business or the principal office of Franchisor. 

(c) Except with respect to matters for which a party is permitted to seek injunctive or 
equitable relief, if either party initiates litigation without complying with their obligation to 
mediate in accordance with this Section 15.2 (unless the other party has failed to respond on a 
timely basis or has indicated it will not engage in mediation in accordance with the provisions of 
this Section 15.2), then upon petition of any party named as a defendant in such litigation, the 
court shall dismiss the action without prejudice, and award attorneys’ fees and costs to the party 
seeking dismissal in an amount equal to such party’s attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in seeking 
dismissal.  If the court refuses for any reason to dismiss the action, then regardless of the outcome 
of such action, or of any award given by the court in such action, the party initiating the action 
shall be responsible for all attorneys’ fees and costs incurred throughout the action by the other 
party as damages for failing to comply with the provisions of this Section 15.2. 

15.3 Venue.  Franchisor and Franchisee (and Franchisee’s owners and guarantors) each agree 
that if litigation is commenced, the sole forum for resolving disputes under this Agreement or any aspect 
of the relationship between the parties shall be the state and federal courts of Colorado.  Such actions 
shall be exclusively venued in the District Courts of Colorado, County of Broomfield, or the United 
States District Court for the District of Colorado, and the parties waive any objections they may have to 
either the jurisdiction or the venue in such courts and hereby consent to personal jurisdiction and venue in 
such courts.  The only exception to the foregoing shall be: (1) if the courts of Colorado would have no 
jurisdiction over a named party in the litigation, and such party’s involvement in the litigation is integral 
to the underlying claims and not principally for the purpose of circumventing the intent of the parties to 
name Colorado as the exclusive venue for any actions, then the action may be venued in any court having 
jurisdiction over all the parties and a significant nexus to the parties; and (2) to the extent that either party 
believes it is necessary to seek injunctive relief against the other, the party seeking relief may initiate that 
action in the county in which the other party has its principal office (which in the case of an action against 
Franchisee, shall be the county in which Franchisee is domiciled, or the county in which the Business is 
located).   
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15.4 Costs.  If Franchisor secures any injunction against Franchisee, or any other relief against 
Franchisee, or is successful in defending a claim brought against it by Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay 
Franchisor an amount equal to the aggregate of Franchisor’s costs of obtaining such relief and defending 
such claim, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, 
other litigation expenses, and travel and living expenses. 

15.5 Waiver of Certain Damages.  Franchisor and Franchisee (and Franchisee’s owners and 
guarantors) hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right to, or claim for, any punitive, 
consequential, special, or exemplary damages against the other and any affiliates, owners, employees, or 
agents of the other and agree that in the event of a dispute between or among any of them, each shall be 
limited to the recovery of any actual damages sustained by it and any equitable relief to which it might be 
entitled.   

15.6 Waiver of Collateral Estoppel.  The parties agree they should each be able to settle, 
mediate, arbitrate, litigate, or compromise disputes in which they are involved with third parties, without 
having the disposition of such disputes directly affect the contract or relationship between Franchisor and 
Franchisee.  Franchisor and Franchisee therefore each agree that a decision of an arbitrator or court of law 
in a dispute to which one of them is not a party shall not in any manner prevent the person that was a 
party to such action from making similar arguments, or taking similar positions, in any subsequent action 
between Franchisor and Franchisee.  The parties therefore waive the right to assert that principles of 
collateral estoppel prevent either of them from raising any claim or defense in an action between them as 
a result of such party having lost a similar claim or defense in another action. 

15.7 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND 
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE 
LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, CAUSE OF ACTION OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO 
THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY CERTIFIES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) NO 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR 
OTHERWISE, THAT THE OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING 
WAIVER IN THE EVENT OF A LEGAL ACTION, (B) IT HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS 
OF THIS WAIVER, (C) IT MAKES THIS WAIVER KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY, AND (D) 
IT HAS DECIDED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT IN CONSIDERATION OF, AMONG 
OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 15.7. 

15.8 Remedies Cumulative.  All remedies provided to Franchisor under this Agreement are 
cumulative.  No exercise or enforcement by Franchisor or Franchisee of any right or remedy hereunder 
shall preclude the exercise or enforcement by Franchisor or Franchisee of any other right or remedy 
hereunder or which Franchisor or Franchisee is entitled by law to enforce.   

16.  Franchisee Representations. 

To induce Franchisor to accept Franchisee’s application for a Franchisor Vacation Rentals 
franchise and to execute this Agreement, Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to Franchisor as 
follows: 

16.1  Standards for Service.  Franchisee recognizes and acknowledges the importance of 
maintaining Franchisor’s standards for service, and further recognizes and acknowledges the importance 
of following the System. 
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16.2 Disclosure Document.  Franchisee has received a copy of Franchisor’s Franchise 
Disclosure Document, together with copies of all contracts relating to the sale of the Franchise, at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the execution of this Agreement and at least fourteen (14) days prior to its 
payment of any money to Franchisor.  Franchisee has read and understands all such documents. 

16.3 Business Risks.  Franchisee has the entire control and direction of the Business, subject 
only to the conditions and covenants established by this Agreement.  Franchisee further acknowledges 
that the business to be operated under this Agreement involves business risks, and that Franchisee’s 
success shall be largely determined by its own skill and efforts as an independent business person.  
Franchisee further acknowledges that if it fails at any tasks that are vital to the operation of the Business, 
the Business may fail and Franchisee shall be solely responsible for any such failure. 

16.4 Franchisee Advisors; Independent Investigation.  Franchisee has been advised to consult 
with its own advisors with respect to the legal, financial, and other aspects of this Agreement, and that 
Franchisee has had the opportunity to consult with such advisors and also has had the opportunity to 
independently investigate the opportunity offered under this Agreement.  Franchisee has entered into this 
Agreement after making an independent investigation of Franchisor’s operations and not upon any 
representation as to profits which Franchisee might be expected to realize, nor has anyone made any other 
representation to induce Franchisee to accept the Franchise granted hereunder and to execute this 
Agreement, which is not expressly set forth herein. 

16.5 Patriot Act Representations.  To Franchisee’s actual and constructive knowledge: (a) 
neither it (including its directors, officers, and managers), nor any of its affiliates, or any funding source 
for the Business, are identified on the list at the United States Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets 
Control; (b) neither it nor any of its affiliates is directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the 
government of any country that is subject to an embargo imposed by the United States government; (c) 
neither it nor any of its affiliates is acting on behalf of the government of, or is involved in business 
arrangements or other transactions with, any country that is subject to such an embargo; (d) neither it nor 
any of its affiliates are on the U.S. Department of Commerce Denied Persons, Entities and Unverified 
Lists, the U.S. Department of State’s Debarred Lists, or on the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Lists of 
Specialty Designated Nationals, Specialty Designated Narcotics Traffickers or Specialty Designated 
Terrorists, as such lists may be amended from time to time (collectively, the “Lists”); (e) neither it nor 
any of its affiliates, during the term of this Agreement, will be on any of the Lists; and (f) during the 
Term, neither it nor any of its affiliates will sell products, goods, or services to, or otherwise enter into a 
business arrangement with, any person or entity on any of the Lists.  Franchisee agrees to notify 
Franchisor in writing immediately upon the occurrence of any act or event that would render any of these 
representations incorrect. 

17.  General Terms. 

17.1  Relationship Between Parties. The relationship between the parties established by this 
Agreement is solely that of franchisor and franchisee. Neither party is the legal representative, partner, 
employee, or agent of the other, nor is either party authorized or empowered to create or assume any 
obligation of any kind, implied or expressed, on behalf of the other party, without the express prior 
written consent of the other. Franchisee shall be conspicuously identified in all dealings with clients, 
prospective clients, and others, as a franchisee.  Franchisee shall not represent or imply to any person that 
this Agreement authorizes Franchisee to act as agent for Franchisor.   

17.2  Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any personal guaranties of this Agreement 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein and 
will supersede all prior agreements, proposals, or understandings between the parties whether written or 
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oral; provided, however, nothing in this or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the 
representations Franchisor made in the Franchise Disclosure Document furnished to Franchisee. 

17.3 Amendment; Binding Effect. This Agreement will not be deemed or construed to be 
modified, amended, rescinded, canceled or waived, in whole or in part, except by written instrument 
identified as an amendment hereto signed by both parties hereto; provided, however, Franchisor may 
unilaterally modify or otherwise change the manual(s). This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, 
their respective heirs, assigns, and successors in interest. 

17.4 Waiver. Franchisor and Franchisee, by written instrument signed by both parties, may 
unilaterally waive any obligation of or restriction upon the other under this Agreement.  No acceptance by 
Franchisor of any payment by Franchisee and no failure, refusal, or neglect of Franchisor or Franchisee to 
exercise any right under this Agreement or to insist upon full compliance by the other with its obligations 
hereunder or with any specification, standard, or operating procedure shall constitute a waiver of any 
provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard, or operating procedure; provided, however, if 
a party fails to notify the other in writing of an alleged misrepresentation, violation of law, deficiency, or 
breach of this Agreement within one (1) year from the date such party has knowledge of, believes, 
determines, or is of the opinion that there has been a misrepresentation, violation of law, deficiency, or 
breach by the other party, then the alleged misrepresentation, violation of law, deficiency, or breach will 
be considered waived, but such waiver of any prior deficiency or breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the obligation of the party to comply with the obligation or provision in the 
future; provided, however, that (i) this waiver will not apply to Franchisee’s underreporting or 
underpayment of any fees Franchisee owes Franchisor, and (ii) the foregoing shall not otherwise extend 
or lengthen any statute of limitations provided by applicable law. 

17.5 Severability. It is the desire and intent of Franchisor and Franchisee that the provisions of 
this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent possible under the laws and public policies applied in 
each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought.  Accordingly, if any provision of this Agreement is 
adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable, such adjudication is to apply only with respect to the operation 
of such provision in the particular jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made.  All provisions of this 
Agreement are severable and this Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced as if all completely invalid 
and unenforceable provisions were not contained herein, and partially valid and enforceable provisions 
shall be enforced to the extent valid and enforceable.  Franchisor and Franchisee shall substitute a valid 
and enforceable provision for any specification, standard, operating procedure, rule, or other obligation of 
Franchisee or Franchisor which is determined to be invalid or unenforceable and is not waived by the 
other. 

17.6 Notices. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement will be given in writing and will be 
given by facsimile, certified mail, email, or hand delivery to the addresses set forth below or at such other 
address as a party may from time to time specify in writing: 
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If to Franchisor: SkyRun Franchising Limited 
390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350 
Broomfield, Colorado 80021 
Email: info@skyrun.com 

If to Franchisee: __________________________ 
__________________________ 
__________________________ 

All notices shall be effective and shall be deemed delivered: (i) if by personal delivery on the date of 
delivery, if delivered during normal business hours, and if not delivered during normal business hours, on 
the next business day following the receipt; (ii) if by electronic communication on the next day following 
confirmed receipt of the electronic communication; and (iii) if solely by mail, on the next business day 
after actual receipt. 

17.7 Governing Law. Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 
1946 (Lanham Act; 15 U.S.C. § 1050 et seq.), as amended, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Colorado without regard to the application of conflicts of law principles. 

17.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any 
rights or remedies upon and person other than the parties. Franchisee shall include the following language 
in each property management services agreement and each customer agreement:  

“[Franchisee’s name] is a licensee of SkyRun Franchising Limited. This Agreement is 
solely between [Franchisee’s name] and you. SkyRun Franchising Limited and its 
affiliates are not parties to this Agreement and shall have no responsibility, liability, or 
obligation to you of any kind or nature arising from this Agreement or the services 
provided to you under this Agreement.” 

17.9 Business Judgment; Variances.  Except as otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, 
any consent or approval required to be obtained from Franchisor, or decision to be made by Franchisor, 
may be granted or made by Franchisor in its sole and exclusive business judgment, which may take into 
account Franchisor’s assessment of, among other things, the long-term interests of Franchisor, the System 
and the Marks, without regard to its effect on any individual franchisee or Business. Franchisor’s 
judgment shall prevail even in cases where other alternatives may be reasonable, so long as Franchisor is 
intending to benefit or is acting in a way that could benefit the System, enhance the value of the Marks, 
increase client satisfaction, or minimize possible consumer, brand, or location confusion. If Franchisor’s 
activities or decisions are supported by its business judgment, no court, arbitrator, or judge or trier of fact, 
or any other person reviewing those activities or decisions may substitute his, her, or its judgment for 
Franchisor’s judgment, in recognition of the fact that the long-term goals of a franchise system, and the 
long-term interests of both Franchisor and its franchisees taken together, require that Franchisor have the 
latitude to exercise its business judgment in administering, managing and overseeing the System. Because 
complete and detailed uniformity under many varying conditions may not be possible or practical, 
Franchisor specifically reserves the right and privilege, at its sole discretion and as it may deem in the 
best interests of all concerned in any specific instance, to vary standards for any franchise owner based 
upon the peculiarities of a particular site or circumstance, density of population, business potential, 
population of trade area, existing business practices, or any other condition which Franchisor deems to be 
of importance to the successful operation of such franchise owner’s business.  Franchisee shall not 
complain on account of any variation from standard specifications and practices granted to any other 
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franchise owner and shall not be entitled to require Franchisor to grant to Franchisee a like or similar 
variation thereof.   

17.10 Counterparts. The parties may sign this Agreement in multiple counterparts, each of 
which constitutes an original, and all of which, together, constitute only one agreement. The signatures of 
all of the parties need not appear on the same counterpart, and delivery of a signed counterpart signature 
page by electronic or digital facsimile such as Portable Document Format (PDF) or any electronic 
signature complying with the U.S. federal ESIGN Act of 2000, e.g., www.docusign.com) is as effective 
as signing and delivering this Agreement in the presence of the other parties to this Agreement. This 
Agreement is effective upon delivery of one signed counterpart from each party to the other parties. In 
proving this Agreement, a party must produce or account only for the signed counterpart of the party to be 
charged. 

[signature page follows] 
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The parties have signed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

FRANCHISOR:
SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED, 
a Colorado limited liability company 

By:   

Printed Name:  

Title:  

FRANCHISEE:

______________________________  

By:   

Printed Name: ___________________________ 

Title: ____________________________ 



Rider 

Initial Franchise Fee:  $_____________ 

Territory:  

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE: 

SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED  

By:   By:   

Name:   Name:   

Title:    Title:   



STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT
The undersigned Franchisee (“Franchisee”) represents and warrants to SkyRun Franchising 

Limited (“Franchisor”) that as of the date set forth below all of the information below is true and 
complete: 

Franchisee:  

Form of Franchisee:   Corporation formed in the state of   
(SELECT ONE)  Limited liability company formed in the state of  

 Partnership formed in the state of   
 Individual residing in the state of   

Name of Manager:  

Ownership (EACH OWNER MUST SIGN A GUARANTY)

NAME OF OWNER NO. OF SHARES/UNITS OWNED OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE  

%

%

%

%

Management (LIST EACH INDIVIDUAL HOLDING A POSITION AS BOARD-MEMBER OR OFFICER)

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL ROLE/TITLE 

Franchisee acknowledges that this Statement of Ownership and Management applies to the SkyRun 
Vacation Rentals License Agreement.  Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor upon any change 
in the information contained in this Statement of Ownership and Management, and upon request of 
Franchisor, complete an updated or new Statement of Ownership and Management and Guaranty 
executed by all owners of Franchisee. 

FRANCHISEE: 

Date:  By:  
Name:  
Title:  



GUARANTY

IN CONSIDERATION of the grant by SkyRun Franchising Limited (“Franchisor”) of SkyRun 
Vacation Rentals franchise to the party named as Franchisee (“Franchisee”) in the License Agreement to 
which this Guaranty is attached (the “License Agreement”), and for other good and valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned hereby guarantee (jointly and 
severally with one another and all other guarantors of Franchisee, whether such guaranties are entered 
into prior to or after the date hereof) to Franchisor and to Franchisor’s successors and assigns: (a) the 
payment of all costs and fees required to be paid to Franchisor or its affiliates by Franchisee, whether 
such costs and fees are provided for in the License Agreement or under any other agreement between 
Franchisee and Franchisor or an affiliate of Franchisor, and (b) the performance by Franchisee of all its 
obligations under all such agreements and under all manuals and operating procedures of Franchisor’s 
business system.  The undersigned further specifically agree to remain individually bound by all 
covenants, obligations, and commitments of Franchisee contained in the License Agreement and such 
other agreements to the same extent as if each of the undersigned had individually been named as 
Franchisee in the License Agreement and such other agreements, and the undersigned had individually 
executed the License Agreement and such other agreements.   

The undersigned understand and agree that any modification of the License Agreement or any 
other agreement, including any addendum or addenda thereto, or waiver by Franchisor of the performance 
by Franchisee of its obligations thereunder, or the giving by Franchisor of any extension of time for the 
performance of any of the obligations of Franchisee thereunder, or any other forbearance on the part of 
Franchisor or any failure by Franchisor to enforce any of its rights under the License Agreement or any 
other agreement, including any addendum or addenda thereto, shall not in any way release the 
undersigned from liability hereunder or terminate, affect or diminish the validity of this Guaranty, except 
to the same extent, but only to such extent, that the liability or obligation of Franchisee is so released, 
terminated, affected, or diminished.  Notice to the undersigned of any such modification, waiver, 
extension, or forbearance under the terms thereof being hereby waived.   

The undersigned further understand and agree that no bankruptcy or reorganization of Franchisee 
shall release or otherwise affect the obligations of the undersigned to pay all costs and fees provided for in 
all agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor or its affiliates, or otherwise owing to Franchisor or its 
affiliates, and to perform all the provisions of such agreements, as well as all manuals and operating 
procedures of Franchisor’s business system, nor does the same release the undersigned from being 
individually bound to perform all covenants, obligations, and commitments of Franchisee contained in the 
License Agreement or any other agreement to the same extent as if each of the undersigned had 
individually executed the License Agreement and such other agreements.  

This Guaranty shall be enforceable upon ten (10) days’ written notice by Franchisor to any of the 
undersigned of any default by Franchisee of any of its covenants under the terms of the License 
Agreement and addendum or addenda thereto.  The undersigned hereby waive any and all notice of 
default on the part of Franchisee; waive exhausting of recourse against Franchisee; and consent to any 
assignment of the License Agreement and any other agreement, in whole or in part, that Franchisor or its 
assignees may make.  This Guaranty shall be a continuing Guaranty and may not be revoked without the 
prior written consent of Franchisor.  This Guaranty shall apply to all agreements referenced in this 
Guaranty, to the renewal of all such agreements, and to any successor agreements thereto. 

Date:  
Name:  



FRANCHISE ASSIGNMENT, SALE, AND TRANSFER 
TO ENTITY OWNED BY ORIGINAL FRANCHISEE 

1. ASSIGNMENT AND SALE 

Pursuant to Section 13.3(a) of the SkyRun Vacation Rentals License Agreement dated 
____________________, by and between the undersigned and SkyRun Franchising Limited (the 
“Agreement”), I/we hereby transfer, subject to approval by SkyRun Franchising Limited (the 
“Franchisor”), all my/our rights, in the Agreement, effective _________________________, to the 
Transferee (as defined below).  I/we understand that this transfer does not relieve me/us of my/our 
obligations under the Agreement.  To induce Franchisor to approve this assignment:   

(a) I/we agree to subordinate any payment due to me/us from the Transferee to any other 
obligation the Transferee may have to Franchisor.  If Franchisor notifies me/us of our default by 
the Transferee of its obligations to Franchisor under the Agreement, I/we will not accept any 
further amounts that may be owed to me/us by the Transferee until Franchisor has confirmed, in 
writing, that such defaults have been cured.   

(b) I/we release Franchisor and its officers, directors, and agents, from all actions and claims 
I/we may have against them arising out of their sale to me/us of the Franchise, or in connection 
with my/our operation of the Franchise, including, but not limited to, any claims arising under the 
Agreement.   

(c) I/we will remain bound to all the obligations of the Franchisee contained in the 
Agreement to the same extent as if I/we remain the Franchisee under that Agreement.   

Name of New Franchisee (“Transferee”) 

Address of Transferee 

City, State, and Zip Code of Transferee 

Signature of Original Franchisee (“Transferor”)  Date 

2. ACCEPTANCE OF TRANSFER BY TRANSFEREE 

The undersigned entity hereby accepts transfer of the Agreement and agrees to be bound by all of 
the provisions of the Agreement and to assume all of the obligations required of Franchisee named herein.   

Name of Transferee 

By:  Date:  
Name:  
Title:  



3. APPROVAL OF TRANSFER 

It is hereby agreed that the Transferee is approved and accepted as Franchisee for the Business 
described in the Agreement and is authorized to exercise all rights and obligations of Franchisee named in 
the Agreement including the right to renew the Agreement upon expiration thereof, pursuant to the terms 
of the Agreement.   

SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED 

Date:  By:  
Name:  
Title:  



GENERAL RELEASE 
(USED IN EVENT OF TRANSFER) 

In consideration of the agreement of SkyRun Franchising Limited (“Franchisor”) to consent to 
the assignment by __________________________________ (“Franchisee”) of its License Agreement 
dated _______________ between Franchisee and Franchisor (the “Agreement”), Franchisee hereby 
releases and forever discharges Franchisor, and all affiliates of Franchisor, and their respective 
governors/directors, managers/officers, owners/shareholders, employees, and agents, in their corporate 
and individual capacities, and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, 
from any and all claims Franchisee may have against such parties, from the beginning of time to the date 
hereof, known or unknown, whether in law or in equity, including, but not limited to, any claims arising 
out of the offer or sale of any franchise to Franchisee, and any matters arising under the Agreement.  

NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THIS RELEASE DOES NOT RELEASE ANY 
CLAIMS THE UNDERSIGNED MAY HAVE THAT MAY NOT BE RELEASED PURSUANT TO 
THE FRANCHISE LAWS WHERE THE UNDERSIGNED IS A RESIDENT OR WHERE THE 
BUSINESS IS LOCATED, TO THE EXTENT REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW. 

Date:  
Name:  



ADDENDUM TO  
SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED LICENSE AGREEMENT 

FOR THE  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited License 
Agreement, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all SkyRun 
franchises offered and sold or operated in the State of California.   

This California Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of California or if your 
business will be located in California. 

1. The California Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Section 20000 through 
20043), provides franchisees with additional rights concerning transfer, termination and 
nonrenewal of the License Agreement and certain provisions of the License Agreement relating 
to transfer, termination and non-renewal may be superseded by the Act. There may also be court 
decisions which may supersede the License Agreement and your relationship with Franchisor, 
including the areas of transfer, termination and renewal of Franchisee’s franchise. If the License 
Agreement is inconsistent with the law, the law will control. 

2.  The License Agreement requires Franchisee to execute a general release of claims upon renewal 
or transfer of the License Agreement. California Corporations Code Section 31512 provides that 
any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to 
waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or order thereunder is void. Section 
31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations 
Code Section 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business 
and Professions Code Sections 20000 - 20043)). To the extent required by such laws, Franchisee 
shall not be required to execute a general release. 

3.  The License Agreement requires application of the laws and forum of Colorado. This provision 
may not be enforceable under California law. 

4.  The License Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law. 

5.  The provision in the License Agreement which terminates the franchise upon the bankruptcy of 
the Franchisee may not be enforceable under Title 11, United States Code, Section 101. 

6.  The License Agreement requires that the highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% 
annually.  

7.  The License Agreement contains a waiver of punitive damages and jury trial provisions.  These 
waivers may not be enforceable in California.  

8.  Sections 16.3 and 16.4 of the License Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following: “INTENTIONALLY OMITTED”.   

9. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) 
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, 
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other 
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any 
document executed in connection with the franchise. 



Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the California Franchise Relations Act are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date the 
License Agreement was executed. 

FRANCHISOR:
SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED, 
a Colorado limited liability company 

By:   

Printed Name:  

Title:  

FRANCHISEE:

______________________________  

By:   

Printed Name: ___________________________ 

Title: ____________________________ 



ADDENDUM TO  
SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED LICENSE AGREEMENT 

FOR THE  
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the SkyRun Franchising Limited License 
Agreement, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all SkyRun 
franchises offered and sold or operated in the State of Minnesota.   

This Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Minnesota or if your 
business will be located in Minnesota. 

1. Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Minnesota Department of Commerce has 
required a financial assurance.  Therefore, all initial franchise fees owed by franchisee shall be 
deferred until the business opens. 

2. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor 
from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or 
requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment 
notes.  In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate 
or reduce any of franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or 
franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the 
jurisdiction. 

3. The franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14, subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, 
except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 
60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the Agreement, and that consent to the 
transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld. 

4. To the extent required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, the franchisor will protect the 
franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logo types or other 
commercial symbols related to the trademarks or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses 
arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the trademarks, provided you are 
using the names and marks in accordance with the Franchise Agreement. 

5. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a 
general release. 

6. The franchisor will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.17 Subd. 5 with respect to 
limitation of claims.   

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) 
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, 
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other 
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any 
document executed in connection with the franchise. 

Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act are met independently 
without reference to this Addendum. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date the 
License Agreement was executed. 

FRANCHISOR:
SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED, 
a Colorado limited liability company 

By:   

Printed Name:  

Title:  

FRANCHISEE:

______________________________  

By:   

Printed Name: ___________________________ 

Title: ____________________________ 

4891-1005-6265, v. 1
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EXHIBIT G 
SKYTRAX SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 



SKYRUN FRANCHISING LIMITED 
SKYTRAX™ SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This SKYTRAX SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as 
of the date of the last signature below (the "Effective Date") by and between SkyRun Franchising Limited, 
a Colorado limited liability company (“SkyRun”) and [Franchise Entity Name], a [state of formation and 
type of entity] (“Franchisee”). 

Introduction 

SkyRun and its predecessor have developed certain policies, procedures and techniques for the 
operation of property management and rental businesses servicing owners of vacation and other properties, 
which SkyRun franchises and licenses to other parties.  As part of the foregoing, SkyRun utilizes a 
proprietary software platform, currently referred to internally as SkyTrax and hosted under the skyrun.com 
domain name (the “Platform”).  

Franchisee and SkyRun have entered into a License Agreement (the “License Agreement”) under 
which SkyRun grants Franchisee certain rights to operate a Business (as that term is defined in the License 
Agreement). 

SkyRun is willing to grant Franchisee a license to access and use the Platform for its Business and 
to provide ancillary support services to Franchisee for the Platform (the “Services”) under the following 
terms and conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Premises, the License Agreement, the mutual promise 
of the parties hereto, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, SkyRun and Franchisee agree as follows: 

1. Platform. 

1.1. Grant.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, SkyRun hereby grants Franchisee a limited, 
revocable, non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, and non-transferrable right and license to have access to and 
use the Platform solely in connection with Franchisee’s lawful operation of its Business. 

1.2. Restrictions.

(a) Franchisee may not, and may not permit any third party to, use the Platform in any manner 
or for any purpose other than as expressly permitted by this Agreement. Franchisee may not, and may not 
attempt to, and may not permit any third party to: (i) modify, alter, tamper with, copy, translate, or otherwise 
create derivative works of the Platform or any part thereof or otherwise attempt to discover any source code 
or modify the Platform in any manner or form; (ii) reverse engineer, disassemble, or decompile the Platform 
or apply any other process or procedure to derive the source code of any portion of the Platform; (iii) sell, 
rent, lease, sublicense, lend, or time-share the Platform; (iv) attempt to circumvent technological measures 
that control access to or use of the Platform; (v) use the Platform to for competitive analysis or develop any 
content, software, or other technology having the same primary function as the Platform; (vi) copy, frame, 
or mirror any content forming part of the Platform; (vii) use the Platform in a manner that interferes with 
other users’ use of the Platform; or (viii) use the Platform in any manner that violates SkyRun’s Policies or 
applicable law. 

(b) All licenses granted to Franchisee in this Agreement are conditional on Franchisee’s 
continued compliance with this Agreement and the License Agreement. During and after the term of this 
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Agreement, Franchisee will not assert, nor will Franchisee authorize, assist, or encourage any third party to 
assert, against SkyRun or any of its affiliates, franchisees, licensees, vendors, content providers or licensors, 
any patent infringement or other intellectual property infringement claim regarding any Platform. 

1.3. Reserved Rights.  SkyRun retains ownership of all rights, title and interest to the Platform 
including all modifications, improvements, upgrades, derivative works, future works based upon the 
Platform, feedback related thereto, and all intellectual property rights associated therewith.  This Agreement 
does not grant Franchisee any rights in or to the Platform or any of its components except for the limited 
rights to use the Platform expressly granted by this Agreement.  

1.4. Changes to the Platform; Support Services. SkyRun may change or remove features or 
functionality of the Platform at any time.  SkyRun will provide reasonable second-level support to 
Franchisee’s designated contacts.  Franchisee is responsible for providing first-level (i.e., help desk) support 
and training to Franchisee’s employees, property owners, and agents who use the Platform (each, a “User”). 

2. Franchisee’s Account and Obligations.

2.1. Account Administration.  SkyRun will provide Franchisee with the certain administrative 
account(s) for the Platform (“Admin Account”) for the purpose of Franchisee’s administration of user 
accounts for its Users, subject to the terms of this Agreement.  Franchisee is responsible for creating User 
accounts and granting and revoking rights to each User and for assigning the appropriate level of access for 
their use of the Platform.  Franchisee is also responsible for: (a) maintaining the confidentiality of the 
Admin Account(s) and passwords; (b) designating those individuals who are authorized to access the 
Admin Account(s); and (c) ensuring that all activities that occur in connection with the Admin Account(s) 
comply with this Agreement.  Franchisee will also: (x) ensure each User uses a unique user account when 
using the Platform; (y) train all of its Users in the requirements of this Agreement and the Policies relating 
to their access to and use of the Platform, and ensure that they comply with such requirements; and (z) 
immediately revoke a person’s access to the Platform upon their termination of their relationship with 
Franchisee, or of Franchisee’s withdrawal of authorization for any such person to access the Platform.  
Franchisee agrees that SkyRun’s responsibilities do not extend to the internal management or administration 
of the Platform for Franchisee’s Users.   

2.2. Franchisee’s Obligations.  In addition to Franchisee’s other obligations under this 
Agreement, Franchisee agrees to: (a) meet and maintain all computer, software, internet connection, and/or 
other technical specifications required to access and use the Platform; (b) comply with all applicable laws, 
rules, and regulations in connection with the use of the Platform; (c) maintain and comply with a privacy 
policy that is consistent with industry privacy and security standards and all applicable legal requirements; 
(d) implement and maintain SkyRun’s minimum standards as SkyRun may adopt from time-to-time in its 
operation manuals or otherwise for technical, access, data, and organizational security, including, without 
limitation, with respect to unlawful or unauthorized access, accidental loss, or destruction of personal data 
in Franchisee’s possession or control; account access; login information and processes; periodic security 
training and certifications; and anti-virus and anti-malware protection; (e) ensure that all Users comply with 
Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement; and (f) not take any actions that may adversely affect the 
operation of the Platform.   

2.3. Franchisee is Responsible for Its Account; No Account Sharing.  FRANCHISEE IS 
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF ITS USERS AND FOR ALL USE, ACTIVITIES, 
AND CHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY USE OF FRANCHISEE’S USERS 
AND ADMIN ACCOUNTS.  SKYRUN IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS TO 
FRANCHISEE’S ADMIN ACCOUNTS.  Franchisee will contact SkyRun immediately if Franchisee 
believes an unauthorized third party may be using one of Franchisee’s Admin Accounts or User account or 
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if Franchisee’s Admin Account information is lost or stolen.  Franchisee will be deemed to have taken any 
action that occurs under Franchisee’s Admin Accounts or by its Users. 

2.4. Policies.  Franchisee’s use of the Platform is subject to the website Terms of Use currently 
referenced at [insert hyperlink] and the SkyRun Privacy Policy currently referenced at 
https://skyrun.com/privacy, as each may be updated from time to time, and any other policy or terms for 
access to and use of the Platform, as updated from time to time and as provided to Franchisee or posted on 
SkyRun’s web site (collectively, the “Policies”).     

3. Term; Suspension; Termination. 

3.1. Term.  The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues 
thereafter until terminated as set forth in this Agreement. 

3.2. Suspension. SkyRun may suspend Franchisee’s right to access or use any portion or all of 
the Platform immediately upon notice to Franchisee if SkyRun determines: (a) Franchisee’s use of the 
Platform may subject SkyRun or any third party to liability or may adversely impact the Platform or the 
systems or content of any other SkyRun franchisee; or (b) Franchisee is in breach of this Agreement or the 
License Agreement.  SkyRun’s right to suspend Franchisee’s right to access or use the Platform is in 
addition to SkyRun’s right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 3.3. 

3.3. Termination.  

(a)  Automatic.  This Agreement shall automatically and immediately terminate upon 
termination of the License Agreement. 

(b)  By Either Party.  If either party materially breaches any of its duties or obligations in this 
Agreement and such breach is not cured within ten (10) business days after receipt of written notice of the 
breach, then the non-breaching party may terminate this Agreement for cause as of the date specified in 
such notice. 

(c)  By SkyRun. SkyRun may also terminate this Agreement: (i) immediately upon notice to 
Franchisee if SkyRun determines in its sole discretion that the reasons for suspension in Section 3.2 will 
not or cannot be cured; (ii) for convenience by providing Franchisee at least ninety (90) days’ prior notice 
of termination of this Agreement; or (iii) if SkyRun’s relationship with a third party partner who provides 
software, content, data, or other technology SkyRun uses to provide the Platform expires, terminates or 
requires SkyRun to change the way it provides part of the Platform, in such a case SkyRun will take 
commercially reasonable efforts to provide Franchisee with at least sixty (60) days’ prior notice of such a 
change where feasible.  

3.4. Effect of Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement, Franchisee’s rights to access 
and use the Platform and receive the Services immediately terminate.   

4.  Data.  SkyRun retains ownership in all data entered and stored in the Platform.  Franchisee 
acknowledges that SkyRun may also collect and aggregate data concerning user behavior, traffic and other 
interactive information and that SkyRun owns the foregoing.   

5. Confidentiality.  All content in and the functionality and features of the Platform are SkyRun’s 
confidential and proprietary information (collectively “Confidential Information”).  Franchisee may use 
such Confidential Information only in connection with its use of the Platform as permitted under this 
Agreement. Franchisee will not disclose Confidential Information during the term of this Agreement or at 
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any time following the end of such term.  Franchisee will take all reasonable measures to avoid disclosure, 
dissemination, or unauthorized use of Confidential Information, including, at a minimum, those measures 
Franchisee takes to protect its own most confidential information.  

6. Warranty Disclaimers.  THE PLATFORM AND SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND 
“AS AVAILABLE.”  SKYRUN MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY 
KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE REGARDING THE 
PLATFORM AND SERVICES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY THAT 
THE PLATFORM OR SERVICES WILL MEET FRANCHISEE’S OR ANY LEGAL REQUIREMENTS, 
BE SECURE, BE UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR FREE, OR FREE OF HARMFUL COMPONENTS.  
EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROHIBITED BY LAW, SKYRUN DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, 
SATISFACTORY QUALITY, OR QUIET ENJOYMENT, AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING OUT 
OF ANY COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.   

Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of implied warranties, so the above exclusions 
or limitations may not apply in all cases, but they shall apply to the extent permitted by applicable law. 

7. Limitations of Liability. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL SKYRUN OR ANY OF ITS 
OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MANAGERS, MEMBERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS BE LIABLE TO 
FRANCHISEE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE 
OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE 
PLATFORM, OR THE SERVICES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE, EVEN 
IF SKYRUN HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES IN ADVANCE.  

THE AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF SKYRUN ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS 
AGREEMENT, THE PLATFORM, OR THE SERVICES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR 
OTHERWISE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO ACTUAL DIRECT DAMAGES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS (US $1,000). 

Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of certain damages, so the above limitations or 
exclusions may not apply in all cases, but they shall apply to the extent permitted by applicable law. 

8. Indemnification.  Franchisee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless SkyRun, its affiliates and 
their respective officers, directors, managers, members, employees, and agents against all claims, demands, 
losses, damages (including punitive damages), costs, suits, judgments, penalties, expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and amounts paid in settlement or compromise) and liabilities of any kind, 
whether or not ultimately determined to be meritorious (and including damages suffered by Franchisee or 
any of its property) for which they are held liable, or which they incur (including travel, investigation and 
living expenses of employees and witness fees) in any litigation or proceeding as a result of or arising out 
of: (a) Franchisee’s or its Users’ use of the Platform or receipt of the Services; (b) Franchisee’s breach of 
this Agreement; or (c) Franchisee’s violation of applicable law.   

9. Survival.   The provisions of this Agreement, which, by their terms, require performance after the 
termination of this Agreement, or have application to events that may occur after the termination of this 
Agreement, shall survive the termination of this Agreement, including but not limited to the indemnification 
and confidentiality provisions. 

10. Independent Contractors. In performing under this Agreement, each party is acting as 
independent contractor, and the provisions of this Agreement shall not in any respect whatsoever be deemed 
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to create a partnership, joint venture, or other business combination between SkyRun and Franchisee.  
Neither party shall represent or imply to any other person or organization that this Agreement authorizes 
either SkyRun or Franchisee to act as an agent for or on behalf of the other party. 

11. Force Majeure.  SkyRun shall not be liable to Franchisee or any other person for any delay or 
failure in the performance of this Agreement or for loss or damage of any nature whatsoever suffered by 
Franchisee or such party due to disruption or unavailability of communication facilities, utility or Internet 
service provider failure, acts of war, acts of terrorism, acts of vandalism, natural disaster, lightning, fire, 
strike, unavailability of energy sources or any other causes beyond SkyRun’s reasonable control; provided, 
however, if such reasons or conditions remain in effect for a period of more than sixty (60) days, SkyRun 
may terminate this Agreement. 

12. Notices.  Any notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement: (a) shall be in writing 
signed by or on behalf of the party making the same; (b) shall be deemed given or delivered (i) if sent by 
confirmed e-mail, when received, (ii) if sent by messenger or reputable courier service, when delivered; 
and (c) shall be addressed to the other party at its address set forth in the License Agreement. 

13. Assignment. Franchisee may not assign this Agreement, or delegate or sublicense any of its rights 
under this Agreement, except as part of Franchisee’s contemporaneous assignment of the License 
Agreement in accordance with its terms.  Any assignment or transfer in violation of this Section will be 
void. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement will be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective successors and assigns.  SkyRun may assign this Agreement at any time without 
Franchisee’s written consent or notice to Franchisee. 

14. No Waivers. The failure by SkyRun to enforce any provision of this Agreement will not constitute 
a present or future waiver of such provision nor limit SkyRun’s right to enforce such provision at a later 
time. All waivers by SkyRun must be in writing to be effective. 

15. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
portions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Any invalid or unenforceable portions will 
be interpreted to effect and intent of the original portion. If such construction is not possible, the invalid or 
unenforceable portion will be severed from this Agreement, but the rest of the Agreement will remain in 
full force and effect. 

16. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of Colorado, without regard to its choice of law principles or rules.  SkyRun and Franchisee each agree that 
if litigation is commenced, the sole forum for resolving disputes under this Agreement or any aspect of the 
relationship between the parties shall be the state and federal courts of Colorado.  Such actions shall be 
exclusively venued in the District Courts of Colorado, County of Broomfield, or the United States District 
Court for the District of Colorado, and the parties waive any objections they may have to either the 
jurisdiction or the venue in such courts and hereby consent to personal jurisdiction and venue in such courts.   

17. Costs.  If SkyRun secures any injunction against Franchisee, or any other relief against Franchisee, 
or is successful in defending a claim brought against it by Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay SkyRun an 
amount equal to the aggregate of SkyRun’s costs of obtaining such relief and defending such claim, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation 
expenses, and travel and living expenses. 

18. Website References.  References to URLs or websites in the Agreement include any successor 
URLs or websites designated by SkyRun. 
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19. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement does not create any third party beneficiary rights 
in any individual or entity that is not a party to this Agreement. 

20. Execution.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and such counterparts, 
when taken together, shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement.  A signed copy of this Agreement 
delivered by email, electronic signature service, or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed 
to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

21. Entire Agreement. This Agreement includes the Policies and is the entire agreement between 
Franchisee and SkyRun with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes 
all prior or contemporaneous representations, understandings, agreements, or communications between 
Franchisee and SkyRun, whether written or verbal, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement does not supersede or modify the License Agreement or 
any other agreement executed in connection therewith.  If the terms of this document are inconsistent with 
the terms contained in any Policy, the terms contained in this document will control. No amendments to 
this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the 
Effective Date.   

Franchisee: [Franchisee Entity Name] SkyRun: SkyRun Franchising Limited 

By: ___________________________________ By: ___________________________________
       Authorized Signature        Authorized Signature 

_______________________________________ _______________________________________
Name Typed or Printed Name Typed or Printed

_______________________________________ _______________________________________
Title Title

_______________________________________ _______________________________________
Date Signed Date Signed

4861-8210-4137, v. 1
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ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS AUTHORIZATION 
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ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS AUTHORIZATION 

Franchisee:   
Location:  
Date:   

Attention:  Accounting 

The undersigned has entered into a License Agreement with SkyRun Franchising Limited (the “License 
Agreement”), and authorizes SkyRun Franchising Limited (“Franchisor”) or any of its affiliated entities, to 
initiate one-time, weekly, and/or monthly ACH debit and credit entries against the account of the 
undersigned with you in payment of amount for ongoing royalty fees, advertising fees, and other amounts 
that become due and payable by the undersigned to Franchisor or any affiliate pursuant to the License 
Agreement or any other agreement between the undersigned and Franchisor or any affiliate.  The dollar 
amount to be debited per payment and credited per payment will vary. 

Subject to the provisions of this letter of authorization, you are hereby directed to honor any such ACH debit 
and credit entry initiated by Franchisor. 

This authorization is binding, and will remain in full force and effect until ninety (90) days prior written notice 
has been given to you by the undersigned, subject to applicable law.  The undersigned is responsible for, 
and must pay on demand, all costs or charges relating to the handling of ACH debit and credit entries 
pursuant to this letter of authorization. 

Please honor ACH debit and credit entries initiated in accordance with the terms of this letter of 
authorization, subject to there being sufficient funds in the undersigned’s account to cover such ACH debit 
and credit entries. 

Sincerely, 

By:  
Name:  

Account Name  Bank Name 

Customer Street Address Branch 

City  State  Zip Code Bank Street Address 

Customer Phone Number City  State Zip Code 

Customer’s Account Number  Bank Phone Number 

Bank’s Account Number  Bank Routing/ABA Number 
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FRANCHISE QUESTIONNAIRE 

If you are a resident of the State of California or your franchise is located in California you are not 
required to sign this Questionnaire.  If any California franchisee completes this Questionnaire, it is 
against California public policy and will be void and unenforceable, and we will destroy, disregard, 
and will not rely on such Questionnaire. 

The purpose of this FRANCHISE QUESTIONNAIRE is to determine whether any statements or promises 
were made to you that we have not authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate, or misleading.  Please 
review each of the following questions and statements carefully and provide honest and complete 
responses to each. 

1. Have you received and personally reviewed our License Agreement and any attachments to it? 

Yes:  No: 

2. Have you received and personally reviewed our Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”)? 

Yes:  No: 

3. Did you sign a Receipt for the FDD indicating the date you received it? 

Yes:  No: 

4. Have you discussed the benefits and risks of purchasing a SkyRun franchise with an attorney, 
accountant, or other professional advisor? 

Yes:  No: 

If “No,” do you wish to have more time to do so? 

Yes:  No: 

5. Do you understand that the success or failure of your SkyRun franchise will depend in large part 
upon your skills and abilities, competition from others, and other economic and business factors? 

Yes:  No: 

6. Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise 
concerning the revenues, profits, or operating costs of a SkyRun franchise? 

Yes:  No: 

7. Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement (other than the 
information contained in Item 19 of the FDD), or any promise regarding the amount of money you 
may earn in operating a SkyRun franchise? 

Yes:  No: 

8. Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise 
concerning the likelihood of success that you should or might expect to achieve from operating a 
SkyRun franchise? 

Yes:  No: 
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9. Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement, promise, or 
agreement concerning the training or support service or other assistance that we will furnish to you 
that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the FDD? 

Yes:  No: 

10. Have you paid any money to us concerning the purchase of your SkyRun franchise prior to today? 

Yes:  No: 

11. If you answered “Yes” to any of Questions 6 to 10, please provide a full explanation of each “Yes” 
answer in the following blank lines.  Attach additional pages, if necessary, and refer to them below. 

12. I signed the License Agreement and Addendum (if any) on _______________, 20___, and 
acknowledge that no License Agreement or Addendum is effective until signed and dated by 
SkyRun Franchising Limited. 

Your responses to these questions are important to us and we will rely on them. 

By signing below, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the above questions. 

FRANCHISEE APPLICANT:

By:  
Name:  
Date:  
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State Effective Dates 

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise 
Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from 
registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, 
New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and 
Wisconsin. 

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where 
the document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective 
Date stated below: 

State Effective Date 

California Pending 

Hawaii Pending 

Michigan Pending 

Minnesota Pending 

Rhode Island Pending 

Virginia  Pending 

Wisconsin Pending 

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise 

under other laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business 

opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.
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RECEIPT 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the License Agreement and other information in 
plain language.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If SkyRun Franchising Limited offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar 
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection 
with the proposed franchise sale.  Michigan requires that SkyRun Franchising Limited gives you this Disclosure 
Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or payment 
of any consideration, whichever occurs first. New York requires you to receive this Disclosure Document at the 
earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement 
or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. If SkyRun Franchising Limited does 
not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material 
omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade 
Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency identified on Exhibit B. 

The franchisor is SkyRun Franchising Limited, 390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, Colorado 80021.  
Its telephone number is 970-660-4422.  The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each 
franchise seller offering the franchise is:  

Franchise Seller Principal Business Address  Telephone No. 
  Lukas Krause 390 Interlocken Crescent, Ste 350, Broomfield, CO 80021 970-660-4422 
  Kyle Gjersee 390 Interlocken Crescent, Ste 350, Broomfield, CO 80021 970-660-4422 
Valerie Krause 390 Interlocken Crescent, Ste 350, Broomfield, CO 80021 970-660-4422
  Other:  

Issuance Date:  April 21, 2023 

SkyRun Franchising Limited authorizes the respective parties identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process 
for us in the particular state. 

I have received a Disclosure Document with an Issuance Date of April 21, 2023, that included the following 
Exhibits: 

Exhibit A. State Specific Addenda to Disclosure Document 
Exhibit B. List of State Agencies and Agents for Service of Process 
Exhibit C. Table of Contents of Operations Manual 
Exhibit D. List of Outlets 
Exhibit E. Financial Statements 
Exhibit F. License Agreement, Statement of Ownership and Management, Guaranty, General 

Release, Transfer Form, and State Specific Addenda to License Agreement 
Exhibit G. SkyTrax Subscription Agreement 
Exhibit H. Electronic Transfer of Funds Authorization 
Exhibit I. Franchisee Questionnaire 

Indicate the date on which you received this Disclosure Document, sign, indicate the date you signed this Receipt, 
and promptly return one completed copy of the Receipt to SkyRun Franchising Limited, at 390 Interlocken 
Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, Colorado 80021.  Keep the second copy of the Receipt for your records. 

Date Disclosure Document Received  Prospective Franchisee’s Signature 

Date Receipt Signed Print Name 

Address:  
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RECEIPT 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the License Agreement and other information in 
plain language.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If SkyRun Franchising Limited offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar 
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection 
with the proposed franchise sale.  Michigan requires that SkyRun Franchising Limited gives you this Disclosure 
Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or payment 
of any consideration, whichever occurs first. New York requires you to receive this Disclosure Document at the 
earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement 
or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. If SkyRun Franchising Limited does 
not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material 
omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade 
Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency identified on Exhibit B. 

The franchisor is SkyRun Franchising Limited, 390 Interlocken Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, Colorado 80021.  
Its telephone number is 970-660-4422.  The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each 
franchise seller offering the franchise is:  

Franchise Seller Principal Business Address  Telephone No. 
  Lukas Krause 390 Interlocken Crescent, Ste 350, Broomfield, CO 80021 970-660-4422 
  Kyle Gjersee 390 Interlocken Crescent, Ste 350, Broomfield, CO 80021 970-660-4422 
Valerie Krause 390 Interlocken Crescent, Ste 350, Broomfield, CO 80021 970-660-4422
  Other:  

Issuance Date:  April 21, 2023 

SkyRun Franchising Limited authorizes the respective parties identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process 
for us in the particular state. 

I have received a Disclosure Document with an Issuance Date of April 21, 2023, that included the following 
Exhibits: 

Exhibit A. State Specific Addenda to Disclosure Document 
Exhibit B. List of State Agencies and Agents for Service of Process 
Exhibit C. Table of Contents of Operations Manual 
Exhibit D. List of Outlets 
Exhibit E. Financial Statements 
Exhibit F. License Agreement, Statement of Ownership and Management, Guaranty, General 

Release, Transfer Form, and State Specific Addenda to License Agreement 
Exhibit G. SkyTrax Subscription Agreement 
Exhibit H. Electronic Transfer of Funds Authorization 
Exhibit I. Franchisee Questionnaire 

Indicate the date on which you received this Disclosure Document, sign, indicate the date you signed this Receipt, 
and promptly return one completed copy of the Receipt to SkyRun Franchising Limited, at 390 Interlocken 
Crescent, Suite 350, Broomfield, Colorado 80021.  Keep the second copy of the Receipt for your records.  

Date Disclosure Document Received  Prospective Franchisee’s Signature 

Date Receipt Signed Print Name 

Address:  
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